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PART I— NOTIFICATION
ITEM 1. Significant Parties
Names and business and residential addresses of certain significant persons:

(a) The Issuer's Directors:

Business Address

4575 Bonney Road, Ste. 1040
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Director
John T. Hewitt

Residential Address

608 S. Atlantic Avenue
Virginia Beach, VA 23451

George Robson
Gary Golding
Steven Lepkowski
Ross Longfield
James Davis

Steven Ibbotson

N/A

1420 Spring Hill Road, Ste. 420

McLean, VA 22102

8505 Forest Lane
Dallas, TX 75243

N/A

FAA Technical Center
Atlantic City, NJ 08405

2748 — 37th Avenue N.E.
Calgary Alberta T1Y 5L3

(b) The Issuer's Officers:

Name

John T. Hewitt
Martha O'Gorman
Donna Halligan
Kathleen Curry
Raymond A. Dunn,

I1
Charles N. Lovelace
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Title

Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Chief Executive
Officer and President

Vice President of Marketing

Vice President of Franchise
Operations and Secretary

Vice President of Legal

Vice President of Corporate
Development

Vice President of Franchise
Development

300 Caversham Road
Bryn Mawr, PA 19010

12008 Creek Bend Drive
Reston, VA 20194

3816 Pilot Drive
Plano, TX 75025

12 St. John’s Drive
Far Hills, NJ 07931

17 School House Drive
Somers Point, NJ 08244

317 - 37" Avenue S.W.
Calgary Alberta T2S 0V3

Home Address

608 S. Atlantic Avenue
Virginia Beach, VA 23451

213-B 86" Street
Virginia Beach, VA 23451

2575 Ocean Shore Avenue
Virginia Beach VA 23451

13047 Ballard Drive
Willis Wharf, VA 23486

1626 Melrose Parkway
Norfolk VA 23508

1040 Wessex Lane
Virginia Beach, VA 23464
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Timothy J. Robinson Chief Financial Officer 1992 Sandee Crescent
Virginia Beach, VA 23454

Mark C. Johnson Vice President of Area 5005 Ravenswood Road
Development Virginia Beach, VA 23462

The Business Address of all of the Officers is 4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040 Virginia
Beach, Virginia 23462.

(c) The Issuer's General Partners:
None.

(d) Record Owners Of 5 Percent Or More Of Any Class Of The Issuer's Equity Securities:

Record Qwner Business Address Residential Address
John T. Hewitt 4575 Bonney Road, Ste. 1040 608 S. Atlantic Avenue
Virginia Beach, VA 23462 Virginia Beach, VA 23451
Scott Lake Holdings, 2748 - 37" Avenue N.E. N/A
Ltd. Calgary, Alberta T1Y 5L3
Edison Venture Fund 1420 Spring Hill Road N/A
Suite 420
McLean, VA 22102
Envest Ventures I, LLC 2101 Parks Ave. - Ste. 401 N/A

Virginia Beach, VA 23451

(e) Beneficial Owners Of 5 Percent Or More Of Any Class Of The Issuer's Equity Securities:

Beneficial Owner Business Address Residential Address

Gary Ibbotson 2748 - 37" Avenue N.E. Same
Calgary, Alberta T1Y 5L3

(f) Promoters Of The Issuer:
The Issuer was incorporated in 1996. At that time, the promoter was:

Promoter Business Address Residential Address

John T. Hewitt 4575 Bonney Road, Ste. 1040 608 S. Atlantic Avenue
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462  Virginia Beach, VA 23451
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(g) Affiliates Of The Issuer:

Affiliate Business Address Residential Address
Liberty Tax Holding 4575 Bonney Road, Ste. 1040 N/A

Company Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Liberty Tax Service, Clarica Centre - West Tower

Inc. 3300 Bloor St. West, Ste. 780

Etobicoke, Ontario M8X 2X2

(h) Counsel To The Issuer With Respect To The Proposed Offering:

Counsel Business Address : Residential Address

James J. Wheaton Troutman Sanders LLP 333 White Dogwood Dr
4425 Corporation Lane Chesapeake, VA 23322
Suite 420

Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462

(i) Each Underwriter With Respect To The Proposed Offering:
None.

() The Underwriter's Directors:
None.

(k) The Underwriter's Officers:
None.

(1) The Underwriter's General Partners:
None.

(m) Counsel To The Underwriter:
None.

ITEM 2. Application of Rule 262

(a) None of the persons identified in response to Item 1 are subject to any of the disqualification
provisions set forth in Rule 262.

(b) Not applicable.
004

45249 7.D0C 4




ITEM 3. Affiliate Sales

No part of the proposed offering involves the resale of securities by affiliates of the issuer.

ITEM 4. Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

(a) Jurisdiction in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters, dealers or salespersons:
None.

(b) Jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered other than by underwriters, dealers or
salesmen and state the method by which such securities are to be offered:

The securities will be offered by an officer of the Issuer, Raymond A. Dunn, II (“Dunn”).
He will not receive any remuneration, commission or bonus for the sale of the securities. Rather,
he will simply receive the compensation he currently receives for performing his general duties
as Vice President of Corporate Development, which is a position he has held since May 2000.
The jurisdictions in which the Issuer is contemplating selling securities are:

California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, lowa, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan,
Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania,
Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia, Wyoming and Wisconsin.

ITEM S. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

(a) As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated
issuers within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A, state:

(1) the name of such issuer;

(2) the title and amount of securities issued,

(3) the aggregate offering price or other consideration for which they were issued and basis
for computing the amount thereof: and

(4) the names and identities of the persons to whom the securities were issued:

On July 30, 2001, the Issuer granted to Envest Ventures I, LLC (“Envest”) a warrant (the
“Warrant”) for 46,340 shares of Class A Common Stock of the Issuer (the “Shares™). Envest is a
venture capital fund that was a holder of securities of the Issuer prior to the issuance of the
Warrant. The Issuer granted the Warrant to Envest in conjunction with a secured loan made by
Envest to the Issuer in the amount of $2,000,000. The basis for the grant was an arm’s length
negotiation between the Issuer and Envest.

On August 4, 2001, the Issuer issued 1,670 Shares as partial consideration for the
repurchase of one of the Issuer’s franchise stores. The aggregate value of the Shares issued in
transaction was $41,750. The Shares were issued to Danny Hewitt. Danny Hewitt is the adult
son of the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Issuer. Danny Hewitt resides in a
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different location than the President and Chief Executive Officer. The basis for computing the
aggregate consideration was an arm’s length negotiation between the parties.

On September 5, 2001, the Issuer issued 600 Shares as partial consideration for the
repurchase of one of the Issuer’s franchise stores by the Issuer. The aggregate value of the
Shares issued in the transaction was $15,000. The Shares were issued to Dave Gieson. The
basis for computing the aggregate consideration was an arm’s length negotiation between the
parties.

On September 7, 2001, the Issuer issued 5,000 Shares in exchange for an aggregate
amount of $73,900. The Shares were 1ssued to George Robson, who has been a member of the
board of directors of the Issuer since 1999. The basis for computing the aggregate consideration
was an agreement by George Robson to pay the same price per share as would be paid by
DataTax Business Services, Ltd. (“DataTax’) in the transactions described below.

In October 2001, the Issuer issued 260,000 Shares and 10 shares of Special Voting
Preferred Stock to DataTax and its wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary. In return, the Issuer
received from DataTax 40% of the issued and outstanding stock of Liberty Tax and $2,000,000.
Due to the nature of the transaction, the Special Voting Preferred Stock has no intrinsic value,
and was issued for share voting purposes only. The sale was a private placement that was
exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act”). The
aggregate value of the transaction was $3,842,888. The basis for computing the aggregate
consideration for the sale of the Shares to DataTax was an arm’s length negotiation among the
Issuer, Edison Venture Fund 1V, L.P. (“Edison”) and DataTax. Edison was involved in the
negotiation of the sale price because it was involved in the transaction as described below.

Edison purchased 42,700 shares pursuant to a preemptive rights agreement
contemporaneously with the sale of the Shares to DataTax described above. The sale was a
private placement that was exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Act. Edison
is a venture capital fund that invests in early and development stage companies. The aggregate
value of the transaction was $631,106. The basis for computing the aggregate consideration for
the sale of the Shares to both Edison and DataTax was an arm’s length negotiation among the
Issuer, Edison and DataTax.

On March 1, 2002, the Issuer issued 1,200 Shares as partial consideration for the
repurchase of two of the Issuer’s franchise territories by the Issuer. The aggregate value of the
Shares issued in the transaction was $30,000. The Shares were issued to Danny Hewitt. The
basis for computing the aggregate consideration was an arm’s length negotiation between the
parties.

On June 12, 2002, the Issuer issued 2,000 Shares as consideration for the repurchase of
four of the Issuer’s franchise territories. The aggregate value of the transaction was $80,000.
The Shares were issued to Danny Hewitt. The basis for computing the aggregate consideration
was an arm’s length negotiation between the parties.
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From January 2002 to July 2002, 5,610 options exerciseable for Shares issued to
employees under an equity compensation plan were exercised by various employees. The
exercise price for those options ranged from $10 to $21.15.

(b) As to any unregistered securities of the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers
which were sold within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A by or for the account of any
person who at the time was a director, officer, promoter or principal security holder of the issuer
of such securities, or was an underwriter of any securities of such issuer, furnish the information
specified in subsections (1) through (4) of paragraph (a):

None.

(c) Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation relied upon for
exemption from the registration requirements of such Act and state briefly the facts relied upon
for such exemption.

Except for the stock transfers arising out of the exercise of options, the Issuer relied on
Section 4(2) of the Act for exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. In each
instance, the stock purchaser was either an existing investor in the Issuer or a franchisee of the
Issuer. Such parties were intimately familiar with the business operations of the Issuer.

In the case of stock transfers arising out of the exercise of options, the Issuer relied on
Rule 701 of the Act. All of the options were issued and exercised pursuant to a written
compensatory benefit plan or written compensation contract established by the Issuer for the
participation of their employees, directors, officers, or consultants and advisors.

ITEM 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings

Neither the issuer nor any of its affiliates is currently offering or contemplating the offering of
any securities in addition to those covered by this Form 1-A.

ITEM 7. Marketing Arrangements
(a) Briefly describe any arrangement known to the issuer or to any person named in response to
Item 1 above or to any selling securityholder in the offering covered by this Form 1-A for any of

the following purposes:

(1) To limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as those to be offered for
the period of distribution:

None.
(2) To stabilize the market for any of the securities to be offered:

None.
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(3) For withholding commissions, or otherwise to hold each underwriter or dealer
responsible for the distribution of its participation:

None.
(b) Identify any underwriter that intends to confirm sales to any accounts over which it exercises

discretionary authority and include an estimate of the amount of securities so intended to be
confirmed.

None.
ITEM 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement
No expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified any part thereof was
employed for such purpose on a contingent basis or, at the time of such preparation or
certification or at any time thereafter, had a material interest in the issuer or any of its parents or
subsidiaries or was connected with the issuer or any of its subsidiaries as a promoter,
underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer or employee.

ITEM 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

No publication such as the type authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to the filing of this
notification.
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PART II — OFFERING CIRCULAR
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offers to buy be accepted prior to the time an offering circular which is not designated as a Preliminary Offering Circular is delivered and the

offering statement filed with the Commission becomes qualified. This Preliminary Offering Circular shall not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sales of these securities in any state in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful

Information contained in this Preliminary Offering Circular is subject to completion or amendment. These securities may not be sold nor may
prior to reaistration or aqualification under the laws of anv such state.

An oftering statement pursuant to Regulation A relating to these securities has been tiled with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR
JTH TAX, INC.
125,000 Shares Maximum/ 9,375 Shares Minimum

Class A Common Stock
$40 per Share

4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462
(757) 493-8855

APPROXIMATE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF PROPOSED SALE TO THE PUBLIC: As soon as
practicable after the effective date of this Offering Circular.

This Offering Circular is being furnished to existing shareholders, franchisees and employees of the
Company and to other persons that have expressed an interest in investing in the Company. In Virginia, the
Offering of the Shares will be limited to our existing shareholders, franchisees and employees. In Maryland,
California, Oklahoma, and Utah, the Offering will be limited to existing shareholders and franchisees. In other
states, if at any time we determine that the existing shareholders, franchisees and employees are not
subscribing at a rate we deem satisfactory and are not likely to purchase all of the Shares available in the
Offering, we may offer the remaining shares to persons who have previously contacted the Company and
expressed an interest in investing in the Company. We will not, however, engage in any form of public
solicitation of investors. We are offering up to an aggregate of 125,000 shares of Class A Common Stock of
JTH Tax, Inc. at a price of $40.00 per Share. We will make the Offering through one of our officers, who will
not receive any commissions or other remuneration in connection with these offers or sales. Each investor must
subscribe for no less than 500 Shares (with an aggregate purchase price of $20,000). However, we will not
impose this minimum purchase requirement on any investor who is a shareholder of the Company as of the
date of this Circutar. This Offering is not underwritten, and we have not employed any broker, dealer or salesman
in connection with this Offering.

This Offering is @ minimum/maximum offering, and no Shares will be sold unless we receive subscriptions for
at least 9,375 Shares. Until the minimum offering is subscribed for, all funds received by the Company for
Shares will be deposited with SouthTrust Bank, Chesapeake, Virginia, as escrow agent, which will hoid
these funds until it has received funds aggregating at least the amount of the Minimum Offering. At any time
after funds aggregating at least the minimum offering are received by the escrow agent, one or more
closings for the Shares may be held. Funds received for Shares after the minimum offering is reached will
not be subject to an escrow requirement. If the escrow agent has not received funds equal to or exceeding
the Minimum Offering by March 31, 2003, the escrow agent will promptly return all funds, without any
deduction for expenses, directly to the subscribers. Purchases by directors and officers of the Company, or
their affiliates, will not be counted in determining whether the minimum offering has been sold.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE
MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE
OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING
CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO
AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION
HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

THE SHARES ARE ILLIQUID, HIGH RISK SECURITIES, AND INVESTORS SHOULD BE ABLE TO
SUFFER A COMPLETE LOSS OF THEIR INVESTMENT. SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE
5.

Underwriting Discounts and
Price to Public Commissions (1) Proceeds to Issuer
Per Share $40 -0- $40
Total Minimum $375,000 -0- ' $375,000
Total Maximum $5,000,000 -0- $5,000,000
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(1) These proceeds are before deducting the expenses of this Offering (estimated at approximately $75,000). These
expenses will be incurred for legal, accounting, and printing services, and other miscellaneous expenses incurred in
connection with this Offering.

FOR RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA ONLY:

EACH PERSON WHO ACCEPTS AN OFFER TO PURCHASE THE SHARES SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO
WITHDRAW HIS ACCEPTANCE WITHOUT INCURRING ANY LIABILITY TO THE COMPANY WITHIN 2
BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE DATE OF RECEIPT BY THE COMPANY OF HIS WRITTEN BINDING
CONTRACT OF PURCHASE

THIS CIRCULAR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY STATE OR JURISDICTION
IN WHICH SUCH AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION WOULD BE UNLAWFUL.

THE SHARES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933.
THE SHARES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED IN ONLY A FEW STATES. IN ALL OTHER STATES IN WHICH
THEY ARE OFFERED, THE SHARES ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE ON EXEMPTIONS
FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH STATES’ LAWS. THE SHARES MAY NOT BE
TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER SUCH LAWS PURSUANT TO
REGISTRATION OR EXEMPTION THEREFROM. INVESTORS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY MAY BE
REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISK OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME.
SEE “RISK FACTORS- LIMITATIONS ON TRANSFER AND ABSENCE OF PUBLIC MARKET.”

Raymond A. Dunn, |l, as an agent of the Company, is acting as our agent in selling the Shares.

Officers, directors and greater than 5% shareholders of the Company, including members of the
Company’s management, may elect to purchase as many as 24,133 Shares. However, these affiliates are not
obligated to purchase any Shares. See “The Offering.”

in addition to the Class A Common Stock, we also have separate classes of Class B Common Stock,
Class A Preferred Stock, Class B Preferred Stock and Special Voting Preferred Stock. The holders of the Class B
Common Stock are presently entitled to elect a majority of the members of our Board of Directors.

We are offering and selling the Shares pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements set
forth in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). We are registering the Shares in California,
Maryland, New York and Virginia, and believe that exemptions from registration are available in the other
jurisdictions in which we are offering the Shares. Accordingly, the transfer of Shares in the states in which the
Shares are not registered is severely limited. Moreover, there is no public market for the Shares, no market is
likely to develop for the Shares and you should not purchase Shares if you need liquidity in your investments. You
may be required to bear the financial risks of this investment for an indefinite period of time. See "The Offering--
investment Procedure" and "The Offering--Suitability of Investment.”

This Circular supersedes any and all business plans and correspondence related to an offering of Shares
of the Company. We have not authorized any additional sales literature for distribution to you. We have not
authorized any dealer, broker, salesman or other person to give you any information or make any representation
not contained in this Circular or in any document attached to this Circular, and if given or made, you should not
rely on this other information or representations as having been authorized by us. The information herein is
subject to change without notice. Neither the delivery of this Circular nor any sale made hereunder will, under any
circumstances, create an implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company since the date
of this Circular.

This Circular is accompanied by a Subscription and Investment Representation Agreement. Subscriptions

will be accepted from investors only in the form of the revised Subscription Agreement that is attached to this
Circular.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Circular contains certain forward-iooking statements which are subject to substantial risks
and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements can generally be identified as such because the

context of the statements include words such as "believes,

[T

anticipates,” "expects,” "estimates,"

"intends," or other words of similar intent. Similarly, statements that describe the Company's future plans,
objectives and goals are also forward-looking statements. The Company's actual results, performance or
achievements may differ substantially from those expressed or implied in these forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of factors, including but not limited to:

competition in the tax preparation market
changes in government regulations

debt covenant restrictions

other factors, including the risk factors discussed in this Circular

~

SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing

elsewhere in this Circular.

The Company

We are a Delaware corporation formed in 1996 to provide retail income tax
return preparation services to taxpayers primarily in the lower to middle-
income tax brackets in the United States and Canada. We operate Company-
owned offices in the United States through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
EmployeesPlus, Inc., a Virginia corporation formed in 2000. We operate in
Canada through a wholly owned subsidiary, Liberty Tax, Service, Inc., a
corporation organized under the laws of the Province of Manitoba ("Liberty
Canada"). (Throughout this Circular, references to the Company's Canadian
operations and to Liberty Canada’s operations are used interchangeably.)
For the 2002 tax season, we provided tax preparation services in 351
territories (19 of which were Company-owned territories and the balance of
which were owned by our franchisees) in the United States. These territories
were located in 39 states and the District of Columbia. During the 2002 tax
season, Liberty Canada provided tax preparation services in 198 territories (9
of which were Company-owned territories and the balance of which were
owned by franchisees of Liberty Canada) extending from the Canadian
Maritime provinces to British Columbia.

We and our franchisees seek competitive advantage in our markets by (i)
providing prompt tax return preparation at a reasonable price, (ii) providing
electronic filing services, (iii) providing ancillary services, such as audit
assistance, tax return checking and taxation seminars, and (iv) offering
access to a refund anticipation loan program pursuant to which an affiliate
bank will provide, for a fee, loans to customers based upon the size of the
customers' tax refunds.

We intend to use the proceeds of this Offering for working capital and to
expand our operations in the United States and Canada.

Our principal executive offices are located at 4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040,
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462 and our telephone number is (757) 493-8855.
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The Offering We are seeking to raise a maximum of $5,000,000 through the sale of up to
125,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock at a price of
$40.00 per share. The Minimum Offering is 9,375 Shares, and if we do not
receive subscriptions for this number of Shares by March 31, 2003, the
Offering will terminate and all funds previously deposited with the Escrow
Agent will be promptly returned to subscribers. We intend to limit the Offering
to our existing shareholders, franchisees and employees. If the existing
shareholders, franchisees and employees do not subscribe for the Shares at
a rate deemed satisfactory by us in our sole discretion, we may offer the
remaining shares to those persons that have previously contacted the
Company and expressed an interest in investing in the Company. We will not,
however, engage in any form of public solicitation of investors. We will require
each subscriber that is not a current shareholder to purchase a minimum of
500 Shares ($20,000 in aggregate purchase price). We will not impose this
minimum purchase requirement on current shareholders.

Offering Price There is no established market for the Shares. The offering price of the
Shares was determined’arbitrarily by the Company after considering various
factors. The offering price of $40.00 per Share is higher than the $25.00 per
Share at which the Board of Directors of the Company granted options to
purchase Shares to certain employees of the Company in May, 2002. The
offering price is also higher than the $25.00 per Share at which the Company
valued the Shares of Common Stock in the most recent transaction in which
the Company used stock to acquire a tax preparation practice. See “Dilution”
and “Risk Factors -- Arbitrary Determination of Offering Price.”

Use of Proceeds We will use the proceeds of the Offering, after the payment of Offering
expenses, for working capital and support of approximately 700 new and
existing franchise tax return preparation territories during the 2003 tax
season. This support will include using proceeds to fund additional loans to
franchisees in relation to some of those territories.

We may be able to provide substantially: less support to franchisees if the
Minimum Offering is sold than we would be able to provide if all or
substantially all of the Shares being offered are sold.

Suitability Standards Our Subscription and Investment Representation Agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”), which is attached as Appendix A, requires you to
represent, among other things, that you meet each of the following
requirements: (a) if you reside in a state in which the Company did not
register Shares, you are acquiring the Shares for your own account for
investment and not with a view to resale or distribution thereof, and (b) you
understand that (i) you understand that you may not have any liquidity in the
Shares, and that there is significant risk of loss of your investment, and (ii)
you have the financial ability to bear the risk of losing your investment.

Possible Affiliate Certain of the Company's officers, directors and significant shareholders

Purchases have indicated an interest in purchasing Shares in the Offering, but have not
yet committed to do so. Any purchase of the Shares by the officers, directors
or significant shareholders of the Company will be under the same terms and
conditions as a purchase by any other party. The holders of the Company’s
principal classes of Preferred Stock have a contractual right to purchase
Shares if they desire to maintain their proportionate ownership of the
Company.
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Risk Factors

Reports

Subscription and
Investment
Representation
Agreement

An investment in the Shares involves a substantial degree of risk. You should
read this entire Circular and consult with your independent advisors regarding
the financial and legal considerations of an investment in the Company. See
"Risk Factors."

We are not subject to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and accordingly are not required to
file reports, proxy statements or other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. However, if you purchase Shares, we will provide
you with an annual report within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of
the Company. Our obligation to furnish such reports and information will
cease if and when the Company becomes subject to the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act.

This Circular is accompanied by a form of Subscription and Investment
Representation Agreement. Subscriptions will be accepted from investors
only in the form of the revised Subscription and Investment Representation
Agreement that is attached to this Circular.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth certain historical consolidated financial and other selected
information of the Company. The following information is unaudited. See the audited financial statements

of the Company for the fiscal years 2002 and 2001 that are attached to this Circular.

Balance Sheet Data as of April 30, April 30, April 30,
2002 2001 2000
Cash $1,627,135 $1,804,235 $442 866
Restricted cash $200,298 $425,873 $429,721
Accounts receivable $7,009,258 $4,051,702 $2,472,001
Notes and interest receivable (current portion) $3,567,716 $2,850,619 $1,920,908
Allowance for doubtful accounts $2,438,200 $948.155 $434,265
Current assets $10,013,517 $8,441,720 $4,935,251
Stockholders’ equity $14,582,125 $6,284,302 $5,829,655
Working capital $4,176,184 $3,752,115 $3,394,992
Total assets $25,539,176 $13,775,789 $9,187,508
Total liabilities $10,957,051 $7,491,487 $3,357,853
Operations Data For The Year Ended April 30, April 30, April 30,
2002 2001 200
Total revenue $17,934,867 $10,570,088 $3,684,588
Income (loss) from operations $1,270,522 ($190,197) ($3,850,106)
Total other income $847,757 $345,806 $1,496,541
Net income (loss) $2,525,279 $90,578 ($2,465,435)
Earnings per share — basic $2.11 $.09 - ($3.26)
Earnings per share — diluted $2.02 $.09 (32.62)
Nonfinancial Data For The Years Ended April 30, April 30, April 30,
2002 2001 2000
Number of U.S. Territories 351 256 184
Number of Canadian Territories 161 173 177
Total number of Territories 512 429 361

Because the Company did not acquire a minority 40% interest in Liberty Canada until October
2001, the financial information for the year ended April 30, 2002 does not reflect the full effect of losses
incurred by Liberty Canada during the first six months of the 2002 fiscal year. Similarly, the results for the
years ended April 30, 2001 and 2000 do not reflect the previously held minority interest in Liberty
Canada, and so do not reflect the full operations of the results of the Canadian Subsidiary during the
2001 and 2000 tax seasons on a basis comparable with the 2002 tax season results included in the April
30, 2002 financial statements.

In addition, certain 2001 and 2000 data has been reclassified in order to present them in a

manner consistent with the 2002 data.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should not buy the Shares
if you cannot afford the loss of your entire investment or if you need or desire current income.
You should carefully consider, among other things, the following:

Limited Operating History and Prior Year Losses

Our operations commenced in September 1997 with the purchase of a 60% interest in Tax Depot,
an established provider of tax preparation services in Canada (subsequently renamed Liberty Tax
Service, Inc.). We commenced tax preparation operations in the United States in Columbus, Ohio in
1998. As an early-stage entity, we have minimal operating history upon which an evaluation of our future
prospects can be made. Although we did show a profit for Fiscal 2001, our operating expenses exceeded
our operating revenues. A substantial portion of our income in that year was earned from interest income
from financing provided by us to franchisees. We showed a net loss for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2000 (“Fiscal 2000"). As of April 30, 2002, we had an accumulated deficit of $639,564. See "Consolidated
Financial Statements.” Although our management has significant experience in developing successful
businesses similar to the Company, there can be no assurance that we will show a profit from operations
in future years. Our future viability, profitability and growth will depend upon our ability to successfully
operate and expand its Canadian and United States operations. Our prospects in the United States must
be considered in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered in the significant
expansion of a new business, particularly in the tax return preparation industry, which is characterized by
intense competition, a dominant national tax return preparation firm and ease of market entry. Moreover,
we have limited experience in the management of a large scale franchise operation such as the one that
will be in place for the 2003 and subsequent tax seasons. There can be no assurance that any of our
efforts will prove successful or that we will not incur operating losses in future years.

Limitations on Transfer in Certain States and Absence of Public Market

The sale and transfer of the Shares by investors is significantly limited by state law in every state
in which they are being offered, except for California, Maryland, New York and Virginia. No market exists
for the Shares and we do not anticipate that any public market for the Shares will develop in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, an investment in the Company cannot be expected to be readily
liquidated, or liquidated at all, even in an emergency.

Arbitrary Determination of Offering Price

There is no established market for the Shares. We determined the offering price of the Shares
after considering various factors. We make no representation that the Shares have a market value of, or
can be sold at, the offering price. There has been no objective determination of value for purposes of this
pricing. The offering price does not necessarily bear any relationship to the Company’s assets, book
value or financial condition, or to any other recognized criterion of value. The offering price is significantly
in excess of the $25.00 per share value assigned by the board of directors of the Company in May 2002,
when options to acquire shares of Class A Common Stock were granted to certain of our employees. The
offering price is also in excess of the $25.00 per share valuation used in recent acquisitions of tax
practices in which part of the consideration was paid in the form of Class A Common Stock.

Need for Additional Financing

Even if we sell all of the Shares, we will need additional financing in order to expand our
operations beyond supporting the additional territories that the Company plans to fund through this
Offering. See "Use of Proceeds." It is unlikely that our cash flow from operations will be sufficient to
support anticipated growth during the next several years of operations, but there can be no assurance
that we will be able to obtain financing as and when needed (for operational purposes, to retire
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indebtedness or to fund expansion) upon terms acceptable to the Company. We do not anticipate any
further efforts to raise capital through private offerings once this offering is completed.

Broad Discretion in the Allocation of Proceeds

The proceeds of the Offering will be used for working capital and support of approximately 700
new and existing franchise tax return preparation territories during the 2003 tax season. However, we will
have a broad discretion in allocating the use of the proceeds in support of such territories. We may be
able to provide substantially less support to franchisees if the Minimum Offering is sold than we would be
able to provide if all or substantially all of the Shares being offered are sold. See “Use of Proceeds.”

Risks Associated with Outstanding Indebtedness

Our ability to continue to expand our business will be dependent on our ability to meet our
scheduled payment obligations on our indebtedness and satisfy any guaranty or other obligations. Our
liquidity will also depend on our ability to renew certain of our indebtedness on a timely basis. If we
default in any of our indebtedness, some of which is secured by our assets, we may not be able to
continue to carry out our business. There can be no assurance that we will be able to generate the cash
flow necessary to pay our indebtedness, or to raise sufficient additional capital to allow us to pay our
indebtedness on a timely basis.

Our indebtedness includes:

e Aloan in the principal amount of $2 million that is payable on an interest-only basis until
July 2005, but that is due and payable in full at that time (the “Envest loan”).

e $2.7 milion in remaining obligations related to a perpetual software license that we
acquired from Orrtax Software, Inc. ("Orrtax”), which is payable in installments of
$700,000, $1 million and $1 million in March 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively.

e A term note payable to a financial institution in the principal amount of $1,400,000 that is
payable in instaliments of $500,000, $500,000 and $400,000 in February 2003, 2004 and
2005, respectively.

o An annual line of credit that is obtained in order to fund the operations of Liberty Canada.
There is presently no outstanding balance on this line of credit, but we expect to renew it
for the 2003 tax season.

* A line of credit with a financial institution that allows borrowings of up to $2 million. This
line of credit is collateralized by notes receivable to us from franchisees and expires on
July 31, 2002, but is expected to be renewed, perhaps at a higher borrowing limit.

e Our guaranty obligations to TLC, LLC (“TLC”"), a lender to our franchisees. We have
guaranteed $758,026 in financing to our franchisees and have agreed to guaranty
substantially more if necessary. We are required to maintain an escrow account to which
the lender has recourse if we fail to meet our guaranty obligations. This escrow
requirement may have an adverse effect on our liquidity.

¢ Obligations under various noncancelable operating leases for office space through 2007
in an approximate amount of $2,362,000.

¢ Obligations incurred in connection with the acquisition of acquired tax practices in an
approximate aggregate amount of $514,000 as of April 30, 2002.

s Mortgage obligations incurred in the ordinary course in an approximate aggregate
amount of $260,000 at April 30, 2002.

¢ Other indebtedness incurred in the ordinary course of business.

Debt Covenants May Restrict Operating Flexibility

Certain of the debt-related agreements to which we are a party, and in particular the agreements
governing the Envest loan, include affirmative and negative debt covenants that may restrict the ability of
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our management to implement its business plans. In particular, the agreement that governs the Envest
loan requires us to obtain Envest's written consent in order to incur additional debt in excess of certain
routine indebtedness and in excess of certain limits. For example, our ability to obtain a line of credit
without Envest’s consent is limited to $6 million; we may not guaranty franchisee indebtedness in
amounts greater than $3 million in the aggregate; and our Canadian indebtedness is limited in both dollar
amount and payment terms.

Risks of Currency Fluctuations

All of the financial information contained in this Circular is shown in United States dollars.
However, a significant portion of our operations reflected in the financial information were conducted in
Canada. The Canadian dollar experienced substantial declines against the United States dollar during
1998 and 1999. If the current exchange rate is maintained, or declines even further, our future Canadian
operations may generate less revenue and smaller profits, denominated in American dollars and without
accounting for any other change in operations, than are reflected in the financial information contained in
this Circular. The exchange rate used in most of the financial information contained in this Circular
reflects a range of value of .6377 to .6384 Canadian dollars (C3) to each American dollar; the actual
exchange rate for currency transactions as of July 1, 2002 was .6545.

Dependence on Revenue from Refund Anticipation Loan Programs and Electronic Filings

We believe that our refund anticipation loan program will be an important source of revenue in
both the United States and Canada because members of our targeted market typically desire tax refunds
as quickly as possible. The success of the program will depend, in part, on the continued availability of
third party financing for the loans. See "Business--Services Offered--Refund Anticipation Loan Program."
During the 2003 tax season, we expect to offer such loans directly to Canadian customers, while such
loans will be made to United States customers directly through third party lenders. To the extent that we
do not recover the full amount of refund anticipation loans from the proceeds of tax refunds, our revenues
may be adversely affected. Although we will make efforts to collect any shortfalls from the customer, there
can be no assurance that we will be able to recover any or all of the shortcomings.

The continuation of the Internal Revenue Service (*IRS”) and Revenue Canada electronic filing
programs are also elements critical to our operating strategy, and to the refund anticipation loan program
in particular. The IRS and certain members of Congress have expressed concerns regarding the difficulty
of detecting fraudulent electronic returns. Any decision by either the IRS or Revenue Canada to suspend,
terminate or substantially modify its respective electronic return filing program could materiaily adversely
affect our tax return preparation business. Our refund loan anticipation business may also be adversely
affected by governmental regulation. See "Risk Factors--Government Regulation.”

Franchise Operations, United States Growth Limitation; Sale of Company-Owned Franchises

We have established extensive training programs and quality control procedures with respect to
our franchisees. However, there can be no assurance that the programs and procedures will be effective
in enabling franchisees to run profitable tax preparation businesses. in addition, failure by a franchisee to
provide service at acceptable levels may result in adverse publicity, which can materially adversely affect
our ability to compete in the market in which the franchisee is located.

In the past, we have obtained a substantial amount of our revenue from the sale of franchises in
the United States and Canada. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to sell additional
United States franchises or additional Canadian franchises on terms acceptable to us, or at all. At
present, because we have open territories in only certain markets in the United States, and have not fully
penetrated all of those markets, we believe that there are substantial opportunities to sell additional
franchises in the immediate future. We recognize, however, that at some point our ability to generate
revenues from additional franchise sales will become more limited, and we will become more dependent
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on revenues generated from operations, which we will receive almost entirely during the annual tax
season.

The operating results furnished in this Circular reflect significant revenue from Company-owned
territories. However, the Company prefers to sell Company-owned stores to franchisees, and our
operating results from an all-franchise operation may differ materially from those achieved in prior
periods.

Liability for Franchisee Actions and Obligations

Both the Company and Liberty Canada grant their franchisees a limited license to use their
registered service marks and, accordingly, there is risk that one or more of the franchisees may be
identified as being controlied by the Company or Liberty Canada. In the event that a franchisee is not
adequately identified to the public in its market area as a franchisee, the Company and/or Liberty Canada
could be held vicariously liable for the debts and obligations of the franchisee so misidentified.

Regulation of Franchise Operations

‘ During our 2002 fiscal year which ended April 30, 2002, franchise royalties and tax refund
anticipation loan income accounted for 37% of our United States gross revenues. Liberty Canada’s
franchise royalties and tax rush discounting income (the Canadian equivalent of revenue from tax refund
anticipation loans) accounted for 64% of its gross revenues for the same period. The profitability of our
future operations will depend in large part on our continued ability to comply with federal and state
franchise regulations, and on Liberty Canada's continued ability to comply with Canadian and provincial
franchise regulations. While we currently believe that the Company, and Liberty Canada and their
franchisees will be able to comply with all applicable regulations, there can be no assurance that such
regulations will not change and, if so, that any changes will not materially adversely affect the Company's
business. See "Business--Franchise Operations--Regulation of Franchise Operations."

Need for a Large Pool of Low Cost Seasonal Labor

The Company, Liberty Canada and their franchisees depend, in part, on the availability of
employees willing to work for little more than the minimum hourly wage, with minimal benefits, for periods
of less than a year. See "Business--Tax Return Preparers." Our success in managing and expanding its
business will depend upon the ability of the Company and its franchisees to hire, train and supervise
additional personnel, and to deal with turnover rates for lower paid employees, which may be substantial.
Moreover, if the supply of this labor pool is reduced in the future for reasons within or outside our control
or if we are required to provide our employees more extensive and costly benefits, either as a result of
competition or governmental regulation, or if the minimum wage is increased, the expenses associated
with our operations could be substantially increased without offsetting increases in revenues.

Dependence on Lines of Credit for Refund Loans in Canada

Our refund anticipation loan business in Canada, which is called “tax rush discounting” in
Canada, is dependent on the availability of adequate financing from third party lenders to fund customer
refund loans. Liberty Canada’s line of credit used during the 2002 tax season expired in May 2002. We
intend to renew the line of credit for the 2003 tax season, but have not yet done so. If this line of credit is
not available on a timely basis, we could experience a substantial loss of revenue from our Canadian
refund anticipation loan program.

Importance of Key Employees
Our future success will depend in material part upon the continued services of our senior
management, particularly John T. Hewitt, as well as upon our ability to attract and retain capable middle

management (such as regional and district directors for Company-owned offices operating after the 2002
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tax season, consultants for franchised offices, training directors, tax advisors and computer personnel)
with the specific executive skills necessary to assist us and our franchisees. We currently employ four
regional directors in the United States and two regional directors in Canada. We will face competition for
such personnel from numerous other entities, including competing tax return preparation firms, some of
which have significantly greater resources than us. Although we have so far been successful in hiring
senior managers experienced in the industry, there can be no assurance that we will continue to be able
to attract and retain personnel. The inability to do so could have a material adverse effect on us. The
unexpected loss of the services of any of these management personnel could have a material adverse
effect upon us. We currently maintain for our benefit a $1,000,000 key man life insurance policy on the life
of Mr. Hewitt. However, we do not have an employment contract with Mr. Hewitt. We also maintain for the
benefit of Envest a $2,000,000 key man life insurance policy on the life of Mr. Hewitt. No member of
senior management currently has an employment contract with the Company or Liberty Canada. See
"Management.”

Business is Highly Seasonal

The tax preparation business is highly seasonal, with the bulk of revenues being earned in the
January 1 through April 15 "tax season” in the United States and the January 1 through April 30 "tax
season” in Canada in each year. We anticipate that 64% or more of our gross revenues for a fiscal year
will be generated in the tax season for that year. Both the Company and Liberty Canada are on a May 1
to April 30 fiscal year and may operate at a loss during the first eight months of each fiscal year. There
can be no assurance that our activities during the "off-season” will not cause our cash resources to be
strained on a regular basis. If we are unable to obtain adequate sources of capital to fund our operations
during the "off-season," we could be forced to curtail expansion plans, cut back on our work force or take
other steps to address our cash flow needs. Moreover, in view of the very compressed time period in
which our revenues arise in each year, we may have little or no time to respond to unforeseen changes in
competitive conditions, markets, pricing, new product offerings by its competitors and similar matters
which could materially adversely affect our competitive position during the tax season.

Competition

The tax return preparation industry is characterized by intense competition among numerous tax
service providers, accounting firms and others. Some of these competitors are more established than us,
with substantially greater marketing, financial, personnel and other resources than are currently available
to us. In the lower to middle-income taxpayer market targeted by us, competition is dominated in the
United States by H&R Block, Inc. ("H&R Block™), which is a large, well established national service
provider. Another established service provider is Jackson Hewitt. H&R Block also operates in and is a
major competitor in Canada. Additionally, many taxpayers in our target market prepare their own returns.

Changes in Tax Laws

The tax laws of Canada and the United States have undergone a period of rapid and substantial
change, and we expect that this will continue for the foreseeable future. We believe that the complexity
and rapidity of the changes will provide us with an important marketing tool. However, we expect that we
will incur significant yearly costs in maintaining the currency of our tax return preparation software and tax
preparer materials. In addition, there have been numerous proposals for simplification of United States
tax laws, including "flat tax" and "modified flat tax" proposals. Adoption of any such proposals could
reduce demand for our services in the United States. Adoption of a strict flat tax could reduce demand
substantially.

Control by Principal Stockholder
The Company's common stock is divided into two classes. See "Description of Capital Stock.”

Purchasers in this Offering will own Class A Common Stock. All the outstanding Class B Common Stock
is owned by Mr. Hewitt. The Company's certificate of incorporation provides that the Class B stockholders
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have the right to elect one more director than may be elected by the Class A stockholders. As a
consequence, Mr. Hewitt will have effective control of the Board of Directors irrespective of the number of
shares of Class A Common Stock which are outstanding.

No Cash Dividends

Since its inception, we have not paid any cash dividends on the Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Stock, Class A Preferred Stock or Class B Preferred Stock. We intend to retain future earnings,
if any, to provide funds for the operation of our business and, accordingly, do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the reasonably foreseeable future. The payment of future dividends is within the
discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon our future earnings, if any, our capital
requirements, financial condition and other relevant factors.

Lack of Insurance Coverage

We maintain $2,000,000 of general liability insurance. We do not carry insurance coverage for
"errors and omissions" to cover potential IRS imposed penalties for errors on prepared tax returns.
Historically, the cost of these penalties has not been significant to us. However, there is a risk that in the
future a large penalty could be imposed on us.

Risk of Franchisee Default

From time to time, we extend financing to certain franchisees for initial franchise fees, cash
advances for working capital and/or the purchase of Company-owned stores. The financing is in the form
of promissory notes payable to us. The notes carry interest at an annual rate of 12% and are personally
guaranteed by the franchisee and/or the owner of the franchise. There can be no assurance that any
franchisee will generate revenue sufficient to repay any amounts due, nor is there any assurance that any
franchisee will be able to repay through other means any amounts due. At April 30, 2002, the aggregate
amount due to us from franchisees for such financing is $9,500,097, including accrued interest. Any
failure by the franchisees to pay such amounts, if the amounts are not recoverable by us through other
means, could have a material adverse affect on us. A total of 33 franchisees have been or are currently in
default to us. The Company restructured the debt of 15 franchisees, and purchased the territories of 14
others. As of July 1, 2002, 4 franchisees remain in default, and owe us a total amount of $648,940.

Moreover, in some cases, we may be liable on office leases or other contractual obligations that
have been assumed by purchasers of Company-owned territories and acquired tax practices. If the
franchisees default on third-party obligations for which we continue to have liability, our operating results
will be adversely affected.

Related Party Loans

We have made loans to a company controlied by one officer, and intend to make additional loans
to the same company. We believe that these transactions have been entered into or will be entered into
on an arm’s-length basis on terms substantially similar to those made available by us to non-affiliated
franchisees.

Dilution

The offering price per Share is $40.00, more than the price paid per share for the Company's
securities in the past. Thus, purchasers in the Offering will experience immediate dilution in the value of
their shares in the amount of $28.87 per share, or 72% of the offering price, based on a total of 1,351,856
Class A, Class B, Class A Preferred and Class B Preferred shares outstanding as of April 30, 2002. See
“Dilution.”
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds (after deducting offering expenses of approximately $75,000) for the Maximum
Offering will be approximately $4,925,000 if the Maximum Offering is sold and $300,000 if the Minimum
Offering is sold (the “Net Proceeds”). The Company intends to use the Net Proceeds for working capital
and to support 512 existing franchise tax preparation territories in the United States and Canada and to
establish up to 210 new franchised tax preparation territories for the 2003 season. The Company
estimates that the net proceeds of the Minimum Offering and the Maximum Offering will be used as
follows:

Minimum Maximum
Use of Net Proceeds Offering Offering
Financing for franchisees: franchise fees, equipment, -0- $2,000,000
working capital
Advertising for new franchisees -0- $750,000
Operational support: regional directors and staff and $300,000 $1,600,000
technical support
Technology: software development & support -0- $575.000
Total $300,000 $4,925,000

While the foregoing represents the Company's current estimate of its expected use of net
proceeds, the amounts actually expended for the purposes set forth above may vary significantly
depending upon numerous factors, including the actual costs of leasing and furnishing office space and
personnel costs. The Company does not expect to acquire any practices from affiliates of the Company.
The Company reserves the right to reallocate proceeds among the foregoing uses and for general
corporate purposes based upon the actual amount of proceeds received and the actual costs of the
proposed expenditures.

DILUTION

The offering price per Share is $40.00, more than the price paid per share for the Company's
securities in the past. Thus, purchasers in the Offering will experience immediate dilution in the value of
their shares in the amount of $28.87 per share, or 72% of the offering price, based on a total of 1,351,856
Class A, Class B, Class A Preferred and Class B Preferred shares outstanding as of April 30, 2002.

In connection with the incorporation of the Company, Mr. Hewitt purchased 1,000 shares of Class
B Common Stock for $.10 per share. In December 1996, Mr. Hewitt further capitalized the Company by
contributing to it certain securities with an aggregate market price at the time of contribution of $176,000.
In return therefor, Mr. Hewitt was issued 44,000 shares of Class B Common Stock resulting in a price per
share of $4.00. In July 1997, the Company sold 200,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to a select
group of investors for a price of $10.00 per share. On January 10, 1997, the Company declared a stock
dividend of one share of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock for each such share
outstanding, resulting in an aggregate of 400,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and 90,000 shares of
Class B Common Stock outstanding. Between October 26, 1998 and January 10, 1999, the Company
sold an additional 164,996 Class A Shares in a private placement for a price of $12.50 per share. In May
1999 the Company sold 180,000 shares of Class A Convertible Preferred Stock for a price of $12.50 per
share. Between November 19, 1999 and March 31, 2000, the Company sold an additional 32,156 Class
A Common Shares in a private placement for a price of $25.00 per share. Between December 15, 2000
and February 15, 2001, the Company sold an additional 35,800 Class A Common Shares in a private
placement for a price of $12.50 per share. In June 2001, the Company sold 25,000 of Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock for a price of $20.00 per share. In October 2001, the Company sold 307,700 Class A
Common Shares for a price of $14.78 per share. 110,744 shares of Class A Common Stock have been
issued with regard to various purchase transactions, 9,000 shares of which have been repurchased by
the Company. Additionally, as of July 10, 2002, the Company has outstanding 105,775 options to
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employees issued as incentive stock options, and an additional 84,455 shares reserved for issuance
under the Company’s stock option plan. As of July 10, 2002, 9,770 options had been exercised. A total of
108,399 other options and warrants that are not incentive stock options are also outstanding. Aggregate
issued and outstanding stock as of the date of this Circular include 1,046,856 shares of Class A Common
Stock, 90,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, 190,000 shares of Class A Convertible Preferred Stock
and 25,000 shares of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock. The Company also has 10 shares of Special
Voting Preferred Stock outstanding. However, those shares relate directly to 100,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock that are outstanding and presently held by a subsidiary of the Company for the ultimate
benefit of a shareholder. These Special Voting Preferred shares are outstanding solely for the purposes
of giving stockholder voting rights to the ultimate beneficiary of those shares.

At April 30, 2002, the net tangible book value of the Company's Class A Common Stock
combined with the Class B Common Stock, Class A Preferred Stock and Class B Preferred Stock (all of
which are convertible into Class A Common Stock) was $11,508,879, or approximately $8.51 per share
then outstanding. Net tangible book value represents the amount of the Company's shareholders' equity
(net tangible assets less liabilities) divided by 1,351,856 shares outstanding.

Net tangible book value dilution per share represents the difference between $40.00 price per
share paid by purchasers of the Class A Common Stock in the Offering, and the pro forma net tangible
book value per share of the Common Stock and Preferred Stock immediately after completion of the
Offering. After giving effect to the sale by the Company of 125,000 shares of Class A Common Stock in
the Offering (assuming that the maximum number of Shares is sold) and the application of the estimated
net proceeds therefrom, the pro forma net tangible book vaiue of the Company would have been
$16,433,879 or approximately $11.13 per share. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible
book value of $2.62 per share to the existing stockholders and an immediate dilution in net tangible book
value of $28.87 per share to purchasers of the Class A Common Stock in the Offering, as illustrated in the
following table.

Public offering price per share $40.00
Net tangible book value per share as of April 30, 2002 $8.51
Increase per share attributable to new investors $2.62
Pro forma net tangible book value per share after the Offering $11.13
Net tangible book value dilution per share to new investors $28.87

The following table sets forth the difference between the existing shareholders and the
purchasers of Shares in the Offering with respect to the number of Shares purchased from the Company,
" the total consideration paid and the average price per share paid:

Shares Purchased Total Consideration Average Price
Number Percent Amount Percent Per Share
Existing Shareholders 1,351,856 91.5% $14,488,159 74.3% $10.72
New Investors 125,000 8.5% $5,000,000 25.7% $40.00
Total 1,476,856 100% $19,488,159 100%

The information above does not take into account 141,775 options to purchase Shares of Class A
Common Stock issued to employees and directors of the Company and other parties as of July 10, 2002,
and exercisable at prices ranging from $10.00 to $27.50 per share, warrants for 26,059 shares of Class A
Common Stock held by officers, directors and shareholders of the Company and exercisable at $12.50
per share at any time prior to June 30, 2006, or a warrant for 46,340 shares of Class A Common Stock
held by Envest and exercisable at nominal consideration at any time prior to July 30, 2008.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently intends to retain all future earnings, if any, to finance growth and
development of its business, and therefore, does not expect to declare or pay any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. A declaration of dividends, however, is within the discretion of the Company’s Board
of Directors. See "Risk Factors--No Dividends." Any future dividend policy will be determined by the
Board of Directors in light of conditions then existing, including the Company’s earnings and its financial
condition and requirements.

BUSINESS
General

The Company is a Delaware corporation formed in 1996 to provide retail income tax return
preparation services for taxpayers primarily in the lower to middle-income tax brackets. The Company
intends to provide its services through both Company-owned and franchised territories in selected
locations. The Company seeks competitive advantage in its markets by (i) providing prompt tax return
preparation at a reasonable price, (ii) providing electronic filing services, (iii) providing ancillary services,
such as audit assistance, tax return checking and taxation seminars, and (iv) offering a refund anticipation
loan program pursuant to which an affiliate bank will provide, for a fee, loans to customers based upon
the size of the customers' expected tax refunds.

The Company owns Liberty Canada, which has been providing tax preparation services in
Canada since 1972. During the 2002 tax season, Liberty Canada provided tax preparation services in 198
territories, 2 of which were owned by Liberty Canada and the remainder of which were owned by Liberty
Canada franchisees. In addition, the Company had 351 tax preparation territories in the United States, 19
of which were owned by the Company and the remainder of which were owned by franchisees of
Company. All offices currently operate under the "Liberty Tax Service” name.

As of April 30, 2002, the Company had 91 employees and Liberty Canada had 25 employees. At
July 1, 2002, the Company had 101 full time employees and Liberty Canada had 17 employees. The
Company considers its relationship with its employees to be excellent.

Liberty Canada. Liberty Canada is a closely-held corporation, with its executive offices in
Winnipeg, Manitoba, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Manitoba. Liberty Canada (formerly
known as “Tax Depot, Inc.”) was formed in May 1994 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of DataTax Business
Services, Ltd. ("DataTax"), which was also the franchisor for U&R Tax Services, Ltd. DataTax assigned
and licensed those franchises to Liberty Canada, which then changed the name of the franchises to U&R
Tax Depot. The Company purchased its 60% interest in Liberty Canada from DataTax in September
1997. In October 2001, the Company purchased the remaining 40% interest in Liberty Canada from
DataTax. In January 1999, all Liberty Canada franchises formerly known as “U&R Tax Depot” began
trading under the name “Liberty Tax Service.” During Fiscal 2002, Liberty Canada had net revenues of
C$6,265,265 (as computed under United States generally accepted accounting principles).

Liberty Canada had an agreement to provide tax preparation services in certain Canadian Wal-
Mart stores. Liberty Canada paid a per-location license fee to Wal-Mart equal to 10% of gross revenue
with a minimum of C$3,600 per location. Liberty Canada operated in 10 Wal-Marts during the 2002 tax
season, all of which were franchised territories. The agreement expired in April 2002. The Company
intends to renew the agreement for the 2003 tax season.

The Company expects to expand to approximately 220 Liberty Canada territories before the 2003
tax season, most of which will be franchise locations.
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Liberty Tax Service. The Company had 351 tax preparation territories in the United States
during the 2002 tax season (19 of which were owned by the Company and the remainder of which were
owned by franchisees of the Company) in several states, including Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona,
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, lowa, lllinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Massachusetts, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Nebraska, New
Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, Nevada, New York, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island,
South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and the District
of Columbia. Liberty Tax Service provides tax return preparation services, electronic filing services, audit
assistance, tax return checking, access to refund loans and tax seminars to its customers.

Since the conclusion of the 2002 tax season, the Company has repurchased 6 territories from
franchisees for an aggregate amount of $712,183. The Company may repurchase additional territories
from franchisees prior to the 2003 tax season. Four Company-owned territories have been re-sold to
franchisees subsequent to the conclusion of the 2002 tax season and as of the date of this Circular, for
an aggregate sale price of $301,000. The Company intends to sell the other Company-owned territories
to franchisees prior to the 2003 tax season. The Company anticipates that it will seek future growth
primarily through expanding franchise operations in both countries. The Company anticipates that an
additional 50 to 60 franchises sold prior to the 2002 tax season (but not opened during the 2002 tax
season) will operate during the 2003 tax season. During and subsequent to the 2002 tax season and as
of July 1, 2002, the Company has sold 48 new United States franchises, not all of which will operate
during the 2003 tax season. The Company expects to expand to a total of approximately 500 United
States territories before the 2003 tax season.

Services Offered

Tax Preparation. There are approximately 130 million and 21 million individual tax returns filed
annually in the United States and Canada, respectively. The Company will offer tax return preparation
services to the public, focusing its efforts on marketing to persons with incomes of less than
$40,000/C3$40,000 per year. Based upon management's prior experience in the industry, the Company
anticipates that over 60% of its customers will have incomes below $43,000/C$40,000. The Company
believes that there is a significant market of individuals in these income brackets who do not wish to
prepare their own returns, or who may face relatively complex situations (such as divorce, multiple
jurisdiction filings, multiple deductions or other considerations) but who are unwilling or unabte to pay the
level of fees charged by accountants or tax attorneys.

The Company's tax preparers use personal computer based software to conduct comprehensive
client interviews and to prepare tax returns. Liberty Canada is currently in the process of rewriting and
updating that software in order to keep pace with recent technological developments. The Company used
off-the-shelf software provided by Universal Tax Systems (“Universal”) to prepare U.S. tax returns during
the 2002 tax season and plans to use similar software during the 2003 season, with appropriate updates
and modifications. The Company’s agreement with Universal requires Universal to provide the tax
software for the 2003 tax season. The cost of the tax software was $350,000 for the 2002 tax season and
is anticipated to be $550,000 for the 2003 tax season. The Company prepares U.S. tax returns on
average in approximately one hour and Canadian returns in approximately one-half hour, assuming the
customer has all relevant records and is able to answer all questions asked by the preparer.

The Company has acquired from Orrtax a perpetual license to modify and use tax preparation
software. The Company intends to use the software in a limited number of United States territories in
2003. The Company has remaining obligations to Orrtax of $2.7 million payable in installments of
$700,000, $1 million and $1 million in March 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively. The Company hopes to
eventually deploy this software, as modified to meet the Company's purposes, throughout its U.S.
territories.

In assessing its software needs, the Company focuses on meeting four requirements: (i) enabling
the Company to provide consistent, high quality tax preparation services, (ii) enabling the Company to
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utilize persons as tax return preparers who are not as dependent upon technical tax skills as may be
required in other operations, (iii) allowing tax return preparers to concentrate more closely upon providing
quick and friendly service to customers, and (iv) enabling the Company to electronically file a customer's
tax return more rapidly and efficiently in order to allow the customer to obtain a tax refund more quickly.

Electronic Filing. The Company's franchisees offer electronic filing services to its U.S.
customers at no extra cost. Liberty Canada and its franchisees also offer electronic filing services to its
Canadian customers at no extra cost. Because an electronically filed return is handled on a priority basis
by both the IRS and Revenue Canada, a client receives a tax refund much more quickly than if the return
is manually filed. The Company anticipates that speedy refunds will be a major marketing tool for the
Company both in the United States and Canada. The customer also receives speedy IRS or Revenue
Canada acknowledgments that the return is mathematically correct. In management's experience, over
80% of returns which are filed electronically receive refund checks within 21 days in Canada and within
14 days in the United States. Management anticipates that over 80% of the returns it or its franchisees
prepares will be filed electronically. See "Risk Factors--Dependence on Revenue from Refund
Anticipation Loan Programs and Electronic Filings.” The Company’s franchisees and Liberty Canada will
also, for a fee, electronically file returns prepared by non-client taxpayers or other tax preparers.

Refund Anticipation Loan Program. Because the Company believes that the speed of
obtaining a refund, or cash in anticipation of a refund, will be important to the Company's targeted market,
and in order to compete with other tax return preparation firms, the Company and its franchisees will offer
access to a refund anticipation loan service. A refund anticipation loan is a loan from a bank made to a
taxpayer, secured by the anticipated tax refund payment, and with full recourse to the taxpayer. Refund
loans in Canada will be provided directly by the Company using line of credit financing. In the United
States, refund loans will be provided directly to the taxpayer by one or more third party lenders that have
contracted or will contract with the Company to supply this service. One third party lender that the
Company has executed such a contract with for the 2003 tax season is Republic First Bank of Delaware.
Pursuant to that contract, Republic First Bank of Delaware will provide refund loans to the customers of
the Company and its franchisees pursuant to the procedure described below. The Company anticipates
contracting with other third party lenders to provide refund loans for the 2003 tax season. These loans will
usually enable the customers of the Company’s franchisees to receive their proceeds within 24 hours of
the time the return is filed with the IRS or Revenue Canada. The Company anticipates that as many as
45% of the customers of the franchisees will utilize this service.

The procedure with respect to third party refund loans will generally be as follows:

- The customer's return is prepared,;

- The customer completes a refund anticipation loan application (in which the taxpayer/borrower
assigns the rights to the refund to the lending institution);

- The tax preparer or other office worker electronically transmits the customer's tax return to the
Company’s headquarters for filing with the IRS or Revenue Canada;

- Revenue Canada or the IRS acknowledge that the return is mathematically correct and
Revenue Canada acknowledges that no government liens exist against the customer;

- Once approved by the IRS or Revenue Canada, the tax return is electronically messengered to
the participating bank for final approval;

- Upon confirmation from the bank of a loan approval, the Company electronically advises the
originating office of the approval; and

- The originating office prints out a check for the amount of the approved loan (the refund amount
less bank charges and the return preparation fee, which includes an application fee),
which can then be distributed to the customer.

Substantially the same procedures will be followed in Canada when the Company provides the
loan directly, except that no third party approval of the loan will be required.
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Typically within two to three weeks of the electronic filing, the IRS or Revenue Canada wires the
refund amount directly to the lender. Fees for the loan and the preparation of the return are deducted
from the check amount, thereby requiring no cash outlay by the taxpayer and assuring payment to the
Company and its franchisees. The costs of writing off bad debt that may be incurred in the program are
factored into the fees charged for the loans; however, the Company will make reasonable attempts to
collect any unrecovered funds. See "Risk Factors--Dependence on Revenue from Refund Anticipation
Loan Programs and Electronic Filings.”

During the 2002 tax season, the Company had arrangements with the Bank of Montreal (for
Canadian loans), Bank One (for U.S. loans) and Republic First Bank of Delaware (for U.S. loans). The
Bank of Montreal provided Liberty Canada with a C$12.750 million line of credit to fund refund loans. That
facility expired in May 2002. The Company intends to renew that facility for the 2003 tax season. As of the
date of this Circular, that facility has not yet been renewed. However, the Company is actively negotiating
with the Bank of Montreal and anticipates that the facility will be renewed. The line of credit will provide
the funds by which Liberty Canada makes refund anticipation loans for its Company-owned territories
generating revenues of 15% of the first C$300 loaned and 5% of the balance. (If the loan is made by a
franchisee using Liberty Canada's line of credit, Liberty Canada will receive 48% of this revenue.) In
addition, the Bank of Montreal has provided Liberty Canada with a C$1 million line of credit for working
capital. That facility expired in May 2002. Both facilities bore interest at the Bank of Montreal prime rate
plus .75% and guaranteed in part by the Company, and are guaranteed personally by Mr. Hewitt and by
Mr. J. Gary Ibbotson, a major shareholder of the Company.

Training Programs and Other Ancillary Services. The Company provides training to
franchisees. These sessions are devoted to operational aspects of the business. Training of franchisee
employees with respect to tax law, policies and procedures and software use is provided by the
franchisee after he or she has completed the Company's training. The Company does not train franchisee
employees.

The Company will also offer certain ancillary services which will be covered by the initial fee paid
by the customer, including audit assistance, tax return checking, taxation seminars and schools.

Growth Strategy

The Company intends to follow a growth strategy involving the establishment of both Company-
and franchisee-owned territories and the eventual establishment of Company-owned territories. The
Company intends to open 170 new franchise territories in the United States and 40 new franchise
territories in Canada for operation during the 2003 tax season. The Company anticipates that growth of
Canadian and United States operations will be through franchising: Liberty Canada expects to grant up to
34 new franchises and the Company expects to grant up to 200 new franchises prior to the 2003 tax
season {not all of which will operate in the 2003 tax season).

The Company's ability to open Company-owned territories, and the size of the markets and the
offices in which they are opened, will depend upon the Company's ability to generate funds through
operations, to obtain financing or to attract additional capital, while the Company's ability to expand the
franchise program will depend upon the Company's ability to support the franchising structure and to
continue to attract desirable franchisees. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful
in any such endeavors. See "Risk Factors--Limited Operating History and Prior Year Losses," "--Need for
Additional Financing," "--Competition" and "--Franchise Operations, United States Growth Limitation."

A second aspect of the Company's growth strategy involves achieving "critical mass” in most
markets it enters, defined by the Company as having at least one open territory for every 200,000
residents in the market area. The Company believes that it is desirable to achieve this critical mass in
order to provide efficient marketing and advertising programs, and to effectively develop market share.
The Company intends to enter a particular market when it believes it can attain critical mass within one
year. In some cases, the Company will have Company- or franchisee-owned territories in markets where
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critical mass may not be obtained. In those cases, the Company or the franchisee may have to invest
additional cash and other resources to develop market share. As a consequence of the foregoing, the
Company anticipates that it will seek to expand regionally rather than attempting to establish an
immediate national presence.

As part of the Company’s growth strategy, the Company has made certain geographic areas in
which the Company does not expect to be able to achieve significant franchise penetration in the near
term available to area franchisees, referred to by the Company as master brokers, who purchase the right
to sell franchises within those geographic areas. For the year ended April 30, 2002, the Company sold 11
master brokerage territories and received total payments of $1,312,409 from the Master Brokers, and
holds total notes receivable of $788,236 from the Master Brokers. See “Business — Franchise Operations
- Franchise Fees, Royalties and Other Charges — United States.”

Management Structure

Both Liberty Canada's and the Company's managerial control system is based upon a central
office-regional management format. The central office is responsible for overall policy, advertising,
marketing, training, software updating and franchising. Liberty Canada currently has two management
offices in Canada and the Company has its management office at the Virginia Beach headquarters. As
the Company's U.S. operations expand, the Company intends to implement its policies through regional
and district managers (who will supervise groups of Company-owned territories) and franchise
consultants (who will supervise groups of franchised territories). Each Company-owned territory will be
overseen by a territory manager. Thereafter, the management structure will be implemented as the
growth in the number of Company-owned and franchised territories requires.

Fees

The Company anticipates that revenues will be derived from (i) fees for tax preparation services,
(i) fees for electronically filing tax forms for non-customers, (iii) fees from customers for initiating tax
refund loans (and possibly referral fees from lenders), (iv) fees and royalties from franchisees, (v)
proceeds from selling purchased practices to franchisees and (vi) proceeds from selling Company-owned
territories to franchisees.

The Company's fees for specific tax services will differ by region and by franchisee. The
Company will provide franchisees with a listing of suggested prices for all tax preparation services
provided by its offices. Franchisees, however, will have complete pricing autonomy. Company-owned
territories will adhere to the price schedules which management recommends for their markets. The
Company estimates that the average fee per tax return for the 2003 filing season will be approximately
$120 in the United States and C$60 in Canada. For individuals who prepare their own returns or have
them prepared elsewhere, the Company will charge a fee, currently C$30 in Canada and $35 in the
United States, for the electronic filing of the return. The Company does not charge customers in Canada
or the United States an additional fee for filing electronically if the Company prepares the return, nor does
it anticipate charging interest or late fees.

The Company anticipates that it will charge customers a fee associated with refund anticipation
loans. In the United States, the fee will approximate 2% of the loan. The Company anticipates having
contractual relationships with several lending institutions that will provide funding and, in some cases,
processing services for these loans. The Company anticipates that, for the 2003 season, it will provide its
own processing services for most of these loans. The Company will also charge an application fee, which
will be included in the tax return preparation fee paid by the customer. While the Company anticipates the
application fee will range from $20 to $25, the actual amount of such fees will depend upon local
competitive conditions, the level of bank fees actually charged and customer acceptance. In the United
States, the franchisee will retain the application fee charged by the franchised territory and the Company
will retain application fees charged by Company-owned territories. In Canada, the Tax Rebate Accounting
Act limits the amount that a tax service provider or lender may charge for these loans: the taxpayer must
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receive not less than 85% of the first C$300 of the anticipated refund and 95% of the balance. Most of
these loans are made by Liberty Canada franchisees under an arrangement where Liberty Canada funds
the loan and receives a portion of the fee while the other portion of the fee is retained by the franchisees
(franchisees may instead fund the loans themselves and pay royalties to Liberty Canada but it is
expected that relatively few of the franchisees will request this arrangement).

Property

The Company leases its Virginia Beach headguarters, consisting of 14,451 square feet of office
space, at a monthly rental of $17,934 (including utilities). The lease expires in April 2005. Liberty Canada
leases two management offices in Canada: the main office in Winnipeg, Manitoba, consisting of
approximately 3,500 square feet, at a rent of C$2,525 per month, and a regional office in Toronto,
Ontario, consisting of 2,622 square feet at a rent of C$6,650 per month. The Company owns four
properties that house tax preparation offices. One office is located in Norfolk, Virginia, consists of
approximately 600 square feet and was purchased at a cost of $243,199, including land. The second
office is located in Depew, New York, consists of approximately 3,500 square feet and was purchased at
a cost of $227,967, including land. The third office is located in Chattanocoga, Tennessee, consists of
approximately 2,982 square feet and was purchased at a cost of $106,980, including land. The fourth
office is located in Leavittsburg, Ohio, consists of approximately 3,265 square feet and was purchased at
a cost of $100,140. The Company has leased all of these offices to franchisees for operation during the
2003 tax season. The Company believes that these offices are adequate for its current needs. However,
depending upon the expansion of the Company's operations, the Company may require additional office
space for its headquarters and/or small amounts of space for its regional offices. In addition, the
Company leases 28 office locations that are used for US and Canadian Company-operated territories.

The Company has established certain criteria for local tax preparation offices in the United States
and Canada as follows: offices will typically have from 800 to 1,500 square feet of office space, and will
be able to accommodate anywhere from three to ten desks. As with any retail operation, the location of
an office will be important to its ultimate financial success. For this reason, the Company will maintain
control over the site selection process for all offices (including franchisee operated offices) and will
generally require that each office have good visibility from a major intersection or busy street, high foot
traffic volume and proximity to shopping malls or other major food or clothing retailers (preferably
discounters). For all locations, the Company will seek leases with terms that coincide with the tax season
in order to reduce fixed costs.

The Company will also seek to place smaller offices in shopping malls through arrangements with
large discount retail stores, similar to Liberty Canada's arrangement with Wal-Mart, or through kiosks or .
mall store sites. See "Business--General--Liberty Canada."

Franchise Operations

The Company expects to expand Liberty Tax Service franchise programs in Canada and the
United States. The Company does not anticipate selling franchises in Quebec, however. The following
discussion is a summary of the key features of the Company's franchise program. The program may
change as it is implemented.

General. The Company will offer franchisees the right to operate in a specified geographic area.
The initial term of the Company's standard franchise agreement will be for five years, with successive
renewals exercisable at the option of the franchisee for additional five-year periods as long as the terms
of the franchise agreement continue to be met. The Company does not expect it will limit the number of
offices a franchisee may open in the franchisee's territory; however, franchisees will be required to obtain
the Company's prior approval for each location and to keep at least one office location open throughout
the year in each territory to ensure that customers in each territory have access to a tax preparer for
matters relating to late filings or any questions they have regarding the prior or forthcoming tax year. Each
franchisee will also be required to hold tax seminars, which will be offered to the general public to attract
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prospective seasonal tax preparers and to enhance name recognition in the market. (Canadian
franchisees who executed franchise agreements before July 1997 are not required to maintain off-season
hours or to provide tax seminars.)

The Company has been and intends to continue to be selective in its choice of franchisees. In
addition to customary personal and financial background checks of a franchise candidate and interviews
by management personnel, each franchise candidate will be required to successfully complete a week-
long training course. At the conclusion of the course, management will make a final evaluation of the
candidate and determine whether to accept the candidate as a franchisee.

Franchise Fees, Royalties and Other Charges.

United States. The Company’s United States franchise fee structure depends upon the specific
territory and the date that territory is applied for. For certain markets, the initial franchise fee was $10,000
per territory (until July 1, 2000). For territories in other markets and applied for prior to November 1, 1999,
the initial fee was waived. From November 1, 1999, until June 30, 2000, the initial franchise fee was
$10,000 per territory throughout the United States. From July 1, 2000, until June 30, 2001, the initial
franchise fee was $12,500 per territory throughout the United States. Beginning July 1, 2001, the current
initial franchise fee is $20,000 per territory throughout the United States. The Company intends to
increase the initial franchise fee to $25,000 beginning December 1, 2002. The Company’s franchise fees
were lower prior to July 1, 2001, and were waived for some of the earliest franchisees. A security deposit
ranging in price from $2,000 to $5,000 was required in most states. Each franchise fee or required
deposit is assessed based on each geographic area licensed by the franchisee, rather than based on the
number of office locations the franchisee operates. Security deposits received are recorded as a liability
on the Company’s balance sheet, and at April 30, 2002, the Company is holding a total of $588,537 in
security deposits for both United States and Canadian franchisees.

The Company has entered into Master Brokerage Agreements in several regions throughout the
United States. A Master Broker purchases the right to sell franchises within a geographic area to
candidates who are interested in operating a Company-franchised territory. The Master Broker is also
responsible for providing on-going local support, day-to-day operational help and marketing advice to
Company franchisees operating within the Master Broker's geographic area. The purchase price for a
geographic area under a Master Broker Agreement is based on the population of the geographic area.
The purchase price is computed using a range of $.12 to $.20 per person, with a minimum of $100,000.
When the Company sells a territory located within a geographic area covered by a Master Broker
Agreement, the Master Broker receives 50% to 70% of the associated collected franchise fee.

The Company charges franchisees a royalty. For new territories applied for after June 30, 2002,
the royalty will be 14% of all revenue coliected from all services and products offered, excluding sales tax
("Gross Receipts"), with a $5,000 minimum during the first year of operation and an $8,000 minimum
during the second year of operation. For territories applied for before July 1, 2002, the Company charges
a royalty that, in some cases, is less favorable to the Company. For territories located within a geographic
area covered by a Master Broker Agreement, the Master Broker receives 50% to 70% of the associated
collected royalty.

The Company also charges an advertising fee. The amount of the advertising fee charged is 5%
of Gross Receipts. For new territories purchased before July 1, 2002, the advertising fee is not charged
until the third tax season of operations.

Canada. Liberty Canada’s franchise fee structure also depends upon the specific territory and the
date that territory is applied for. For certain markets, the initial franchise fee is C$10,000 per territory.
These markets include Winnipeg, Calgary, Edmonton and Vancouver. For territories in markets not
included above and applied for prior to November 1, 1999, the initial franchise fee was waived. A security
deposit was required for such territories as follows: for territories applied for prior to July 1, 1999, the
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required security deposit was C$2,000; for territories applied after July 1, 1999 but prior to November 1,
1999, the required security deposit was C$5,000. The security deposit will be refundable upon the
expiration of the franchise agreement less amounts due to Liberty Canada provided that the franchisee
was open for business by February 1 following the effective date of the franchise agreement. For
territories applied for after October 31, 1999, and before July 1, 2001, the initial franchise fee was
C$10,000 per territory throughout Canada. Beginning July 1, 2001, the initial franchise fee is C$12,500
per territory throughout Canada. The Company intends to increase the initial franchise fee to C$15,000
beginning January 1, 2003. Each franchise fee or required deposit is assessed based on each
geographic area licensed by the franchisee, rather than based on the number of office locations the
franchisee operates.

Liberty Canada also charges franchisees a royalty. For territories applied for after June 30, 2002,
the royalty will be 14% of Gross Receipts, with a C$5,000 minimum during the first year of operation and
an C$8,000 minimum during the second year of operation. For territories applied for before July 1, 2002,
Liberty Canada charges a royalty that, in some cases, is less favorable to Liberty Canada.

Liberty Canada also charges an advertising fee of various amounts depending upon the terms of
each franchise agreement. For new territories sold during or subsequent to 1999, the advertising fee
charged is 5% of gross receipts beginning in the third tax season of operations.

General. In return for the fees paid, the Company or a Master Broker may provide some or all of
the following products and services to its franchisees: (i) a minimum of five days of initial training in
business operations, (ii) the use of the Company's tax return preparation software and regular updates to
the software, (iii) a joint advertising program which will be funded through the advertising fees paid by
both franchisee and Company operated offices, (iv) annual tax training programs which assist franchisees
in training seasonal tax preparation employees, (v) standardized operating manuals, (vi) field support in
the areas of management, systems, software and questions regarding tax return preparation, and (vii)
access to the Company's refund anticipation loan program. Franchisees will be subject to a quality control
system to be developed by the Company, which will include statistical measurements, office visits and
customer interviews by Company personnel.

From time to time, the Company is required to terminate franchisees because of their failure to
perform. Some of the reasons for termination involve the failure to open offices as required, the failure to
follow the Company’s system or other requirements, or low tax return volume. The Company anticipates
and plans for such terminations in its budget. The Company writes off any unpaid foans from franchisees
and maintains a bad debt reserve for that purpose. When the Company terminates a franchisee, it seeks
to resell the territory. If the terminated franchisee has a customer list, the Company takes possession of
the list and uses it for future marketing purposes. The Company has terminated a total of 59 United
States franchisees, all since the end of the 2000 tax season, and has terminated a total of 86 Canadian
franchisees. Most of the Canadian terminations relate to franchises that existed prior to the Company’s
acquisition of its original 60% interest in Liberty Canada.

Regulation of Franchise Operations. The Company's United States franchising activities are
subject both to federal and state laws and regulations. Federal law and rules require a franchisor to give
all prospective franchisees disclosure about the nature of the franchise investment in the form of an
offering circular on the earlier of (i) the first personal meeting, (ii) 10 business days before any binding
agreement is signed, or (iii) 10 business days before any consideration is paid. The offering circular may
be prepared in accordance with the format designated by the North American Securities Administrators
Association called the Uniform Franchise Offering Circular ("UFOC"). In addition, at least five business
days before signing any binding agreement, the franchisor must provide the prospective franchisee with a
franchise agreement that reflects the specific terms on which the franchisee will be licensed to do
business. There is no private right of action available to franchisees and prospective franchisees under
the federal rules. Franchisees who claim violations must bring their complaints to the Federal Trade
Commission. Violators are subject to civil penalties of up to $10,000 per violation.
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Federal law and rules govern franchisor conduct in all states. In addition, California, Hawaii,
lllinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, South Dakota, Virginia,
Washington and Wisconsin have enacted state franchise laws. Federal law and rules permit state laws to
govern franchising if they provide protection that is greater than or equal to that provided by federal law
and rules. Most of these state laws require franchisors to provide specific disclosure to franchisees,
generally in the UFOC format document or a format very similar to the UFOC format.

Most state laws provide franchisees with a private right of action, in addition to administrative
penalties, if a franchisor fails to comply with a state's franchising laws. Moreover, some states, like
California, have laws that govern the relationship between franchisor and franchisee after the franchise
agreement is signed, such as laws that (i) mandate "notice” and "right to cure" periods before termination,
(i) restrict the grounds for termination without the opportunity to "cure” a default, and (iii) restrict the
franchisor's ability to enforce agreements not to compete with the franchisor following termination.

Both the federal rules and the UFOC format require a franchisor to update its offering circular to
include new financial statements and in the event of material changes, such as significant changes in
financial condition, changes to major fee structures, or a change in the business opportunity being
offered.

There are no federal franchise laws in Canada. Alberta has provincial laws requiring use of a
disclosure document similar to the UFOC format document. The Company provides every potential
Canadian franchisee with a disclosure document.

Loans to Franchisees

From time to time, the Company extends financing to certain franchisees for initial franchise fees,
cash advances for working capital and/or the purchase of Company-owned stores. The financing is in the
form of promissory notes payable to the Company. The notes carry interest at an annual rate of 12% and
are personally guaranteed by the franchisee and/or the owner of the franchise. At April 30, 2002, the
aggregate amount due to the Company from franchisees for such financing is $8,121,765, including
accrued interest. Any failure by the franchisees to pay such amounts, if the amounts are not recoverable
by us through other means, could have a material adverse affect on the Company. A total of 33
franchisees have been or are currently in default to the Company. The Company restructured the debt of
15 franchisees, and purchased the territories of 14 others. As of July 1, 2002, 4 franchisees remain in
default, and owe the Company a total amount of $648,940.

In order to make additional financing available to its franchisees, the Company has entered into
an arrangement with TLC, LLC, a third party lender which provides lease-based financing to franchisees.
The Company has agreed to guaranty these franchisee obligations, up to an aggregate maximum of $3
million. In order to secure its obligations to TLC, the Company is required to escrow cash with a third
party escrow agent, against which TLC can draw if the Company fails to meet its guaranty obligations. At
April 30, 2002, the Company had deposited approximately $200,000 in this escrow account, which is
shown as restricted cash on the Company’s balance sheet. Under the terms of its agreement with TLC,
the Company’s obligations to escrow cash may increase to as much as $500,000. Under the TLC
agreement, the minimum escrow amount is $100,000.

Tax Return Preparers

The Company and its franchisees will utilize the services of part-time tax preparers. The bulk of
these preparers will be hired by franchisees for the January through April tax season with the number of
preparers at any given time being adjusted to the demands of that office. Peak employment is expected
to occur in February. The Company anticipates that a typical office will increase the number of tax
preparers from as few as one during the off-season to as many as ten during the peak of tax season. See
"Risk Factors--Business Is Highly Seasonal” and "--Need for a Large Pool of Low Cost Seasonal Labor.”
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The Company anticipates that its tax preparers will be individuals seeking to supplement their
incomes and who have flexible schedules, such as retirees, undergraduate and graduate students and
part-time employees of other firms. The Company anticipates that many of its seasonal employees will
have had prior experience with other tax return service companies, and further anticipates recruiting
persons taking the Company's tax preparation training programs. See "Business--Training Programs.”

Although wages will vary depending on an office’s regional location, the Company expects that
the average wage for seasonal tax preparers will be approximately $6 per hour (C$86), increasing by 2-3%
a year for each year of service. Tax preparers will also typically receive 5% of the gross dollar volume
they generate as a bonus paid on April 30, effectively giving most preparers the ability to earn from $8 to
$15 (C$8 to C$15 in Canada) an hour.

Regulation

in the United States, the tax return preparation industry is regulated by the Internal Revenue Code and
its associated regulations. These laws and regulations govern the preparation of tax returns and the
subsequent electronic filing of tax returns. See “Risk Factors.- Future Availability of Electronic Filing.” The
IRS may refuse to grant an EFIN if a principal was assessed a tax preparer penalty, been convicted of an
IRS or monetary crime, failed to file a tax return or pay taxes, or cannot pass an IRS background
suitability check. Revenue Canada has promulgated similar regulations regarding electronic filing and
discounting. In order to operate non-franchised offices in Canada, Liberty Canada must obtain E-File
numbers for each office. The electronic filing of tax returns is essential to this Company. To the extent
that the Company or its subsidiaries are unable to obtain electronic filing numbers, and the associated
ability to file tax returns electronically, operations will be severely impaired and purchasers could lose
some or all of their investment in the Company.

States also have laws and regulations governing the preparation of state tax returns. Most states
have regulations regarding the electronic filing of tax returns. However, many states accept federal
suitability testing, so if a franchisee can obtain an EFIN from the IRS they can file many state returns
electronically as well.

Both United States law and Canadian law require income tax return preparers, among other
things, to identify themselves as paid preparers on all tax returns which they prepare, to provide
customers with copies of their tax returns and to retain copies of the returns they prepare for three years.
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in the imposition of penalties. The laws also provide
for assessment of penalties against a preparer who (i) negligently or intentionally disregards federal tax
rules or regulations, (ii) takes a position on a tax return which does not have a realistic possibility of being
sustained on its merits, (jii) willfully attempts to understate a taxpayer's tax liability or (iv) aids or abets in
the understatement of such tax liability. In addition, several states of the United States have enacted or
are considering enactment of legislation which would reguiate tax return preparers. The Company does
not carry errors and omissions insurance to cover any penaities that may be imposed. See "Risk Factors-
-Insurance Coverage.”

The Company will be subject to regulation in connection with its franchise operations in the
United States and in the Province of Alberta, Canada. See "Business--Franchise Operations--Regulation
of Franchise Operations" and "Risk Factors--Regulation of Franchise Operations.” In addition, refund
anticipation loan programs and proprietary schools (such as the Company's proposed tax training
programs) are regulated in some states. See "Risk Factors--Government Regulation.”

Competition

The tax return preparation and electronic filing business is highly competitive. The Company
believes that its competition will come primarily from three sources: (i) large return preparation services
such as H&R Block and Jackson Hewitt, (i) numerous small or seasonal tax preparation services,
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including accounting and law firms, and (iii) individuals who prepare their own returns. Many of the firms
offering tax preparation services, and many firms not otherwise in the tax preparation business, provide
electronic filing and refund loan services to the public. In particular, both H&R Block and Jackson Hewitt
have programs, including refund anticipation loan programs, that are substantially similar to those the
Company proposes to provide. Commercial tax return preparers and electronic filers are highly
competitive with regard to price, service and reputation for quality. This competitiveness may restrict
growth opportunities for the Company and the prices the Company can charge for its services.

H&R Block dominates the industry. As of July 30, 2001, the date of filing of its most current
annual report on Form 10K, H&R Block reported that it had 10,450 offices in operation in the United
States, Canada, Australia and Europe as of April 30, 2001, the end of its most recent fiscal year. In the
United States alone, H&R Block operated 9,072 offices, of which 4,012 were owned by franchisees. H&R
Block also estimated that during its fiscal year ended April 30, 2001, it served approximately 17.6 million
taxpayers in the United States, and prepared approximately 16,442,000 individual United States income
tax returns (of which approximately 81% were filed electronically), constituting about 14% of the IRS's
estimate of total United States individual income tax returns filed as of April 30, 2001. According to an
H&R Block press release, H&R Block prepared approximately 18,100,000 returns as of April 30, 2002. In
addition, as of that date H&R Block operated 944 offices in Canada, and filed approximately 1,752,000
Canadian returns with Revenue Canada during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2001. Because of its size,
widespread name recognition and the availability of capital to it, the Company believes that H&R Block
will offer formidable competition to the Company's efforts to establish and expand its tax return
preparation business. '

Jackson Hewitt, which is owned by Cendant Corp., is the second largest provider of retail income
tax preparation services in the United States. As of April 1, 2002, the date of filing of Cendant’s most
current annual report on Form 10-K/A, Cendant Corp. reported that Jackson Hewitt had approximately
3,800 franchised and company-owned offices in 47 states. Cendant also reported that Jackson Hewitt
filed 2,200,000 tax returns in 2001. In a press release dated May 16, 2002, Jackson Hewitt announced
that they had prepared more than 2,500,000 tax returns during tax season 2002 at its more than 3,800
locations. Although Jackson Hewitt has no operations in Canada, the Company believes that once the
Company is able to establish a broader base of offices in the United States, Jackson Hewitt will offer
competition in many of the markets which the Company will seek to enter.

Recent and Prospective Acquisitions and Sales
During Fiscal 2002, and as of the date of this Circular, the Company purchased a total of 42

existing franchised territories and one independently owned tax practice in a number of jurisdictions.
Aggregate purchase price, terms and prior year return volume are as follows:

Purchase Cash Paid at Notes Payable to Forgiveness of Prior Year Return
Price Closing Seller Company Debt Volume
$3,054,443 $371,070 $263,876 $2,239,497 17,195

As of the date of this Circular, the Company resold to franchisees 31 existing franchised locations
and one independently owned tax practice. The aggregate sale price and terms are as follows:

Sale Price Cash Received at Closing Notes Payable to Company
$1,503,278 $278,844 $1,224,436
Litigation

On January 31, 2000, the Company and thirteen of its franchisees filed suit in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, Norfolk Division against H&R Block. The Company and its
franchisees alleged that H&R Block engaged in false advertising through the use of advertising which
promoted their refund anticipation loan as a product which allows the customer to “Spend more quality
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time with your refund”, gives to the customer a “Rapid Refund”, the “refund amount” or “a check in the
amount of your refund”, without disclosing that the product at issue is a bank loan less fees. H&R Block
denied the allegations. However, on February 17, 2000, shortly after the beginning of a hearing on the
Company’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction filed in this case, H&R Block agreed in a Consent Order to
discontinue the advertising in question. In November 2000, a trial of this case was conducted and on
February 23, 2001 the district court issued an Opinion and Order and then issued a Corrected Circular
Opinion and Order on March 7, 2001. The Court ruled that H&R Block had willfully, maliciously, and in
bad faith committed false advertising in violation of the Lanham Act and had violated an IRS regulation,
which requires that refund anticipation loans clearly be advertised as loans. The Court awarded $506,477
in damages, plus costs and attorney’s fees in the amount of $314,898.69. The Court also entered a
permanent nationwide injunction against H&R Block requiring their future refund anticipation loan
advertisements to (1) be in compliance with IRS regulations; (2) not refer to a loan as an “advance”,
“refund amount”, or a check in the “amount of your refund”, unless prominently and clearly stating that the
product is a “loan”; and (3) not use the term “Rapid Refund” in connection with a ioan.

H&R Block appealed the district court’s ruling on several grounds. On January 10, 2002, the
Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed in part, vacated in part, and remanded in part the district court’s
ruling. First, the appeals court upheld the finding that H&R Block had committed false advertising and had
done so willfully, maliciously and in bad faith, and in violation of IRS regulations, which prohibit
misrepresenting loans as refunds in advertising. As such, the appeals court upheld in its entirety the
award of $314,898.69 in attorney’s fees and costs, which H&R Block paid to the Company with interest in
February 2002. The appeals court vacated the third prong of the nationwide permanent injunction against
use of “Rapid Refund”, holding that the first two prongs of the injunction, which H&R Block did not
challenge on appeal, sufficiently barred H&R Block from ever again misrepresenting loans as refunds in
advertising. And finally, the appeals court held that the $506,477 damage award had been calculated in
an incorrect manner and sent that issue back down to the district court to recalculate.

In late September 2002, the district court issued a new order recalculating its award of damages
to the plaintiffs, pursuant to the instructions of the court of appeals, in the amount of $438,404.11. The
district court also awarded to the plaintiffs, as the prevailing party on appeal, $52,220.07 in additional
attorney’s fees incurred in defending H&R Block’s appeals.

In addition, the Company has been involved in litigation normally incident to the business affairs
of the Company. Management believes that this litigation, neither individually nor in the aggregate, is
likely to materially adversely affect the company or its financial condition.

Outstanding Indebtedness
indebtedness of the Company

The Company has both term and line of credit indebtedness, and has substantial repayment
obligations under certain of the indebtedness over the next several years.

In 2001, the Company received a $2 million subordinated loan from Envest, which is secured by
the Company’s assets. Under this loan, the Company must make quarterly interest payments at 12%, and
must pay the loan in full in July 2005. In addition, in conjunction with the making of this loan, the
Company issued a warrant to purchase 46,340 shares of Class A Common Stock to Envest, which are
exercisable by Envest for nominal consideration until July 30, 2008. Envest is entitled to put the Shares
underlying this warrant to the Company and require the Company to repurchase those Shares beginning
July 30, 2004. If Envest elects to exercise this put right, the Company will be obligated to acquire the
warrant or the exercised Shares for a price calculated in accordance with a separate agreement to which
Envest and the Company are parties. This price would be established according to a formula that takes
into account a calculated current value of the Company as of the end of the calendar quarter preceding
the event giving rise to the put.
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The Company has a $5 million line of credit with SunTrust that expires on May 31, 2003.
The Company is also indebted to SunTrust under a $1.4 million term loan. The term note is secured by
certain notes receivable held by the Company, and is payable in principal installments of $500,000,
$500,000 and $400,000 in February 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The term note bears interest at
LIBOR plus 1.85%, and the line of credit bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.25%.

The Company has a contractual obligation to Orrtax to pay the remaining batance of is obligations
for the perpetual license for the Orrtax software. These remaining payments total $2.7 million, and are
payable $700,000 on March 1, 2003, $1,000,000 on March 1, 2004 and $1,000,000 on March 1, 2005.

in April 30, 2002, the Company had no remaining balance cutstanding under its line of credit with
the Bank of Montreal, which is used to fund Canadian operations during the tax season. That line of credit
has now expired, but the Company expects to obtain a similar line of credit for the 2003 and subsequent
tax seasons. |

The Company also has other obligations and indebtedness, including its guaranty obligations to
TLC, obligations incurring in connection with the acquisition of acquired tax practices, which aggregated
approximately $514,000 as of April 30, 2002, and mortgage obligations incurred in the ordinary course,
which aggregated approximately $260,000 at April 30, 2002.

Restrictive Loan Covenants

Under the Company’s loan agreement with Envest, the Company is subject to certain covenants that
may restrict the Company’s ability to borrow funds in the future. Among other requirements, the Company
must obtain Envest's written consent in order to incur any additional debt, excluding:

¢ aline of credit in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6 million and/or any letter
of credit relating to any guaranty on behaif of Liberty Canada;

+ subordinated indebtedness in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2 million,
provided that such subordinated indebtedness is obtained by the Company on
substantially similar terms and conditions as the Envest loan, and is subordinate to the
Envest loan;

e trade payables incurred in the ordinary course of business;

s purchase money indebtedness incurred in connection with the acquisition of tax practices
or other businesses;

» indebtedness incurred to acquire equipment or other goods on a purchase money basis,
secured only by a lien against the asset acquired,;

+ indebtedness incurred for capitalized lease obligations, which shall not exceed $300,000
in the aggregate; and

indebtedness secured by real estate of Borrower in a principal amount less than the fair
market value of the property secured.

Additionally, the Company must obtain Envest’s written consent in order to guarantee the

indebtedness of Liberty Canada if such indebtedness is not required to be repaid in full by June 30 of
each year, or if such indebtedness exceeds the following limits:
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e $11,240,000 until June 30, 2003
e $12,430,000 until June 30, 2004
e $14,870,000 until June 30, 2005
Lastly, the Company must obtain Envest’'s written consent to guarantee the obligations or

indebtedness of the Company's franchisees, except in the case of guarantees made in the normal course
of business and not exceeding $3,000,000 in the aggregate.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Overview

The Company is a franchisor and operator of a system of offices in the United States and Canada
engaged in the preparation of personal income tax returns. Through this system of offices, the Company
also offers its customers refund anticipation loans and personal income tax refund discounting.
Approximately 92% of the Company’s revenue is derived from franchise-related activities, including
royalties and advertising fees, franchise fees and refund anticipation loan fees.

The Company’s financial information reflects a variety of changes and the Company’s rapid
growth, as evidenced by the following:

s Prior to the 2000 tax season, the Company bought 11 franchise territories in the United
States and resold all of those territories to other franchisees, and also bought 5 existing tax
preparation businesses and resold all of those businesses to franchisees. The Company
awarded 416 new franchise territories {not all of which operated during the 2000 season) and
sold 19 Company-owned territories to franchisees. A total of 184 territories operated in the
United States during the 2000 tax season. In Canada, Liberty Canada awarded 52 new
franchise territories and opened four new Company-owned territories. Liberty Canada also
terminated 73 franchise territories. A total of 221 territories operated during the 2000 tax
season.

o Prior to the 2001 tax season, the Company bought 15 franchised territories and 2
independently owned tax practices in the United States and resold 6 of the franchised
territories and both of the independently owned tax practices to other franchisees. The
Company awarded 275 new franchise territories (not all of which operated during the 2001
tax season). A total of 256 territories operated in the United States during the 2001 tax
season. In Canada, Liberty Canada awarded 49 new franchise locations (not all of which
operated during the 2001 tax season). A total of 217 territories operated in Canada during the
2001 tax season.

e Prior to the 2002 tax season, the Company bought 28 franchised territories and 1
independently owned tax practice in the United States. The Company sold 18 Company-
owned territories and the independently owned tax practice to franchisees. The Company
awarded 492 new franchise territories (not all of which operated during the 2002 tax season).
The Company also entered into 9 Master Broker Agreements. A total of 351 territories
operated in the United States during the 2002 tax season. In Canada, Liberty Canada
awarded 27 new franchise territories (not all of which operated during the 2002 tax season).
A total of 198 territories operated in Canada during the 2002 tax season.

s Prior to the 2003 tax season and as of the date of this Circular, the Company bought 6
franchised territories in the United States. The Company sold 4 Company-owned territories to
franchisees. The Company has awarded 44 new franchise territories (not all of which will
operate during the 2003 tax season). The Company estimates that a total of 496 territories
will operate in the United States during the 2003 tax season. Liberty Canada has awarded 12
new franchised territories (not all of which will operate during the 2003 tax season). The
Company estimates that a total of 220 territories will operate in the Canada during the 2003
tax season.

¢ In October 2001, the Company acquired the minority 40% interest in Liberty Canada from
DataTax, making the Company the sole shareholder of Liberty Canada. As part of the
transaction, DataTax, also made a $2,000,000 investment in the Company. DataTax sold the
minority interest and made the cash investment in exchange for stock of the Company.
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Results of Operations

Revenue and Gain on Sale of Intangibles and Fixed Assets. Revenue and gain on sale of
intangibles and fixed assets, was $18,024,430 for Fiscal 2002 compared to $10,714,825 in 2001. 22.3%
of the Company's Fiscal 2002 revenue was attributable to Liberty Canada compared to more than 31.1%
for Fiscal 2001. In an effort to build brand name recognition and to attract new franchisees and
customers, the Company spent $3,026,411 on advertising expenses for the period ending April 30, 2002.
These advertising expenses included advertising production costs, Canadian and United States franchise
opportunities, and advertisements for tax return preparation during the tax season.

Revenues from tax return preparation, bank product and tax discounting fees were $5,437,457 in
2002 and $2,792,455 in 2001. Bank product and tax discounting fees are the fees generated from the
Canadian version of the refund anticipation loan program that the Company implements in the United
States. The increase in revenues was a result of the Company operating more territories in Fiscal 2002
compared to Fiscal 2001. Royalties and advertising fees from franchisees, net of royalty concessions,
were $6,779,543 in 2002 and $3,183,583 in 2001. The increase in revenues was a result of a greater
number of franchisees in Fiscal 2002 than in Fiscal 2001. The increase was ailso due to more of the
existing franchisees becoming subject to a royalty structure in Fiscal 2002 that was more favorable to the
Company than the previous royalty structure. A significant portion of this revenue is attributed to Liberty
Canada.

The Company’s income included net gain on the sale to franchisees of Company-owned locations
in the amount of $89,563 in 2002 and $144,737 in 2001. The remainder of the other income and
expenses included interest income from notes receivable from franchisees, finance charges on accounts
receivable from franchisees and interest on cash balances of $957,709 in 2002 and $511,163 in 2001,
interest expense of $662,371 in 2002 and $324,701 in 2001, and miscellaneous net income of $182,832
in 2002 and $14,607 in 2001.

Expenses. Operating expenses, including selling, general and administrative expenses
increased to $16,664,345 in Fiscal 2002 from $10,760,285 in Fiscal 2001, primarily from increased start
up operations in the United States.

Operating Income. Profits from operations in Fiscal 2002 were $1,270,522 versus losses of
$190,197 in 2001. This was due primarily to continued expansion of operations in the United States,
where the Company began staffing up in earlier years for future expansion. During Fiscal 2002, the
Company purchased 1 existing tax preparation business for a total of $10,511. This business, as well as
31 Company-owned territories, were sold to franchisees for a total of $1,395,617. Additionally, 171 new
franchised territories operated during the year. During Fiscal 2001 the Company bought 55 existing
franchised territories and 2 independently owned tax preparation businesses of varying sizes for a total of
$1,284,644 and sold to franchisees both of the independently owned locations as well as 37 Company-
owned territories. These 37 locations were sold for a total of $779,500. Additionally, 142 new franchised
territories operated during the year.

.Income Taxes. For the year ended April 30,2002, the Company recorded an income tax benefit
of $407,000 which resulted from the reversal of a deferred tax valuation allowance of $1,323,000 partially
offset by the tax effect of 2002 income.

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some or all of a deferred tax
asset will not be realized. As of April 30, 2001, the Company had recorded a valuation allowance to fully
offset its deferred tax asset. During 2002, the Company reversed the valuation allowance and recognized
the benefit of its deferred tax assets. Based upon the Company’s profitability in 2002 and its expected
future earnings, the Company determined that it is more likely than not that the asset would be realized.
The Company’s balance sheet as of April 30,2002 reflects a net deferred tax asset of $407,000.
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Liguidity. The Company has experienced and will continue to experience significant fluctuating
demands on its working capital due to actual and anticipated growth. On April 30, 2002, the Company
had cash and restricted cash of $1,827,433, which was a $402,675 net decrease from the previous year.
The decrease in cash and restricted cash in Fiscal 2002 was due, in part, to the following significant
events in Fiscal 2002: an increase in receivables of $2,957,556, asset purchases of $538,215, expenses
of $309,176 arising out of internal software development, and repayment of $3,600,102 of debt.

The Company’s liquidity is impacted by six loans or debt-related obligations. See “Business-
Outstanding Indebtedness.” The Company has a line of credit at SunTrust Bank in the amount of $5
million for working capital purposes (the “SunTrust Loan”). Pursuant to the current terms of the SunTrust
Loan, the SunTrust Loan must be paid down to zero for at least thirty days each year.

Liberty Canada had two lines of credit at the Bank of Montreal in the aggregate amount of
C$13,750,000, which were used for Liberty Canada’s refund anticipation loan funding and working capital
purposes. These lines of credit expired in May 2002. Liberty Canada intends to renew both lines of credit.
However there can be no assurance that they will be available on terms favorable to the Company. The
Company does not have a line of credit at any other banking establishment.

The Company is indebted to Envest pursuant to the Envest loan. See “Risk Factors--Risks
Associated with Outstanding Indebtedness™ and “Business-Outstanding Indebtedness.”

The Company is also indebted to Orrtax Software, Inc. in the aggregate amount of $2,700,000.
The debt is the result of the Company’s purchase of a perpetual license to modify and use a tax
preparation software program. Payments are due as follows: $700,000 on March 1, 2003, $1 million on
March 1, 2004 and $1 million on March 1, 2005. If the Company cannot generate sufficient cash from
operations or future offerings of debt or securities to pay the debt when it becomes due, the Company
may be subject to various remedies that would have a material adverse affect on the Company.

The Company’s liquidity is also affected by the requirement that it maintain an escrow account to
secure a portion of its potentiai obligation to TLC with respect to lease-based credit extended by TLC to
certain of the Company's franchisees. The Company’'s maximum exposure under this arrangement with
TLC is $3 million, and the Company may be obligated to deposit as much as $500,000 in escrow,
depending on the outstanding balance of TLC’s financing to franchisees.

Beginning in July 2004, when the Envest right to put its warrant (or the Shares underlying its
warrant) to the Company matures, the Company may have additional liquidity needs to the extent
necessary to satisfy this put obligation. See “Business-Outstanding Indebtedness-Indebtedness of the
Company.”

Management believes that, for the short term, current assets are sufficient to satisfy current
liabilities without the need for additional capital and management does not anticipate any further private
offerings of equity in order to raise capital. However there can be no assurance that additional financing
will not be needed or, if needed, that it will be available on terms favorabte to the Company.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 and 142

In July 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations, which requires the purchase method of accounting
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. The Company also adopted certain
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, as required for goodwill and intangible
assets resulting from business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001. The Company acquired
the remaining 40% interest in the Canadian Subsidiary effective October 31, 2001. Goodwill acquired in
this purchase business combination, which was completed before SFAS No. 142 was adopted in full, has
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not been amortized. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired before July 1, 2001 were amortized and
tested for impairment in accordance with the appropriate pre-Statement 142 accounting literature. On
May 1, 2002, the Company fully adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142 and ceased amortization of
goodwill. A transition impairment analysis will be completed during fiscal year 2003.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 143,
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset
retirement costs. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-live
assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the assets. SFAS
No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company does not believe the
imptementation of this standard will have a material effect on the Company's financial condition or resuits
of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets". SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or
disposal of long-lived assets. This Statement requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. SFAS No. 144 requires
companies to separately report discontinued operations and extends that reporting to a component of an
entity that either has been disposed of (by sale, abandonment, or in a distribution to owners) or is
classified as held for sale. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or
fair value less cost to sell. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.
SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of." The Company does not believe the implementation of this
standard will have a material effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and
64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. SFAS No. 145 rescinds FASB
Statement No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishments of Debt,” and an amendment of that
Statement, FASB Statement No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund
Requirements”. SFAS No. 145 also rescinds FASB Statement No. 44, “Accounting for Intangible Assets
of Motor Carriers”. SFAS No. 145 amends FASB No. 13, Accounting for Leases, to eliminate an
inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required
accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback
transactions. SFAS No. 145 also amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to make various
technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions. SFAS
No. 145 is effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The Company does not believe the
implementation of this standard will have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition or resuits
of operations.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146
In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or

Disposal Activities,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition
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for Certain Empioyee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring).” This Statement requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or
disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost
as defined in Issue 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’'s commitment to an exit plan. A
fundamental conclusion reached by the Board in this Statement is that an entity’'s commitment to a plan,
by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that meets the definition of a liability. Therefore,
this Statement eliminates the definition and requirements for recognition of exit costs in Issue 94-3. This
Statement also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. SFAS No.
146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early
application encouraged. SFAS No. 146 is effective prospectively after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146
was issued late in June and management is in the process of evaluating the impact of this new standard.

Seasonality

Given the seasonal nature of the tax preparation business, the Company has generated and
expects to continue to generate substantially all of its revenues during January through April of each year.
During fiscal year 2002, the Company generated approximately 64% of its revenues during this period.
The Company generally operates at a loss through the first three quarters of each fiscal year, during
which it incurs costs associated with preparing for the upcoming tax season. During these quarters, the
Company relies on revenues generated during the prior tax season and its credit facility to finance its
operations.
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MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain information regarding the Company's directors and executive
officers.

Name Age (1) Position with the Company

John T. Hewitt 53 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer and President

Martha O'Gorman 44 Vice President of Marketing

Donna Halligan 50 Vice President of Franchise Operations and
Secretary

Kathleen Curry 39 Vice President of Legal

Raymond A. Dunn, Hl 42 Vice President of Corporate Development

Charles N. Lovelace 49 Vice President of Franchise Development

Timothy J. Robinson 40 Chief Financial Officer

Mark C. Johnson 45 Vice President of Area Development

Steven Sardo - 43 President, Liberty Canada

George Robson 55 Director

Gary Golding 45 Director

Steven Lepkowski 40 Director

Ross Londfield 61 Director

James Davis 52 Director

Steven Ibbotson 40 Director

(1) AtJuly 1, 2002.

John T. Hewitt has been Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company since its formation in 1996. Before that, he was the founder of Jackson
Hewitt, where he served as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer from 1982
(and President from 1986) to 1996. During Mr. Hewitt's tenure, Jackson Hewitt grew from six offices to
over 1,300 offices. From 1970 through 1981, Mr. Hewitt was employed by H&R Block, becoming a
Regional Director in charge of over 200 offices in Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Delaware. Together
with his father, Daniel J. Hewitt, Mr. Hewitt created "Hewtax," the basic tax return preparation software
used by Jackson Hewitt.
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Martha O'Gorman has been Vice President of Marketing of the Company since its formation in
1996. From 1989 through 1996, Ms. O'Gorman served as Director of Communications for Jackson
Hewitt. Before that, Ms. O'Gorman was a partner in an advertising firm in Virginia Beach, Virginia.

Donna Halligan has been Vice President of Franchise Operations and Secretary of the Company
since its formation in 1996. From 1994 to 1996 she was employed by Jackson Hewitt as Director of
Training and Director of Franchisee Operations. Prior to joining Jackson Hewitt's headquarters
operation, Ms. Halligan owned and operated six Jackson Hewitt franchise offices in the Syracuse, New
York territory from 1987 to 1994. Before that, Ms. Halligan operated an independent tax preparation firm
and worked for H&R Block for five years as a tax preparer.

Kathleen Curry has been Vice President of Legal of the Company since July 1997. From 1992
through 1995, Ms. Curry served variously as Corporate Attorney, Director of Tax and Software and
Regional Director for Jackson Hewitt. For a brief period during the latter part of 1995 and early part of
1996, Ms. Curry served as a Product Manager for Best Programs, Inc.

Raymond A. Dunn, 1l has been the Vice President of Corporate Development since May 2000.
From June 1999 until November 2000, Mr. Dunn was the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. From
August 1994 until June 1999, Mr. Dunn worked for InfiNet Company in Norfolk, Virginia in the varying
capacities of Director of Business Development, Director of Product Development and Controller &
Business Manager. From November 1983 until July 1994, Mr. Dunn provided business consulting
services as a Certified Public Accountant.

Charles N. Lovelace has been the Vice President of Franchise Development since May 2000.
He also served in the same position from April 1999 to December 1999. From April 1991 until March
1999, Mr. Lovelace was the President of Junior Achievement of Greater Hampton Roads Inc. in Norfolk,
Virginia.

Timothy J. Robinson has been Chief Financial Officer since December 2000. From August 1999
until December 2000 Mr. Robinson was Assistant Chief Financial Officer. From 1998 to 1993 Mr.
Robinson was a Division Controller for Pembroke Enterprises in Virginia Beach, Virginia and from 1994
to 1998 he was Controlier for Virtexco Corp. in Norfolk, Virginia. From 1990 to 1994 Mr. Robinson owned
Jackson Hewitt franchises in Los Angeles, California and was employed by Jackson Hewitt from 1992 to
1994 as a field consultant and later a regional director.

Mark C. Johnson has been the Vice President of Area Development since June 2001. From
March 2000 to May 2001 Mr. Johnson was Assistant Vice President of Franchise Development. From
February 1999 until February 2000, Mr. Johnson was an independent business consultant. Mr. Johnson
served as a Senior Franchise Development Representative for Jackson Hewitt.

Steven Sardo became President of Liberty Tax Services in Canada in April 1998. From October 1995 to

April 1998, Mr. Sardo was President and co-founder of Save-Smart Insurance & Financial Services Inc.
Mr. Sardo was Vice President of Marketing for Mainway Insurance Brokers Ltd. from January 1992
through October 1995.

George Robson has been a Director since April 1999. Mr. Robson is currently retired. He served
as the Chief Financial Officer for Dendrite International, a sales and software concern in Morristown,
New Jersey from June 1997 until June 2002. Mr. Robson was the Chief Financial Officer for H & R Block
in Kansas City, Missouri, from January 1996 until May 1997, and held the same title and position with
Unisys Corp. in Blue Bell, Pennsylvania from January 1990 until December 1995.

Gary Golding has been a Director since October 2000. Mr. Golding has also served as a
General Partner with Edison Venture Fund in Lawrenceville, New Jersey since October 1997. Edison
Venture Fund holds 43,533 Shares and 160,000 shares of Class A Preferred Stock of the Company. Mr.
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Golding was a General Partner with CEO Venture Fund in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania from October 1985
until October 1997.

Steven Lepkowski has been a Director since June 1999. Since October 1984 until the present,
Mr. Lepkowski has also served as a Marketing Manager for Texas Instruments in Dallas, Texas.

James Davis has been a Director since June 1999. Since May 1977 until the present, he has
also served as a mathematician for the Federal Aviation Administration in Pomona, New Jersey.

Steven Ibbotson has been a Director since June 1999. Since September 1997 until the present,
he has also served as a General Manager for Farm Business Consultants in Calgary, Alberta. From
September 1995 until September 1997, he served as a General Manager-Western Canada for Farm
Business Consultants also in Calgary, Alberta. From September 1993 until September 1995 he served
as Director of Marketing for the same employer in London, Ontario.

Ross Longfield has been a Director since February 2002. He is currently retired after serving in a
variety of executive positions for Beneficial Corporation and subsequently Household International, Inc.,
which acquired Beneficial Bank. From June of 1998 until December 2000, he was Managing Director of
Household Retail Services. From June of 1992 until December 2000, he was Chief Executive Officer of
Beneficial National Bank USA. From June of 1982 until December 2000, he served as Chief Executive
Officer of Beneficial Tax Masters. From June 1997 until June 1998, he was Executive Vice President of
Beneficial Management Corporation. From June 1994 until June 1997, he served as Senior Vice
President of Beneficial Management Corporation.

All directors are elected at the annual meeting of stockholders for a term of one year, and will
hold office until their successors are elected and duly qualified. See "Description of Capital Stock--
General" for a description of the rights of holders of each class of Common Stock with respect to the
election of directors. Directors receive no cash compensation for serving as directors. The Board of
Directors may, from time to time, authorize the award of options to directors to purchase Company
common stock in an amount and at a price determined by the Board of Directors. To date, each outside
director has been awarded 6,000 options, except for Gary Golding, who has been awarded 4,000
options and Ross Longfield, who has been awarded 2,000 options. All officers serve at the discretion of
the Board of Directors. ‘ :

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has made loans to an officer. Creative Management Systems, Inc. (CMS) owns 9
franchised territories (2 of which operated during the 2002 tax season). CMS is controlied by Charles N.
Lovelace. The Company financed CMS’ purchase of the franchised territories and advanced operating
funds to CMS. The Company has also bought 7 franchised territories previously owned by CMS for an
aggregate amount of $340,000. At April 30, 2002, total financing and advances equaled $1,181,835,
accrued interest equaled $154,981, total repayments (including 12% interest) equaled $735,370, and the
balance outstanding equaled $601,466. The Company anticipates that it will continue to make loans to
CMS. The Company has not made any loans to directors. The Company has made loans to Liberty
Canada. As of the date of this Circular, the total amount due from Liberty Canada is $1,857,790,
including 12% interest. All amounts due from Liberty Canada are expected to be collected by April 30,
2006.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company sold customer lists and other assets to Danny Hewitt, the son
of John T. Hewitt, for $100,000. No gain was recognized on these sales. Also during Fiscal 2002, the
Company purchased customer lists and other assets from Danny Hewitt for $100,000 to be applied to
the purchase of another franchise territory. Consideration paid consisted of $41,250 for cancellation of
debt, the issuance of 2,870 shares of Class A Common Stock and $15,000 in cash. At April 30, 2002,
the Company also had notes payable to Danny Hewitt in the outstanding principal amount of $83,000.
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During Fiscal 2002, the Company purchased lists and other assets from David Gieson, a
franchisee of the Company. Consideration paid consisted of 600 shares of Class A Common Stock.

Since May 1, 2000, the Company also borrowed from certain of its officers, directors and certain
shareholders in order to meet liquidity needs. The last of these loans was repaid in June 2001. All of the
loans bore interest at the rate of 12% per annum, and with respect to a number of the loans, the
Company granted warrants to purchase Class A Common Stock, at an exercise price of $12.50 per

share. Details of these affiliate loans are included in the following table:

Lender
John T. Hewitt

Steven
Lepkowski

Steven
Lepkowski

Steven
Lepkowski

J. Gary
Ibbotson

Raymond A.
Dunn,

Timothy J.
Robinson

Martha
O’'Gorman

Kathleen Curry

Charles N.
Lovelace

Frederick Ward
Daniel J. Hewitt

(Father of John
T. Hewitt)

Loan Amount
$607,063

$100,000

$250,000

$50,000

$100,000

$64,071

$89,751

$29,661

$28,145

$31,533

$2,743

$200,000
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Interest

Rate
12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

12%

Repayment Date
February 28, 2001

August 29, 2000

February 22, 2001

June 29, 2001

August 29, 2000

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001
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Warrants

Granted
12,141

N/A

5,000

N/A

N/A.

1,281

1,795

593

563

631

55

4,000

Exercise

Price
$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50

$12.50
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Executive Compensation
Remuneration of Directors and Officers

The aggregate annual remuneration of each of the three highest paid persons who were officers
or directors during Fiscal 2002 is as follows:

Name of Capacity in which FY 2002 Aggregate Remuneration
Individual Remuneration was Received Cash Class A Common
Stock Options
John T. Hewitt Chairman of the Board of $315,000 5000 at $27.50
Directors, Chief  Executive exercise price
Officer and President
Mark C. Johnson | Vice President of Area $139,000 2,000 at $25
Development exercise price
Leonard Holt Chief Operating Officer (no $135,000 | None
longer with the Company)

For the year ended July 31, 2003, and during the 12 months ending July 31, 2002, the Company
has paid and expects to pay the following amounts of compensation to the following additional officers:

Name of Individual 2002 2003
John T. Hewitt $315,000 $315,000
Mark C. Johnson $139,000 $175,000
Leonard Holt $135,000 N/A
Martha O’'Gorman $66,084 $81,250
Donna Halligan $66,084 $81,250
Kathleen Curry $66,900 $75,000
Raymond A. Dunn, | $118,257 $127,500
Charles N. Lovelace $79,088 $112,500
Timothy J. Robinson $89,279 $105,000
Steven Sardo C$154,350 C$154,350

The numbers above for the year ending July 31, 2003 assume that each officer will earn the maximum
bonus amount available to that officer. The Company’s non-employee directors receive no cash
compensation for their services.

Additional Executive Compensation Information

in calendar year 1998, Mr. Hewitt received no salary, but did receive a grant of stock options in
May 1998 to purchase 5,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at $11 per share. Other executive
officers of the Company were granted options on May 1998 to purchase an aggregate of 20,000 shares
of Class A Common Stock at $10 per share. In calendar year 1999, Mr. Hewitt received $93,046 in
salary. In May 1999, Mr. Hewitt received a grant of stock options to purchase 3,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock at $13.75 per share. In calendar year 2000, Mr. Hewitt received $150,000 in salary. In
May, 2000, Mr. Hewitt received a grant of stock options to purchase 3,700 shares of Class A Common
Stock at $23.38 per share. In calendar year 2001, Mr. Hewitt received $154,375 in salary. In May, 2001,
Mr. Hewitt received a grant of stock options to purchase 5,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at
$13.75 per share. In calendar year 2002, Mr. Hewitt will receive $157,500 in salary and $157,000 in
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bonus. In May, 2002, Mr. Hewitt received a grant of stock options to purchase 5,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock at $27.50 per share. Other executive officers of the Company were granted options in
May 1999 to purchase an aggregate of 7,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at $12.50 per share; in
May 2000 to purchase an aggregate of 14,000 (2,000 of which have expired) shares of Class A
Common Stock at $21.25 per share; in May 2001 to purchase an aggregate of 13,800 shares of Class A
Common Stock at $12.50 per share (5,590 of which have expired); and also in May, 2002 to purchase
an aggregate of 10,500 shares of Class A Common Stock at $25.00 per share. A former executive
officer of the Company, Leonard Holt, received $135,000 in salary in calendar year 2001. Mr. Johnson is
scheduled to receive $68,750 in salary and $79,000 in bonus in calendar year 2002. Mr. Dunn is
scheduled to receive $100,844 in salary and $18,605 in bonus in calendar year 2002.

Mr. Sardo, who is employed by Liberty Canada as its President, had an employment agreement
with Liberty Canada, which expired May 4, 2002. Under the terms of that agreement, Mr. Sardo is
eligible for options for up to 10,412 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, which are
exercisable at $10.00 per share. Each year for four years beginning April 30, 1999, an option for 2,603
shares vests and may be exercised any time within five years of the date of vesting, provided that Mr.
Sardo remains an employee of Liberty Canada.

No other executive officer of the Company has received an aggregate annual compensation in
excess of $100,000 since the Company's formation.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

As permitted by Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “Delaware
Law”), the Company's certificate of incorporation provides that directors of the Company will not be
personally liable to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty
as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the director's duty of loyaity to the Company or its
stockholders, (i) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the Delaware Law, relating to prohibited dividends or
distributions or the repurchase or redemption of stock, or (iv) for any transaction in which the director
derives an improper personal benefit. In addition, the Company's bylaws provide for indemnification of
the Company's officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted under Delaware law.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to
directors, officers or persons controlling the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions or otherwise,
the Company has been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore,
unenforceable.

The Company maintains directors' and officers’ liability insurance against any actual or alleged
error, misstatement, misleading statement, act, omission, neglect or breach of duty by any director or
officer, excluding certain matters including such as fraudulent, dishonest or criminal acts or self-dealing.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The table on the following page sets forth the number and percentage of shares of Class A Common
Stock, Class B Common Stock, Class A Preferred Stock and Class B Preferred Stock owned, as of the
date of this Circular, by (a) each person who, to the knowledge of the Company, is the beneficial owner
of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Class A or Class B Common Stock, (b) each of the
Company's directors, (¢) each of the Company's executive officers, and (d) all of the Company's
executive officers and directors as a group. The post-offering numbers reflect indications of interest in
purchasing additional shares in the Offering, but are not binding commitments for such purchases.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
The following summary of the terms of the shares of capital stock of the Company does not purport to be
complete and subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the Articles of Incorporation and
Bylaws of the Company, copies of which are available to prospective investors upon request.

General

The Company is authorized to issue, and has issued the number and types of securities described below.

Security Issued Authorized | Common (1) | Percentage (2)
Stock
Equivalent

Class A Common Stock 1,050,166
Class A Common Stock Warrants/Options (3) 214,174
Total Class A Common Stock Securities 1,264,340 2,120,000 1,264,340 80.57%
Class B Common Stock | 90,000 | 100,000 | 90,000 | 5.73%
Class A Preferred Stock | 190,000 | 190,000 190,000 | 12.11%
Class B Preferred Stock | 25,000 ] 33,334 25,000 | 1.59%
Special Voting Preferred Stock ] 10 | 10 | 4) | (4
TOTAL | 1,569,350 | 2,443,344 | 1,569,350 | 100%

(1} This column equals the number of Class A Common Stock the relevant security is equal to upon
conversion to Class A Common Stock.

(2) This column equals the percentage of the converted security in relation to the total amount of Class
A Comman Stock if all the capital stock of the Company were converted as of the date of this Circular to
Class A Common Stock.

(3) As of July 10, 2002, the Company has outstanding 105,775 options to employees issued as
incentive stock options, and an additional 84,455 shares reserved for issuance under the Company’s
stock option plan. A total of 108,399 other options and warrants that are not incentive stock options are
also outstanding.

(4) Already included in issued Class A Common Stock.

Designations, Rights and Preferences of Capital Stock

The Company is offering only Class A Common Stock in this offering. Following is a description of the
Class A Common Stock and all of the other classes and series of capital stock of the Company.

Class A Common Stock .

Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors and in such amounts as the Board of Directors may deem advisable. See "Dividend Policy" and
"Risk Factors--No Cash Dividends." In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Company, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Common Stock are entitled, after payment or
provision for payment of the debts or other liabilities of the Company, and subject to the prior rights of
holders of any Preferred Stock which may then be outstanding, to share ratably in the remaining assets of
the Company. Class A Common Stock does not possesses any preemptive rights.
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Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on each matter
submitted to a vote at a meeting of stockholders. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to
elect that number of directors equal to the difference between (A) the number of directors elected by
Class B Common Stock, minus one, and (B) the number of directors entitied to be elected by the holders
of all classes of preferred stock. Voting is on a non-cumulative basis.

Class B Common Stock

All of the Class B Common Stock is held by John T. Hewitt. The rights of Class B Common Stock are
identical to those of Class A Common stock, except for the fact that the holder of Class B Common Stock
is entitled to elect one more director than all of the holders of Class A Common Stock, as described
above.

The holder of the Class B Common Stock may, at the holder's option, elect to convert the Class B
Common Stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A Common Stock.
The right may be exercised with respect to any portion or all of the holder's shares and at any time. In
addition, Mr. Hewitt is a party to agreements with the holders of each of the Class A and Class B
Preferred Stock pursuant to which he has agreed that his Shares of Class B Common Stock would be
converted into Class A Common Stock (thereby extinguishing his ability to elect a majority of directors) if
at any time he ceases to hold at least 10% of the Company’s outstanding equity.

Class A Preferred Stock

Holders of Class A Preferred Stock are entitled to dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors for the holders of Common Stock. When, as and if a dividend is declared for Common Stock
holders, Class A Preferred Stock holders shall receive dividends as if each share of Class A Preferred
Stock had been converted to one share of Class A Common Stock. See "Dividend Policy" and "Risk
Factors--No Cash Dividends." In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company,
whether voluntary or involuntary, and in the event of any consolidation or merger of the Company, holders
of Class A Preferred Stock are entitled, after payment or provision for payment of the debts or other
liabilities of the Company, to receive for each share of Class A Preferred Stock an amount equal to the
original issue price per share ($12.50) for each share of Class A Preferred Stock then outstanding plus an
amount equal to the original issue price per share ($12.50) multiplied by 10% per annum from the original’
issue date (in May 1999), compounded annually to the date of such distribution. Holders of Class A
Preferred Stock also have preemptive rights to participate in any offering or sale of the Company
securities. The Class A Preferred Stock may participate in such offering or sale on the same basis as if
the Class A Preferred Stock were converted to Class A Common Stock. The holders of Class A Preferred
Stock also have the right to require the Company to register their securities for sale in the public market in
certain instances following a future initial public offering of the Company.

Holders of Class A Preferred Stock are entitied to one vote for each share held of record on each matter
submitted to a vote at a meeting of stockholders. Voting is on a non-cumulative basis. However, with
respect to the board of directors, the Class A Preferred stockholders, voting as a class, are entitled to
elect, remove and replace two directors. A holder of the Class A Preferred Stock may, at the holder's
option, elect to convert the Class A Preferred Stock into an equal number of shares of Class A Common
Stock. The right may be exercised with respect to any portion or all of a holder's shares and at any time.
In the event that all Class A Preferred Stock is converted to Common Stock, all rights with respect to
Class A Preferred Stock shall cease.

Under the terms of the agreement governing the issuance of the Class A Preferred Stock, the holders of
the Class A Preferred Stock have the right to consent to certain actions taken by the Company, including
amendments to the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of the Company, affiliate transactions entered
into on other than an arms length basis, the issuance of additional stock by the Company except under
limited circumstances, the payment of compensation to any employee in excess of $150,000 per year,
and the issuance of stock options other than pursuant to grants through the Company’s compensation
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committee.

Class B Preferred Stock

The rights of Class B Preferred Common Stock are identical to those of Class A Preferred Stock, except
that the Class B Preferred stockholders, voting as a class, are entitled to appoint an observer to the
Board of Directors until July 2003, and are entitled to designate a single director thereafter.

Envest, the holder of the Class B Preferred Stock, is also entitled to certain rights under the terms of the
loan agreement pursuant to which it made a $2 million loan to the Company. Under the terms of that loan
agreement, in addition to the debt restrictions described elsewhere in this Circular, see “Business-
Outstanding Indebtedness”, Envest’s approval is required in order for the Company to engage in certain
transactions similar to those for which the holders of the Class A and Class B Preferred Stock are
required to consent in their capacity as shareholders, and the Company is also required to maintain
certain financial ratios. The Company is also required to maintain at least $2 million in key-man life
insurance on the life of John T. Hewitt, which would be payable to reduce the loan in the event of Mr.
Hewitt's death.

Special Voting Preferred Stock

In conjunction with the acquisition of the remaining 40% minority interest in the Canadian Subsidiary in
October 2001, the Company issued 100,000 shares of Class A Common Stock that are presently held by
Liberty Tax Holding Company, another Canadian subsidiary. That Canadian corporation in turn issued
100,000 of its exchangeable shares to the holder of the 0% minority interest in the Canadian Subsidiary.
Those exchangeable shares are exchangeable on a share-for-share basis for shares of the Class A
Common Stock, upon tender by the holder at any time. In order to ensure that the holder of the
exchangeable shares of the new Canadian subsidiary would be entitled to exercise voting rights
equivalent to those applicable to the 100,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, the Company created a
class of Special Voting Preferred Stock, each share of which has voting rights as if it represented 10,000
shares of Class A Common Stock. The shares of Special Voting Preferred Stock will be automatically
redeemed for $1.00 per share upon the exchange of exchangeable shares for the Class A Common
Stock, on the basis of one share of Special Voting Preferred Stock for each 10,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock exchanged.

Anti-Takeover Provisions of Delaware Law

As a Delaware corporation, the Company is subject to certain antitakeover provisions of the Delaware
Law. Under the business combination provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware Law ("Section 203"), a
Delaware corporation may not engage in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a
period of three years following the date such stockholder became an interested stockholder, uniess (i)
prior to such date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or
the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, or (i} upon
completion of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the
interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time
the transaction commenced (excluding, for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding,
(a) shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers and (b) employee stock plans, in certain
instances), or (ii) on or after such date the business combination is approved by the board of directors
and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders by at least 66% of the outstanding voting
stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder. Section 203 defines an interested stockholder to be
any person who (i) owns, directly or indirectly, 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the
corporation or (ii) is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of the
outstanding voting stock of the corporation at any time within the three-year period immediately before the
date on which it is sought to be determined whether such person (and the affiliates and the associates of
such person) is an interested stockholder. Section 203 defines business combinations to include certain
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mergers, consolidations, asset sales, transfers and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the
interested stockholder.

The restrictions imposed by Section 203 do not apply to a corporation if (i) the corporation's original
certificate of incorporation contains a provision expressly electing not to be governed by Section 203 or
(ii) the corporation, by the action of stockholders holding a majority of outstanding stock, adopts an
amendment to its certificate of incorporation or bylaws expressly electing not to be governed by Section
203 (such amendment will not be effective until 12 months after adoption and does not apply to any
business combination between the corporation and any person who became an interested stockholder of
the corporation on or before such adoption). The Company has not elected out of Section 203.
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MARKET FOR THE COMMON STOCK

There is no public market for any of the Company's securities, and, following this Offering, it is not
anticipated that a market will develop for the Class A Common Stock offered hereby. As of the date of
this Circular, there were 254 holders of record of the Class A Common Stock, one holder of record of the
Class B Common Stock, two holders of record of Class A Preferred Stock and one holder of record of
Class B Preferred Stock. All of the shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
outstanding as of the date of this Circular are "restricted securities” as defined under Rule 144 of the
Securities Act. Even though the Shares are not considered “restricted securities”, no sale, transfer,
exchange or other disposition of Shares may be made except in compliance with applicable law and the
regulations of any governmental agency having jurisdiction including, without limitation, rules and
regulations promulgated by any state authority which considers such transaction to fall within its
jurisdiction. The Company may require the delivery by a sharehoider of an opinion of counsel acceptable
to the Company to the effect that the proposed sale, transfer, exchange or other disposition of Shares
may be made in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

See "Risk Factors Limitations on Transfer and Absence of Public Market.”

THE OFFERING
General

The Shares are being offered at a price of $40.00 per Share. The Company does not intend to accept
subscriptions for fewer than 500 shares per investor (or a total purchase price of $20,000). However, the
Company will not impose this minimum purchase requirement on any investor who is a shareholder of
the Company as of the date of this Circular. The purchase price must be paid upon subscription for the
Shares. The Company may provide financing for the purchase of Shares. The Shares are being offered
by the Company, on a best efforts basis, through Raymond Dunn, the Company’s Vice President of
Corporate Development. Mr. Dunn will not receive any separate compensation for his efforts in selling
the Shares.

This Offering is a minimum/maximum offering, and no Shares will be sold unless we receive
subscriptions for at least the Minimum Offering. Until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for, all funds
received by the Company for Shares will be deposited with the Escrow Agent, which will hold these
funds until it has received funds aggregating at least the amount of the Minimum Offering. At any time
after funds aggregating at least the Minimum Offering are received by the Escrow Agent, one or more
closings for the Shares may be held. Funds received for Shares after the Minimum Offering is reached
will not be subject to an escrow requirement. If the Escrow Agent has not received funds equal to or
exceeding the Minimum Offering by March 31, 2003, the Escrow Agent will promptly return all funds,
without any deduction for expenses, directly to the subscribers. Purchases by directors and officers of
the Company, or their affiliates, will not be counted in determining whether the Minimum Offering has
been sold.

This Offering Circular is being furnished to existing shareholders, franchisees and employees of the
Company and to other persons that have expressed an interest in investing in the Company. In Virginia,
the Offering of the Shares will be limited to existing shareholders, franchisees and employees. In
Maryland, California, Oklahoma, and Utah, the Offering will be limited to existing shareholders and
franchisees. In other states, if at the time the Company determines that the existing shareholders,
franchisees and employees are not subscribing at a rate the Company deems satisfactory and are not
likely to purchase all of the Shares available in the Offering, the Company may offer the remaining
shares to persons who have previously contacted the Company and expressed an interest in investing in
the Company. The Company will not, however, engage in any form of public solicitation of investors.
Rather, if the Company makes an expanded offering to such individuals, the Company’s agent will
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directly contact those individuals to make them aware of the opportunity to purchase the Shares in this
Offering.

The Escrow Agent may be reached at SouthTrust Bank, c/o Chuck Russell, 1304 Greebrier Parkway,
Chesapeake, Virginia 23320.

Raymond A. Dunn, |l, as an agent of the Company, is acting as the Company’s agent in selling the
Shares in each of these jurisdictions.

Any purchase of the Shares by officers, directors or significant shareholders of the Company will be
under the same terms and conditions as purchases by other subscribers.

The certificates for the Shares will bear legends stating that they are subject to the foregoing restrictions
on transfer. See “Risk Factors-- Limitations on Transfer and Absence of Public Market.”

Each investor must make his own investment decision as to the merits of this Offering. Any Shares
acquired in the Offering must be held by the investor for investment purposes in accordance with
applicable law. The Company retains the right to terminate the Offering at any time and for any reason.

The cost of complying with regulatory laws, and all expenses incurred by the Company in connection
with the Offering including, but not limited to, expenses incurred prior to the Offering, will be borne by the
Company.

Suitability of Investment

The Offering is made in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the Securities Act. The
speculative nature of the success of the Company’'s business, together with the lack of liquidity of the
Shares makes this investment only suitable for investors who have adequate financial resources and
who can afford the total loss of their investment. See “Risk Factors—Limitations on Transfer and
Absence of Public Market.”

Prospective investors are encouraged to consult their personal financial advisors to determine whether
an investment in the Shares is appropriate. The Company may reject subscriptions, in whole or in part,
in its absolute discretion.

Suitability Requirements

Investors must be able to bear the economic risk of the investment for an indefinite period of time
because the Shares cannot be sold unless they are subsequently registered under, or are subject to an
exemption from, the relevant state securities laws.

Investment Procedure

Each prospective investor will be required to complete and deliver to the Company the attached
Subscription Agreement. Subscriptions will be accepted from investors only in the form of the revised
Subscription Agreement that is attached to this Circular.

The Subscription Agreement requires each investor to represent, among other things, that the investor
meets each of the following requirements: (a) the investor is acquiring the Shares for the investor’'s own
account for investment and not with a view to resale or distribution thereof, (b) the investor understands
that the investor may not have any liquidity in the Shares, and that there is significant risk of loss of the
investor’s investment, and (c) the investor has the financial ability to bear the risk of losing the investor’s
investment. Concurrently with the execution and delivery of the Subscription Agreement, each investor
must remit funds in an amount equal to the purchase price of the Shares being purchased to the
Company.
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if executed Subscription Agreements for more than 125,000 Shares are received by the Company, the
Company may in its discretion reduce each prospective investor’s requested number of Shares by any
amount without prior notice to or consent by any prospective investor. The closings of the Offering will
take place as determined by the Company. The Company may elect to hold more than one Closing. All
Closings will be held at a time and place and on the date selected by the Company.

1

Closing Conditions

Each prospective investor will not be deemed to have purchased any Shares until such time as all of the
following conditions to closing have occurred: (i) the applicable Subscription Agreement has been duly
and validly executed and delivered to the Company; (ii) the Company has accepted the subscription
evidenced by the Subscription Agreement; (iii} closing documents, in form and substance satisfactory to
the Company and its counsel, have been executed and delivered; and (iv) the purchase price has been
transmitted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended April 30, 2002, April
30, 2001 and April 30, 2000 are included in this Circular.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended April 30, 2002 have been audited by
KPMG LLP, independent auditors as stated in their report appearing herein.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended April 30, 2001 has been audited by
Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors as stated in their report appearing herein.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements
April 30, 2002

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
April 30, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
bastis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries as of April 30, 2002, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As stated in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, basic net income per share has been restated.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective July 1, 2001, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business
Combinations, and certain provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, as required
for goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001.

KPMe P
Norfolk, Virginia
June 21, 2002, except as to

note 12, which is as of
September 9, 2002
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet

April 30, 2002

Assets (Notes 7 and 8)

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (note 3):
Trade accounts
Notes receivable (note 6)
Interest
Allowance for doubtful accounts

"Total receivables, net

Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net (note 4)

Notes receivable, excluding current portion (notes 3 and 6)
Intangible assets, net (notes 2 and 5)

Restricted cash

Deposits

Deferred income taxes (note 9)

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit (note 6)
Current installments of long-term debt (note 7)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred franchise fees
Deferred income taxes (note 9)

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, excluding current installments (note 7)
Franchise deposits

Other long-term liabilities

Subordinated debt, net of original issue discount (note 8)

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity (notes 10 and 11):
Common stock
Preferred stock
Special voting preferred stock
Exchangeable shares (note 2)
Put warrants
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost
Cumulative other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Commitments, contingencies and subsequent event (notes 6, 16, 17 and 18)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1,627,135

7,009,258
3,200,706
367,010

(2,438,200)
8,138,774

214,731
32,877

10,013,517

5,328,458
5,932,381
3,073,246
200,298
50,276
941,000

25,539,176

564,299
801,497
3,749,964
187,573
534,000

5,837,333

1,372,203

577,534
2,050,232
1,119,749

10,957,051

1,045,856
2,872,742
10

100,000
970,000
10,395,767
(89,000)
(73,686)

(639,564)

14,582,125

25,539,176
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Income

Year ended April 30, 2002

Revenues:
Royalties and advertising fees b 6,779,543
Franchise fees, net of provision for franchise fee refunds of $556,200 5,246,600
Tax preparation fees, net of discounts 1,041,325
Bank product and tax discounting income 4,396,132
Bookkeeping and consulting income 232,880
Other income 238,387
Total revenue 17,934,867
Operating experises:
Employee compensation and benefits 5,853,431
General and administrative expenses 7,343,868
Advertising expense 3,026,411
Depreciation and amortization expense 440,635
Total operating expenses 16,664,345
Operating income 1,270,522
Other income (expense), net:
Interest income 957,709
Interest expense (note 10) (662,371)
Gain on sale of intangibles and property and equipment, net 89,563
Other, net 182,832
Minority interest in subsidiary’s net loss (note 2) 280,024
Income before income taxes 2,118,279
Income tax benefit (note 9) 407,000
Net income $ 2,525,279
Net income per share (note 12):
Basic net income per share (restated - note 12) $ 2.11
Weighted average number of common shares and convertible
preterred stock and exchangeable shares outstanding (restated - note 12) 1,198,092
Diluted net income per share $ 2.02

Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive potential
common shares outstanding 1,252,098

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended April 30, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 2,525,279

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 440,635
Bad debt expense 1,054,455
Write down of impaired assets 206,845
Amortization of original issue discount 216,740
Foreign currency translation (35,533)
Minority interest in subsidiary’s net loss (280,024)
Gain on sale of intangible assets and property and equipment, net (89,563)
Deferred tax benefit (407,000)

Changes in assets and liabilities increasing (decreasing) cash flows
from operating activities:

Trade accounts receivable (4,146,337)
Notes receivable (2,491,932)
Interest receivable (154,748)
Inventory (15,130)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 53,289
Deposits 188,856
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 279,465
Deferred franchise fees and franchise deposits (66,419)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,721,122)
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Issuance of operating loans to franchisees © (1,594,366)
Payments received from franchisees 2,027,641
Purchases of customer lists and other assets (264,920)
Proceeds from sale of customer lists and other assets 268,163
Purchases of property and equipment (847,391)
Net cash used in investing activities (410,873)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sales of common stock, net of issuance costs 2,746,550
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock, net of issuance costs 497,742
Net repayments under lines of credit (1,260,318)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt 2,000,000
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,403,561
Repayment of long-term debt (2,339,784)
Payment of deferred financing costs (92,856)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,954,895
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (177,100)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,804,235
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ‘ $ 1,627,135
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information -
Cash paid for interest $ 566,675
F-6 (Continued)
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended April 30, 2002

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:
During the year ended April 30, 2002, the Company acquired certain assets from franchisees as follows:

Fair value of assets purchased )
Receivables forgiven

Notes payable issued

Deferred revenue reversed

Common stock issued

Applied to sales of franchise territories

Cash paid to seller $
During the year ended April 30, 2002, the Company sold certain assets to franchisees as follows:

Book value of assets sold 3
Franchise fee revenue

Gain on sale

Deferred gain on sale

Applied from acquisitions of franchise territories

Notes issued

Lease obligations assumed

Cash received S

In 2002, the Company issued 3,470 shares of Class A common stock valued at $51,287 in
connection with the purchase of customer lists.

In 2002, the Company purchased proprietary software which is included in property and equipment.
Amounts due to the vendor at April 30, 2002 include $1,700,000, which is included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses, and $2,000,000, which is included on other long-term liabilities.

In 2002, the Company acquired the remaining 40% minority interest in the Canadian Subsidiary.

The total value of consideration given totaled $3,842,800, and the Company received $2,000,000 in
cash. The excess of consideration given over cash received was allocated to goodwill (note 2).

In connection with securing the $2,000,000 subordinated debt (note 8), the Company issued warrants

to the lender. The value of the warrants issued was deemed to be $970,000 as of the date of

2,265,326
(1,703,245)
(120,992)
44,118
(51,287)

{169,000)
264,920

896,739
83,527
70,102
55,940

(169,000)

(687,200)
18,055

268,163

issuance, which was recorded as original issue discount and reflected as a reduction of the outstanding

subordinated debt balance of $2,000,000 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

April 30, 2002

Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Organization

JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) is a franchisor and operator of a system of offices in
the United States and Canada engaged in the preparation of personal income tax returns. Through
this system of offices, the Company also offers its customers refund anticipation loans and personal
income tax refund discounting. The Company operates under the trade name “Liberty Tax Service.”

The Company was formed in October 1996 as a Delaware corporation. EmployeesPlus, Inc., a
Virginia corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was created in November 2000
and currently operates Company-owned store locations. Liberty Tax Service, Inc., (the Canadian
Subsidiary) was incorporated under the Companies Act of Manitoba, Canada in May 1994 and was
60% owned by JTH Tax, Inc. until October 2001. Liberty Tax Holding Corporation (Holdings) was
created in October 2001 as an Ontario Corporation and is a wholly owned subsidiary of JTH Tax,
Inc. Holdings acquired the remaining 40% ownership of the Canadian Subsidiary effective
October 31, 2001 (note 2).

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JTH Tax, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, EmployeesPlus, Inc., Liberty Tax Service, Inc. and Liberty Tax Holding Corporation.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
minority interest share of net loss reflected on the statement of income reflects the proportionate
share of net loss in the Canadian Subsidiary prior to the October 31, 2001 acquisition of the minority
interest by the Company.

Assets and liabilities of the Canadian Subsidiary have been translated into U.S. Dollars using the
exchange rate in effect at the end of the year. The revenues and expenses have been translated using
the average rates in effect each month of the year. Transaction gains and losses are recognized in the
year of occurrence.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes amounts held in an escrow account as collateral for the Company’s
guarantee of certain leases of its franchisees.

Notes Receivable

Notes recelvable are recorded at cost, less the related allowance for doubtful accounts. Because the
repayment of the notes receivable is dependent on the performance of the underlying franchise which
collateralizes the note, management estimates the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts
based on a comparison of amounts due to the estimated fair value of the underlying franchise.
Impairment losses are included in the allowance for doubtful accounts through a charge to bad debt
expense.
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Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies and signs for sale to franchisees. Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or market, determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets, generally 3 to 5 years for computer
equipment, 7 years for furniture and fixtures and 20 to 35 years for buildings. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

Intangible Assets

’

Intangible assets consist primarily of the goodwill associated with the acquisition of the Canadian
Subsidiary, as well as the value assigned to customer lists, covenants not to compete and goodwill
related to Company-owned stores acquired by the Company, which are generally amortized using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Customer lists are amortized over five years.
Covenants not to compete are amortized over the term of the non-competition agreement, which is
typically three years. Goodwill related to the 60% interest in the Canadian Subsidiary and stores
acquired is amortized over 10 and 5 years, respectively.

In July 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, which requires the purchase method of accounting be used
for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. The Company also adopted certain
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, as required for goodwill and
intangible assets resulting from business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001. As
disclosed in note 2, the Company acquired the remaining 40% interest in the Canadian Subsidiary
effective October 31, 2001. Goodwill acquired in this purchase business combination, which was
completed before SFAS No. 142 was adopted in full, has not been amortized. Goodwill and
intangible assets acquired before July 1, 2001 were amortized and tested for impairment in
accordance with the appropriate pre-Statement 142 accounting literature. On May 1, 2002, the
Company fully adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142 and ceased amortization of goodwill. A
transition impairment analysis will be completed during fiscal year 2003.

Deferred Franchise Fees

The Company may receive all or part of the initial franchise fee prior to the execution of the
franchise agreement. These amounts are classified as deferred franchise fees until the franchise fee
qualifies to be recognized as revenue or is refunded.

Franchise Deposits

For the period from May 1, 1999 through November 1, 1999, the Company waived the initial
franchise fee for new franchise territories except in areas of the United States where the Company
had operated prior to May 1, 1999 and in Hampton Roads, Virginia. The Company required that
these new franchisees pay a security deposit for each territory. These security deposits are held by
the Company until expiration or termination of the franchise agreement.
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Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities include $2,000,000 due to a vendor for the purchase of a perpetual license
for proprietary tax preparation software. The amount is non-interest bearing and due in two equal
installments in fiscal year 2004 and 2005.

Revenue Recognition

Franchise fee revenue, net of a provision for franchise fee refunds of 8%, is recognized when
obligations of the Company to prepare the franchisee for operation have been substantially
completed. Franchise fees that are financed by the Company are recorded as deferred franchise fees
until such time as the franchisee has made a significant financial commitment (20%). Royalties and
advertising fees are recognized currently as the franchised territory generates sales. Electronic
transfer fees, tax return preparation fees and bank product fees are recognized as revenue in the
period the related tax return is filed or prepared for the customer. Discounts are recorded for
promotional programs at the time the return is prepared.

Franchise fees are also recognized from master broker sales wherein the Company sells a cluster of
territories to an individual. The initial fee paid by the master broker is recognized as revenue upon
the execution of the master broker agreement.

Gains on sales of Company-owned stores, which are financed by the Company, are deferred until the
franchisee has made a significant financial commitment (20%). Losses on sales of Company-owned
stores are recognized immediately.

The Company ceases the accrual of interest income on notes receivable once they become past due.
Other Income, Net

Other income, net consists of a net gain incurred on the settlement of various litigation totaling
$57,832 and a gain realized on the early extinguishment of long-term debt of $125,000.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and

- liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets to be held and used
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future undiscounted cash
flows associated with the asset are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if a write

i
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down to market or discounted cash flow value is required. The Company reports long-lived assets
and certain identifiable assets to be disposed at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell. For the year ended April 30, 2002, the Company recognized an impairment loss of
$206,845 related to Company-owned stores which has been included in general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and the foreign currency translation adjustment and is
presented in the consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the Company has
chosen to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic-value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board ‘Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB
Opinion No. 25), and related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is
measured as the excess, if any, of the estimated fair value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant
over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per share has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares and convertible preferred stock and exchangeable shares outstanding on
an if converted basis. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur
assuming the inclusion of dilutive potential common shares and has been computed by dividing net
income by the weighted average number of common shares and convertible preferred stock and
exchangeable shares outstanding and dilutive potential common shares outstanding. Dilutive
potential common shares include all outstanding stock options and warrants after applying the
treasury stock method.

Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period to prepare these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Acquisition of 40% Interest in the Canadian Subsidiary

In October 2001, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Holdings, acquired the remaining
40% of the outstanding common stock of the Canadian Subsidiary in a transaction which was accounted
for as a purchase. The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of this 40% interest in
the Canadian Subsidiary from October 31, 2001, the effective date of the transaction. The minority interest
share of net loss reflected on the statement of income reflects the proportionate share of net loss
attributable to the other owner of the Canadian Subsidiary prior to October 31, 2001, which was $280,024.
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Immediately preceding the acquisition, the Company issued 260,000 shares of common stock and 10
shares of special voting preferred stock to Holdings. In a single transaction, Holdings issued consideration
to the minority shareholder consisting of 160,000 shares of Class A common stock and 10 shares of special
voting preferred stock of the Company and 100,000 shares of exchangeable shares of Holdings in
exchange for $2,000,000 in cash and the 40% minority interest in the Canadian subsidiary. The 100,000
exchangeable shares issued by Holdings are exchangeable at any time at a 1:1 ratio into the Class A
common stock of the Company. The remaining 100,000 shares of Class A common stock of the Company
issued to Holdings are held by Holdings to satisfy the exchange provisions of the exchangeable shares.
These shares are eliminated in consolidation. The special voting preferred shares issued have a $1.00 par
value and no liquidation value and provide the holder with an equivalent of 10,000 common share votes
per share on any matter brought before the Company’s stockholders. These shares provide the holder with
the equivalent voting rights of the exchangeable shares and are cancelled pro rata as the exchangeable
shares are exchanged for Class A common stock.

Because the exchangeable shares give the holder no rights with respect to Holdings other than the right to
exchange the interest for Class A common stock of the Company, both the Class A common stock and the
exchangeable shares issued in conjunction with the acquisition were valued at $14.78 per share, which is
the estimated fair value per share of the Class A common stock of the Company as determined by the
Board of Directors based on recent sales of Class A common shares. As a result, the acquisition can be
summarized as follows:

Consideration given, at estimated fair value: :
160,000 shares of Class A common stock issued $ 2,364,800

100,000 shares of exchangeable shares issued 1,478,000

10 shares of Special Voting preferred stock issued —
Total value of consideration 3,842,800
Cash received (2,000,000)
Purchase price for 40% interest in the Canadian Subsidiary $ 1,842,800

The purchase price in excess of the fair value of tangible assets and liabilities was allocated to goodwill.
Because the acquisition was consummated after June 30, 2001, the acquisition was accounted for under the
provisions of SFAS No. 141. As a result, the goodwill is not being amortized and will be tested for
impairment at least annually.

Notes Receivable

The Company provides financing to franchisees for the purchase of franchises and/or for working capital
and equipment needs. The notes generally are payable annually over five years and bear interest at various
rates ranging from 8% to 12%. Transactions for 2002 are as follows:
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Balance at beginning of year $ 6,665,060
Notes issued:
Sales of franchise territories 3,488,245
Sales of Company-owned stores 1,385,610
Operating loans to franchisees 1,594,366
Refinancing of accounts receivable 289,698
Less:
Repayment of notes 2,470,869
Notes canceled 1,799,397
Foreign currency adjustment related to notes 19,626
Balance at end of year $ 9,133,087

Notes receivable reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet include notes related to the sale
of Company-owned stores as well as loans to franchisees for working capital and equipment. Most of the
notes receivable reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are due from the Company’s
franchisees. The notes are collateralized by the underlying franchise and are guaranteed by the franchisees.
The franchisees’ ability to repay the notes is dependent upon the performance of the tax preparation
industry as a whole and the Company in particular. Management believes that the recorded allowance is
adequate based upon its consideration of the estimated value of the franchises supporting the receivables.
Any adverse change in the tax preparation industry could affect the Company’s estimate of the allowance.

At April 30, 2002, the Company had an investment in impaired notes and related interest receivable of
approximately $1,671,000, which had recorded values that exceeded the fair value of the underlying
collateral by approximately $634,000. In addition, the Company had trade accounts receivable due from
these franchisees of approximately $267,000 at April 30, 2002. The Company has reflected an allowance
of $901,000 for this impairment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Activity in the allowance
for doubtful accounts for the year ended April 30, 2002 is summarized as follows:

Beginning balance 8 1,812,319
Additions charged to expense 1,054,455
Write-offs (428,574)
Ending balance $ 2,438,200

The Company’s average investment in impaired notes receivable during the year ended April 30, 2002 was
approximately $1,709,000. Interest income related to these notes was approximately $63,000.

Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net consists of the following at April 30, 2002:
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Land $ 188,049
Buildings 489,450
Leasehold improvements 9,102
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment : 1,041,679
Software development costs 4,009,176

5,737,456
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 408,998
Property and equipment, net $ 5,328,458

During 2002, Company acquired a perpetual license for proprietary tax preparation software to be used by
its Company-owned stores and franchisees. Capitalized costs related to this software, which were
substantially all external, totaled $4,009,176 at April 30, 2002 and have been included in property and
equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The software will be placed in service in a
limited number of franchise territories for the 2003 tax season.

Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consists of the following at April 30, 2002:

Goodwill $ 2,277,201
Customer lists 1,127,935
Other intangibles 117,549
3,522,685

Less accumulated amortization 449,439
Intangible assets, net $ 3,073,246

Amortization expense for the year ended April 30, 2002 was $290,788.

Lines of Credit

The Company has a line of credit with a financial institution which allows for borrowings up to $2,000,000
and accrues interest at LIBOR plus 2.25%. The line is collateralized by notes receivable and expires on
July 31, 2002. There were no borrowings against the line at April 30, 2002.

The Canadian Subsidiary has a line of credit with a financial institution which allows for borrowings of up
to $8,750,000 and accrues interest at prime plus 2.375%. Outstanding borrowings are collateralized by a
$1,000,000 letter of credit issued on behalf of the Company by the Company’s bank. The line expired
May 31, 2002, at which time all amounts outstanding on the line were paid in full. The Company expects
to renew the line in September 2002. Borrowings against the line were $564,299 at April 30, 2002.

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at April 30, 2002 consists of the following:
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Mortgage note payable to a bank in monthly installments of $1,236

including interest at 8.50% through December 2019; collateralized

by land and building $ 133,794
Mortgage note payable to a bank in monthly installments of $1,389

including interest at 9.25% through August 2010; collateralized

by land and building 126,218
Notes payable for acquired practices, interest rates ranging from
6.25% to 12%; due in May 2002 through February 2006 ‘ 513,688

Term note payable in three annual installments of $500,000 in February
2003, $500,000 in February 2004 and $400,000 in February 2005;
interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 1.85%; collateralized
by substantially all the assets of the Company; unconditionally

guaranteed by a stockholder of the Company 1,400,000
Total long-term debt 2,173,700

Less current installments 801,497
Total long-term debt, less current installments $ 1,372,203

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt as of April 30, 2002 are as follows:

2003 $ 801,497
2004 643,103
2005 462,011
2006 47,502
2007 12,574
Thereafter . 207,013

$ 2,173,700

The $1,400,000 term note payable contains several financial covenants which the Company must meet,
including a minimum debt service charge ratio, a minimum level of tangible net worth and a maximum
debt to net worth ratio.

Subordinated Debt

In July 2001, the Company borrowed $2,000,000 from a venture capital group. The loan bears interest at
12%, which is payable quarterly, and is due in full in July 2005. The loan is collateralized by substantially
all the assets of the Company, but is subordinated to the $2,000,000 line of credit discussed in note 6 and
the $1,400,000 term loan discussed in note 7. The loan contains several financial covenants which the
Company must meet, including a maximum debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization ratio and a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio.

In connection with securing the above loan, the Company issued warrants to the lender to purchase 46,340
shares of Class A common stock at a nominal price (note 10). The value of the warrants issued was
deemed to be $970,000 as of the date of issuance. The Company recorded original issue discount for this
amount, which is reflected as a reduction of the outstanding subordinated debt balance of $2,000,000 as of
April 30, 2002. The Company is amortizing the original issue discount over the life of the loan using the
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effective interest method. Interest totaling $89,749 was recorded in 2002 related to the amortization of the
original issue discount. The effective interest rate was 33.9%.

Income Taxes

Components of income tax benefit for the year ended April 30, 2002 were as follows:

Current Deferred Total
Federal $ — 346,000 346,000
State — 61,000 61,000
$ — 407,000 407,000

A

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the U.S. Federal statutory rate for the year ended April 30,
2002 as follows:

Computed “expected” income tax expense $ 720,000
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 127,000
Goodwill amortization 12,000
Nondeductible expenses 49,000
Change in valuation allowance (1,323,000)
Rate differential on Canadian taxable income 6,000
Other 2,000
3 {407,000)

The tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of
assets and liabilities that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at April 30,
2002 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards 3 934,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, deductible
for tax purposes when paid. 442,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts, deductible for
tax purposes when accounts are written off 840,000
Property and equipment, due to differences between
book and tax depreciation methods 7,000
Total deferred tax assets 2,223,000

Deferred tax liability -
Accounts receivable, included in taxable income

when payment is received 1,816,000
Net deferred tax asset $ 407,000
F-16 )
(Continued)

075



(10)

JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

April 30, 2002

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. As of April 30, 2001, the Company had recorded a valuation allowance to defer
recognition of the income tax benefit. During 2002, management reversed the valuation allowance, as it
deemed that the benefits of the deferred tax assets would more likely than not be realized through projected
future taxable income. The change in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during 2002 was a
decrease of $1,323,000 and was reflected as a deferred tax benefit.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $2,309,000, of which approximately
$436,000 expire in 2006; $40,000 expire in 2007; $1,459,000 expire in 2019 and $374,000 expire in 2020,

Stockholders’ Equity

(a)

Preferred Stock

The Company has three authorized classes of preferred stock; Class A has 190,000 authorized shares
and Class B has 33,334 authorized shares and the special voting preferred stock has 10 authorized
shares. All classes have a par value of $1.

The holders of the Class A preferred stock are entitled to a dividend if a dividend is declared for
common stock and shall receive a dividend as if each share of preferred stock were a share of Class
A common stock, and a liquidation preference upon the liquidation, dissolution or consolidation of
the Company. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or consolidation, the holders of Class A
preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Company, after payment or
provision for payment of the debts or other liabilities of the Company, the original issue price per
share for each share of preferred stock then outstanding, plus an amount equal to the original issue
price per share multiplied by 10% per annum from the original issue date, compounded annually to
the date of such distribution. The liquidation value of the Class A preferred stock was $2,908,235 as
of April 30, 2002. Its carrying amount was $2,375,000 at April 30, 2002.

A holder of the Class A preferred stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to convert the Class A
preferred stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common
stock.

In July 2001, 25,000 shares of Class B preferred stock were issued for gross proceeds of $500,000.
Transaction costs of $2,258 were incurred. The holders of Class B preferred stock are entitled to the
same rights and privileges as holders of Class A preferred stock except that in the event of
liquidation, dissolution or consolidation, the holders of the Class B preferred stock are not entitled to
a payment until the provision for payment to holders of Class A preferred stock has been satisfied.
The liquidation value of the Class B preferred stock was $533,333 as of April 30, 2002. Its carrying
amount was $497,742 at April 30, 2002.

In October 2001, 10 shares of special voting preferred stock were issued in conjunction with the
acquisition of 40% of the remaining interest in the Canadian Subsidiary (note 2). Each share of
special voting preferred stock entitles the holder to vote as if it represented 10,000 shares of Class A
common stock. These shares have no liquidation value and will be cancelled as the holder exchanges
the Holdings exchangeable shares, as described in note 2.
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Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 2,120,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $1.00 per
share and 100,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $1.00 per share. Class A common
stock and Class B common stock entitle the holders thereof to the same rights and privileges and are
identical in all respects as to all matters, except the holders of Class B common stock are entitled to
elect one more director than the number of directors elected by holders of the all other classes of
stock combined. Also, a holder of Class B common stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to
convert the Class B common stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
Class A common stock.

Pur Warrants

In July 2001, the Company issued 46,340 warrants to purchase Class A common stock to a venture
capital group which loaned the Company $2,000,000 in subordinated debt (note 8). The warrants
expire in 7 years or the date of a qualified public offering, as defined. These warrants are exercisable
immediately at an exercise price of $0.0001 per share. The warrants have a put option which allows
the holder to put the warrants or underlying shares of stock obtained upon exercise back to the
Company at a formula based on the Company’s cash flow after the 3™ anniversary date of the
warrant agreement, which is July 30, 2004, or a non-qualified public offering, as defined. The
warrants were valued at $970,000 as of the date of issuance.

Other Warrants

The Company issued 26,059 warrants to officers and directors in June 2001 in conjunction with
short-term loans to the Company totaling $1,302,967. All of the loans were repaid in fiscal year
2002. The warrants expire in June 2006 and allow the holder to purchase one share of Class A
common stock for each warrant held at an exercise price of $12.50 per share. The Company
recognized noncash interest expense totaling $126,991 in 2002, representing the deemed fair value of
the warrants issued.

The Company issued a total of 3,470 shares of Class A common stock at $14.78 per share during 2002 in
connection with the acquisition of franchises from existing franchisees.

Treasury stock is accounted for using the cost method.

Stock Compensation Plan

In May 1998, the Board of Directors approved the JTH Tax, Inc. Stock Option Plan (the Plan) and reserved
100,000 shares of Class A common stock for issuance pursuant to stock options that may be granted to
employees and outside directors thereunder.

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its plan.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its fixed stock options, which were granted
with an exercise price equal to the stock’s estimated fair market value at the date of grant. Had
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compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plan been determined consistent with
SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income in 2002 would have decreased to $2,419,254. Basic net income
per share and diluted net income per share would have decreased to $2.02 and $1.93, respectively.

The fair value of each option grant in 2002 was estimated on the date of grant using an option pricing
model with the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0%, expected volatility of 0%, risk-free interest
rate of 4.65 % and expected life of five years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s fixed stock option plan as of April 30, 2002 is presented below:

Weighted
average
Number of exercise
options price
Outstanding at beginning of year 86,312 $ 15.32
Granted 41,725 12.50
Exercised (4,200) 10.12
Expired — —
Forfeited (2,700) 16.39
Outstanding at end of the year 121,137 $ 14.72
Options exercisable at year-end 121,137

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at April 30,

2002:
Weighted
Weighted average
Number of shares average remaining
outstanding at Range of exercise contractual
April 30, 2002 exercise prices price life
21,700 $10-811 $10.23 1 year
23,312 $12.50 - $13.75 $12.66 2 years
35,900 $21.25 $21.25 3 years
40,225 §12.50 $12.50 4 years
(12) Net Income per Share
The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share:
-19
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Basic net income per share (restated):

Net income $ 2,525,279
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 934,054
Dilutive effect of convertible preferred stock 210,068
Dilutive effect of exchangeable shares 53,970
Weighted average number of common shares and convertible

preferred stock and exchangeable shares outstanding 1,198,092

Basic net income per share (restated) $ 2.11
Diluted net income per share:

Net income 5 2,525,279
Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive effect

of convertible preferred stock and exchangeable shares outstanding 1,198,092
Dilutive effect of stock option and warrants (as determined

by applying the treasury stock method) 54,006

Weighted average number of common shares and convertible
preferred stock and exchangeable shares outstanding and
potential dilutive common shares outstanding 1,252,098

Diluted net income per share $ 2.02

Restatement

Basic net income per share has been restated to include the dilutive effect of convertible preferred stock
and exchangeable shares outstanding which participate in dividends with the common stock. Basic net
income per share as previously reported was $2.38. Basic net income per share as restated is $2.11.

Related Party Transactions

The following summarizes the Company’s related party transactions:

Purchases and Sales of Customer Lists and Other Assets — During 2002, customer lists and other assets
were sold to related parties for $100,000. No gain was recognized on these sales. During 2002, customer
lists and other assets were purchased from related parties for $100,000 to be applied to the purchase of
another franchise territory. Consideration paid consisted of $41,250 for cancellation of debt, issuance of
3,470 shares of Class A common stock and $15,000 in cash.

Notes Receivable — At April 30, 2002, related parties owed the Company $601,466 under notes receivable.
Repayments of notes receivable from these parties during the year ended April 30, 2002 were $11,093.
Notes receivable from related parties relate to sales of franchise territories and are subject to the same
terms and conditions as notes with unrelated parties, which are described in note 3.

Notes Payable — At April 30, 2002, there were notes payable to related parties in the amount of $83,000. In
addition, the Company issued warrants to purchase 26,059 shares of Class A common stock at an exercise
price of $12.50 per share to certain directors and officers for loans that were extended to the Company. The
Company recognized non-cash interest expense totaling $126,991 in 2002, representing the difference
between the exercise price and the deemed fair value of the warrants issued.
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Other — The Company recognized $32,937 in royalty and advertising revenue from franchises owned by
related parties for the year ended April 30, 2002.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The plan allows
employees to contribute up to 15% of eligible wages. The Company does not make contributions to the
plan.

Business Concentrations

As of April 30, 2002, approximately 7% of the outstanding notes and accounts receivable relate to two
franchisees. Because the Company operates throughout the United States and Canada, no single geographic
area or franchisee represents more than 5% of the Company’s revenues.

Leases

The Company is obligated under various operating leases for office space that expire at various dates.
Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of April 30, 2002 are
approximately as follows:

2003 $ 925,000
2004 704,000
2005 561,000
2006 127,000
2007 45,000

$ 2,362,000

Total rent expense for operating leases was approximately $845,000 for the year ended April 30, 2002.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has guaranteed operating leases of certain franchises. These leases relate to office equipment
and signs. The total obligations under these leases are $690,357 as of April 30, 2002 and have remaining
terms up to 60 months.

The Company is a defendant in certain lawsuits and is aware of other threatened claims generally
incidental to its business as a franchisor. Management is of the opinion that the accompanying consolidated
financial statements will not be materially affected by the ultimate resolution of litigation pending or
threatened as of April 30, 2002.

Subsequent Evénts

In May 2002, the Company authorized the grant of 41,800 stock options to certain employees. The exercise
price of these options-will be $25 per share which management believes was the fair market value at the
date of the grant. The options will vest after six months and may be exercised over a five-year period.
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Richmond, Virginia 23219

Tel: (804) 697-1500

Fax: (804) 697-1825 :
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& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
JTH Tax, Inc.
Virginia Beach, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity, and cash flows of JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) for the year ended April 30,
2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
the Company’s operations and their cash flows for the year ended April 30, 2001 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 13, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2001 have
been restated.

Loty € FGrude LET

June 19, 2001
(August 28, 2002 as to the effects of the restatement discussed in Note 13)
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2001

2001
Revenues:

Royalties and advertising fees $ - 3,183,583
Franchise fees 4,103,913
Tax preparation fees, net of discounts 607,880
Bank product and tax discounting income 2,184,575
- Bookkeeping and consulting income 185,806
Other income 304,331
Total revenue 10,570,088

Operating expenses:
Employee compensation and benefits 4,437330
General and administrative expenses 4,044,282
Advertising expense 2,067,090
Depreciation and amortization expense 211,583
Total operating expenses 10,760,285

Operating loss (190,197)

Other income (expenses), net:

Interest income 511,163
Interest expense ’ (324,701}
Gain on sale of intangibles and property and equipment, net 144,737
Other, net 14,607
Minority interest in subsidiary's net income (65,031)
Net income $ 90,578

Net income per share (Note 6):
Basic net income per share (as restated, see Note 13) b 0.09

Weighted average number of common shares and
convertible preferred stock outstanding 991,564

Diluted net income per share 3 0.09

Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive potential
common shares outstanding 1,040,776

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense
Foreign currency translation
Minority interest in subsidiary’s loss
Gain on sale of intangibles assets and property and equipment net
Changes in assets and liabilities increasing (decreasing) cash flows
from operating activities:
Restricted cash
Trade accounts receivable
Notes receivable
Interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred franchise fees and franchise deposits
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Issuance of operating loans to franchisees
Payments received from franchisees
Purchases of customer lists and other assets
Proceeds from sale of customer lists and other assets
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows trom financing activities:

Proceeds from sales of common stock, net of issuance cost of $5,447
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost

Net borrowings under lines of credit

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

F-27

2001

§ 90,578

211,583
718,148
(99,015)

65,031

(144,737)

3,848
(1,709,272)
(1,517,329)

(365,979)
(132,905)
(49,621)
(8,568)
792,129
(571,504)
(2,717,613)

(929,059)
1,430,278

(66,315)
90,400

(265,112)
260,192

452,053

(54,000)
1,845,637
2,385,000

(809,900)
3,818,790

1,361,369
442,866
$ 1,804,235
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2001

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:

During the year ended April 30, 2001, the Company acquired certain
assets from franchisees as follows:
Fair value of assets purchased
Receivables forgiven
Notes payable issued

Cash paid to seller

During the year ended April 30, 2001, the Company sold certain assets to
franchisees as follows:
Book value of assets sold
Franchise fee revenue
Gain on sale
Notes issued

Cash received

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows Information

Notes received on financed franchise sale
Restructured notes receivable/advances
Cancelled notes receivable
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

Income taxes

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2001
$ 1,135,387
(556,723)
(512,349)
$ 66315
$ 514,802
38,746
115,452
(578,600)
$ 90400
$ 2,389,688
$ 20,800
$ 512,002
$ 34,752
$ 1,681
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JTH TAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2001

(1) Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Organization

JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) is a franchisor and operator of a system of offices in the
United States and Canada engaged in the preparation of personal income tax returns. Through this
system of offices, the Company also offers its customers refund anticipation loans and personal income
tax refund discounting. The Company operates under the trade name “Liberty Tax Service.”

The Company was formed in October 1996 as a Delaware corporation. EmployeesPlus, Inc., a Virginia
corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was created in November 2000 and
currently operates Company-owned store locations. Liberty Tax Service, Inc., (the Canadian Subsidiary)
was incorporated under the Companies Act of Manitoba, Canada in May 1994 and is 60% owned by
JTH Tax, Inc.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JTH Tax, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, EmployeesPlus, Inc., and its 60% interest in Liberty Tax Service, Inc. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The revenues and expenses of the Canadian subsidiary have been translated using the average rates in
effect each month of the year. Transaction gains and losses are recognized in the year of occurrence.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(d) Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are recorded at cost, less the related allowance for doubtful accounts. Because the
repayment of the notes receivable is dependent on the performance of the underlying franchise which
collateralizes the note, management estimates the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts based
on a comparison of amounts due to the estimated fair value of the underlying franchise. Impairment
losses are included in the allowance for doubtful accounts through a charge to bad debt expense.

(e) Property and Equipment

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives
of the depreciable assets, generally 3 to 5 years for computer equipment, and 7 years for furniture and
fixtures and 20 to 35 years for buildings. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the
lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets. Gains or losses on disposition of property and
equipment are included in operations in the year of disposals.
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(P Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of the goodwill associated with the acquisition of the Canadian
Subsidiary, as well as the value assigned to customer lists, covenants not to compete and goodwill
related to Company-owned stores acquired by the Company, which are generally amortized using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Customer lists are amortized over five years.
Covenants not to compete are amortized over the term of the non-competition agreement, which is
typically three years. Goodwill related to the 60% interest in the Canadian Subsidiary and stores
acquired is amortized over 10 and 5 years, respectively.

(2) Revenue Recognition

Franchise fee revenue, is recognized when obligations of the Company to prepare the franchisee for
operation have been substantially completed. Franchise fees that are financed by the Company are
recorded as deferred franchise fees until such time as the franchisee has made a significant financial
commitment (20%). Royalties and advertising fees are recognized currently as the franchised territory
generates sales. Royalty concessions totaling $185,265 were issued in fiscal year 2001 to various
franchisees due to software problem with a third party vendor which occurred in fiscal year 2000.
Electronic transfer fees, tax return preparation fees and bank product fees are recognized as revenue in
the period the related tax return is filed or prepared for the customer. Discounts are recorded for
promotional programs at the time the return is prepared.

Gains on sales of Company-owned stores, which are financed by the Company, are deferred until the
franchisee has made a significant financial commitment (20%). Losses on sales of Company-owned
stores are recognized immediately.

The Company recognizes revenue related to software development based on the provision of Statement
of Position (SOP) No. 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition” (as amended and interpreted). Software
development fees are recognized as revenue upon the customer’s execution of a noncancelable license
agreement and delivery of the software, provided that the fee is fixed and determinable, collectibility is
. probable, and no customization of the software is required. Postcontract customer support revenue is
recognized together with the initial fee, on delivery of the software when all of the following are met:
(1) the postcontract customer support revenue is included with the initial fee, (2) the postcontract
customer support service to be provided is one year or less, (3) the estimated cost of providing
postcontract customer support during the arrangement 1s insignificant, and (4) any unspecified upgrades
are expected to be minimal.

The Company ceases the accrual of interest income on notes receivable once they become past due.
(h) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

(i) Comprehensive Income

-Comprehensive income consists of net income and the foreign currency translation adjustment and is
presented in the consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity.
089
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() Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company has chosen to account for stock-based compensation using
the intrinsic-value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (APB Opinion No. 25), and related interpretations. Accordingly,
compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the estimated fair value of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

(k) Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income attributable to common stockholders per share has been computed by dividing net
income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted net income attributable to common stockholders per share reflects the potential
dilution that could occur assuming the inclusion of dilutive potential common shares and has been
computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number
of common shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding. Dilutive potential common shares
include all outstanding stock options after applying the treasury stock method.

(1) Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period to prepare
these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(m) Software Development

Software development cost incurred for internally developed software are expensed as incurred until
technological feasibility has been established. The Company considers technological feasibility to be
established when all planning, design, coding and testing has been completed according to design
specification. After the technological feasibility has been established, any additional cost would be
capitalized in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software to be Sold,
Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” Through April 30, 2001, software development has been substantially
completed concurrently with the establishment of technological feasibility, and accordingly, no costs
have been capitalized to date.

(n) New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Investments and Hedging Activities,”” which establishes accounting and reporting standards
for derivative instruments and hedging activities. As amended by SFAS No. 137, this standard will be
effective for the Company for fiscal years and quarters beginning after April 30, 2001, and requires that
an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and
measure those instruments at fair value. Management has evaluated the impact of the adoption of SFAS
No. 133 and determined that the application of this new standard will not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

(2) Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the year ended April 30, 2001 was $82,007.
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(3) Income Taxes
Components of income tax benefit for the year ended April 30, 2001 were as follows:

There was no current income tax benefit/expense for the year ended April 30, 2001, as the Company
utilized net operating loss carryforwards to offset current year income. There was no deferred income
tax benefit/expense for the year ended April 30, 2001 as any change in net deferred tax asset was offset
by a change in the valuation allowance.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the U.S. Federal statutory rate for the year ended
April 30, 2001 as follows:

Computed “expected” income tax expense § 30,797
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2,394
Nondeductible expenses ' 17,379
Change in valuation allowance (52,219)
Other 1,649
$ -

The tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases
of assets and liabilities that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at
April 30, 2001 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 1,100,255
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, deductible
for tax purposes when paid 518,342
Allowance for doubtful accounts, deductible for
tax purposes when accounts are written off 170,876
Total deferred tax assets 1,789,473
Deferred tax liability:
Accounts receivable, included in taxable income
when payment is received 1,111,069
Net deferred tax asset, before valuation allowance 678,404
Valuation allowance (678,404)
Net deferred tax asset ' $ -

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. For the year ended April 30, 2001, the Company had recorded a valuation
allowance to defer recognition of the income tax benefit.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3,345,000, which expire
beginning in 2018.
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The Canadian subsidiary had income from its current operations in Canada and utilized a portion of their
loss carryforwards for the year ended April 30, 2001. Their remaining loss carryforwards will expire in
2005.

Stockholders’ Equity
(a) Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized and issued 190,000 shares of and Class A preferred stock with a par value
of $1.00 per share. The holders of the Class A preferred stock are entitled to a dividend if a dividend is
declared for common stock and shall receive a dividend as if each share of preferred stock were a share
of Class A common stock, and a liquidation preference upon the liquidation, dissolution or consolidation
of the Company. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or consolidation, the holders of Class A
preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Company, after payment or provision
for payment of the debts or other liabilities of the Company, the original issue price per share for each
share of preferred stock then outstanding, plus an amount equal to the original issue price per share
multiplied by 10% per annum from the original issue date, compounded annually to the date of such
distribution.

A holder of the Class A preferred stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to convert the Class A
preferred stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock.

(b) Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 2,120,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $1.00 per
share and 100,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $1.00 per share. Class A common stock
and Class B common stock entitle the holders thereof to the same rights and privileges and are identical
in all respects as to all matters, except the holders of Class B common stock are entitled to elect one
more director than the number of directors elected by holders of the all other classes of stock combined.
Also, a holder of Class B common stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to convert the Class B
common stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock.

Treasury stock is accounted for using the cost method.

Stock Compensation Plan

In May 1998, the Board of Directors approved the JTH Tax, Inc. Stock Option Plan (the Plan) and
reserved 100,000 shares of Class A common stock for issuance pursuant to stock options that may be
granted to employees and outside directors thereunder.

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its plan.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its fixed stock options, which were granted
with an exercise price equal to the stock’s estimated fair market value at the date of grant. Had
compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plan been determined consistent with
SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income in 2001 would have reported a net loss of $246,082 and a
loss per share for both basic and diluted of $.30.

The fair value of $8.09 for each option grant in 2001 was estimated on the date of grant using an option
pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0%, expected volatility of 0%, risk-
free interest rate of 4.625% and expected life of five years.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s fixed stock option plan for the year ended April 30, 2001 is
presented below:

Weighted

average

Number of exercise

options price

Outstanding at beginning of year 50,512 § 10.86
Granted 41,600 21.25
Exercised (800) 10.94
Forfeited (5,000) 20.38
Outstanding at end of the year 86,312 $ 1532

Options exercisable at year-end 86,312

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
April 30, 2001:

Weighted
Weighted average
Number of shares average remaining
outstanding at Range of exercise contractual
April 30, 2001 exercise prices price life
25,700 $10- 811 § 10.19 2 years
- 23,512 $12.50 - $13.75 $ 12.66 3 years
37,100 $21.25 $ 2125 4 years
093
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Net Income per Share

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share:

Basic net income per share:
Net income
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of convertible preferred stock (due
to participating dividends)
Weighted average number of common shares and
convertible preferred stock

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share:
Net income
Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive
effect of convertible preferred stock

Dilutive effect of stock options (as determined by applying
the treasury stock method)

Weighted average number of common shares and convertible
preferred stock potential dilutive common shares outstanding

Diluted net income per share

Related Party Transactions

The following summarizes the Company’s related party transactions:

$ 90,578
801,564

190,000

991,564
$ 0.09

§ 90,578
991,564

49,212

1,040,776
$ 0.09

Purchases and Sales of Customer Lists and Other Assets - During 2001, customer lists and other assets
were sold to related parties for $40,000 in notes receivables. A deferred gain of $20,206 was recorded on

these sales.

Other - The Company recognized $70,753 in royalty and advertising revenue from franchises owned by

related parties for the year ended April 30, 2001.

The Company leased retail space to a related party from December 1, 1999 through August 30, 2000
with monthly rental of $1,800, accordingly $7,200 of rental income was recognized by the Company

during the year ended April 30, 2001.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The plan allows
employees to contribute up to 15% of eligible wages. The Company does not make contributions to the

plan.

Business Concentrations

Because the Company operates throughout the United States and Canada, no single geographic area or

franchisee represents more than 5% of the Company’s revenues.
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(10) Leases

Capital Lease - Included in property and equipment are the following amounts applicable to the capital

lease:
2001
Software $24,742
Less accumulated amortization (7,978)
$16,764

Total amortization expense charged under the capital lease was $4,899 for the year ended April 30,
2001. The present value of future minimum capital lease payments as of April 30, 2001 is as follows:

Capital
Lease
2002 h) 9,468
2003 _ 3,945
Total minimum lease payments 13,413
Amount representing interest 1,135
Present value of future minimum lease payments 12,278
Less current installments (8,449)
Obligations under capital leases, excluding
current installments | 5 3,829

The Company is obligated under various operating leases for office space that expire at various dates.
Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases, as of April 30, 2001 are
approximately as follows:

2002 $ 712,505
2003 607,530
2004 455,597
2005 ' 367,200
2006 40,908
Thereafter 9,800

$2,193 540

The Company expects to receive $378,457 as minimum sublease rentals for these operating lease over
the next four years.

Total rent expense for operating leases was approximately $574,739 for the year ended April 30, 2001.

(11) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has guaranteed operating leases of certain franchises. These leases relate to office
equipment and signs. The total obligations under these leases are $69,292 as of April 30, 2001 and have
remaining terms up to 36 months.
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The Company is a defendant in certain lawsuits and is aware of other threatened claims generally
incidental to its business as a franchisor. Management is of the opinion that the accompanying
consolidated financial statements will not be materially affected by the ultimate resolution of litigation
pending or threatened as of April 30, 2001.

In March 2001, as a result of a lawsuit against a competitor, the Company was awarded approximately
$506,000 in damages and $315,000 in attorney’s fees. The defendant has appealed the ruling and
accordingly the amount to be collected, if any, cannot be determined at April 30, 2001.

Subsequent Events

In May 2001, the Company authorized the grant of 27,725 stock options to certain employees. The
exercise price of these options to be at the fair market value of the common stock at the date of the grant.
The options will vest after six months and may be exercised over a five-year period.

In May 2001, the Company agreed to issue 260,000 shares of Class A Common Stock in exchange for
$2,000,000 in cash and the remaining 40% of the capital stock of the Canadian subsidiary.

In June 2001, the Company’s line of credit with a bank increased from $500,000 to $2,000,000 and is
secured by an assignment of security interest in the Company’s notes receivable. This new line of credit
expires on May 31, 2002 and accrues interest at LIBOR plus 2.25%.

Restatement

Subsequent to the issuance of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
April 30, 2001, the Company determined that the if converted method should have been utilized to
compute basic earnings per share due to the participation feature included in the Company’s Class A

Preferred Stock. As a result, basic earnings per share have been restated from the $.11 per share
previously reported to $.09 per share. The restatement had no effect on net income.
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JTH TAX, INC.
Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

April 30, 2000
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JTH TAX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (un-audited)
APRIL 30, 2000

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash of $429,721
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $345,245
Notes receivable - current portion, net of allowance of $89,020
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other

Total current assets
FIXED ASSETS:
Land
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS:
Deposits
Notes receivable - less current portion, net of allowance of $101,969
Intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $53,642

Total other assets

Total assets

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 872,587
2,126,756
1,831,888

67,317
24,700
12,003

4,935,251
134,235

335,135
534,668

(150,021)

854,017

43,551
3,009,038
345,651

3,398,240

$9,187,508
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JTH TAX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (un-audited)
APRIL 30, 2000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Capital lease - current portion
Notes and mortgages payable - current portion

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Capital lease - less current portion
Notes and mortgages payable - less current portion
Franchise deposits
Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, Class A
Common stock, Class B
Preferred stock
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost
Minority interest in subsidiary
Equity adjustment from foreign currency translation
Retained deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
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$1,260,828
7,498
271,933

1,540,259

12,279
375,591
1,403,030
26,694

1,817,594

701,147
90,000
190,000
7,715,905

(35,000)
362,162
60,862

(3,255,421)

5,829,655

$9,187,508
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JTH TAX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - (un-audited)

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2000

REVENUE:
Royalties and advertising fees
Minimum royalty concessions
Franchise fees
Tax preparation, net of discounts
Bank product and tax discounting income
Bookkeeping and consulting income
Tuition fees

Other income

Total revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee compensation and benefits
General and administrative expenses
Advertising expense
Depreciation and amortization expense

Total operating expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSES):
Interest and dividend income
Gain on sale of intangibles and fixed assets
Interest expense
Other

$ 2,270,126
(385,540)
430,945
164,286
939,398
134,977
18,490

111,906

3,684,588

3,001,296
2,645,912
1,577,224

310,262

7,534,694

(3,850,106)

346,071
1,288,179

(145,836)
(1,873)

Total other income and expel 1,496,541

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND
MINORITY INTEREST

Provision for income taxes

LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interest in subsidiary's net loss

NET LOSS

Net loss per common share

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(2,353,565)
(133,287)
(2,486,852)

21,417

$ (2,465,435)
$ (2.62)
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JTH TAX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (un-audited)
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Foreign currency translation
Minority interest in subsidiary's loss
Deferred income taxes
Gain on sale of intangibles and fixed assets
Franchise sale and deposits financed
Bad debt expense

Changes in operation assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expense
Other assets
Inventories
Intangible assets
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Franchise deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of tax services
Purchase of tax services' assets
Purchase of fixed assets
Operating loans to franchisees
Payments received on notes receivable

Net cash used in investing activities
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$ (2,465,435)

310,262
3,692
(21,417)
130,098
(1,298,179)
(73,450)
351,025

(793,202)
(193,288)
330,626
(34,128)
(47,092)
(4,029)
535,331
(55,794)

1,108,780

(2,216,200)

110,600
(256,322)
(590,551)

(1,021,377)

971,075

(786,575)
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JTH TAX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2000

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cost of issuing capital stock
Proceeds from sale of stock
Repayment of obligations under capital lease
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Disclosures

Notes received on disposal of fixed assets
Notes received on financed franchise sale
Financed deposits
Stock issued for tax practices acquired
Capital lease obligation incurred for software
Cash paid (received) during the year for:

Interest

Income taxes paid

Income tax refund

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(6,591)
3,274,263
(6,653)
(35,000)
141,100
(154,477)
3,212,642
209,867
662,720
S 872,587
$ 352,286
$ 3,684,853
$ 128,625
$ 370,537
$ 30,560
$ 17,726
S 4,524
$ (324,273)
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JTH TAX, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2000

1. ORGANIZATION

Nature of Business - JTH Tax, Inc., a Delaware Corporation was formed in October 1996. JKS
Holding Corp., a Virginia corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of JTH Tax, Inc., was created in
November 1998 and operates company owned store locations. Liberty Tax Service, Inc. (“the Canadian
subsidiary”) was incorporated under the Companies Act of Manitoba, Canada in May 1994, and is 60%
owned by JTH Tax, Inc. The companies provide personal income tax return preparation services,
personal income tax refund discounting and is also a franchisor of these services in Canada and the
United States. These services are provided through company-owned operations and franchised agents
and operates under the trade name Liberty Tax Service.

Basis of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the parent company, its wholly 6wned subsidiary and its 60% interest in the Canadian subsidiary
(collectively, “the Company”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Business Concentrations - Approximately 25% of the notes and accounts receivable relate to two
franchisees. Because the Company operates throughout the United States and Canada, no single
geographic area or franchisee represents more than 5% of the Company’s revenues.

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Effective May 1, 1999, JTH Tax, Inc. changed its estimate (amortization period) of intangible lives
from 40 years for all intangibles to 5 years for customer lists, between 5 and 10 years for goodwill and
between 2 and 5 years for covenants not to compete depending on the length of each respective
agreement. The effect of this change increased the current year net loss by $20,466 or $.03 per common
share.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company invests cash in excess of its immediate requirements in
money market mutual funds and short-term bonds. Because of their short-term nature, high liquidity
and stable principal value, the Company includes such amounts in cash and cash equivalents. At
April 30, 2000, cash and cash equivalents included $429,721 which was restricted as of year end.
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Notes Receivable - Notes receivable are recorded at cost, less the related allowance for doubtful
accounts. Because the repayment of the notes receivable is dependent on the performance of the
underlying franchise, which collateralizes the note, management estimates the amount of the allowance
for doubtful accounts based on a comparison of amounts due to the estimated fair value of the
underlying franchise.

Inventory - Inventory consists of supplies and signs for sale to franchisees. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost or market, determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged against operations, renewals and betterments that materially extend the life of
the assets are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using straight-line and accelerated methods over 3
to 7 years. Gains or losses on dispositions of property and equipment are included in operations in the
year of disposal.

Intangible Assets - Intangible assets primarily relate to the goodwill associated with the purchase of the
Canadian subsidiary and the value assigned to customer lists, covenants not to compete, and goodwill
related to stores acquired and operated by the Company. Intangibles are amortized over a 2 to 10 year
life, as described in Note 2.

Franchise Deposits - From May 1, 1999 until November 1, 1999, the Company waived the initial
franchisee fee for new franchise territories except in areas of the United States where the Company had
operated prior to May 1, 1999 and Hampton Roads, Virginia. The Company required that these new
franchisees pay a security deposit for each territory. These security deposits are held by the company

until expiration or termination of the franchise agreement. The Company held security deposits of
$1,403,030 as of April 30, 2000.

Revenue Recognition - Franchise fee revenue is recognized when obligations of the Company to
prepare the franchisee for operation have been substantially completed. Franchise fees that are financed
by the Company are deferred until such time as the franchisee has made a significant financial
commitment. Royalties and advertising fees are recognized currently as the franchised territory
generates sales. Royalty concessions totaling $385,540 were issued to various franchisees due to a
software problem with a third party vendor. These concessions are shown as a reduction of revenue in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Electronic transfer fees, tax preparation fees and bank

. product fees are recognized as revenue in the period the tax return is filed or prepared for the customer.

Gains on sales of Company-owned stores which are financed by the Company are deferred until the
franchisee has made a significant financial commitment. Losses on sales are recognized immediately.

Translation of Foreign Currencies - The financial statements are stated in United States currency. The
financial statements of Liberty Tax Service, Inc. were translated to United States dollars as of year end
using the rate of .6897 per dollar and a weighted average rate of .6812 per dollar. A foreign currency
translation adjustment of $3,692, net of tax, is reflected in the equity section of the consolidated balance
sheet to recognize the change during the year.

Income Taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under Statement No. 109, the
asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of
assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rate and laws that are expected to be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse.
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Software Development - Software development cost incurred for internally developed software are
written off in the year incurred.

Net Loss Per Common Share - Basic net income per share has been computed by dividing net income
by the weighted average number of common shares and convertible preferred shares of stock
outstanding on an if converted basis. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur assuming the inclusion of dilutive potential common shares and has been computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares and convertible preferred stock
outstanding and dilutive potential common shares outstanding. Dilutive potential common shares
include all outstanding stock options after applying the treasury stock method

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following summarizes the Company’s related party transactions:

Purchases and Sales of Customer Lists and Other Assets - During 2000, customer lists and other
assets were sold to related parties for $75,000 in cash and $1,075,000 in notes receivable. A gain of
$332,191 was recognized on these sales.

Notes Receivable - At April 30, 2000, related parties owed the Company $1,185,534, under notes
receivable. Repayments of notes receivable from these parties during the year ended April 30, 2000
were $225,422. Notes receivable from related parties relate to sales of franchise territories and are

subject to the same terms and conditions as notes with unrelated parties, which are described in note
5.

Other - The Company recognized $105,900, in royalty and advertising revenue from franchises
owned by related parties for the year ended April 30, 2000. The Company leases retail space to a
related party with a lease term beginning December 1, 1999 and expiring April 30, 2001, with a
monthly rent of $1,800 beginning in April 2000. Accordingly, $1,800 in rental income was
recognized by the Company during the year ended April 30, 2000.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Company provides financing to business partners to finance the purchasing of franchises and/or for
working capital and equipment needs. The notes generally are due annually over four years and bear
interest at various rates from 8 to 12%. Transactions for 2000 follow:

Balance at beginning of year $ 44,140
Notes issued:
Sales of company owned stores 4,548,413
Operating loans to franchisees 1,021,377
Sales and deposits on franchise territories 202,075
Accrued interest income on notes _ 290,237
Less:
Allowance for doubtful notes (190,989)
Repayment of notes and interest due (923,047)
Repayment of interest due (151,280)
Balance at end of year $ 4,840,926
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Notes receivable reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, include notes related to the
sale of customer lists as well as loans to business partners for working capital and equipment.
Substantially all of the notes receivable reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are
due from the Company’s franchisees. The franchisees’ ability to repay the notes is dependent upon the
performance of the tax preparation industry as a whole and the Company in particular. The notes are
secured by the underlying franchise and are guaranteed by the franchisees. Management believes that
the recorded allowance is adequate based upon its consideration of the estimated value of the franchises
supporting the receivables. '

LINES OF CREDIT

The Company has an unsecured line of credit with a bank which permits up to $500,000 of borrowings
and expires on April 30, 2001. The line accrues interest at prime plus 2% and is due on demand.
There were no borrowings against the line at April 30, 2000.

The Canadian subsidiary has a line of credit secured by $429,721 in restricted cash which permits
borrowings of up to $8,700,000 for the use in financing refund anticipation loans. The line accrues
interest at 8% and expires May 25, 2000. There were no borrowings against the line at April 30, 2000
or May 25, 2000.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at April 30, 2000 consists of the following:

Mortgage payable to bank; monthly installments of $ 1,236

including interest at 8.5%, due December 20, 2019, 140,124
collateralized by building and land
Notes payable for acquired practices, interest at 8%, due May 2000 180,000
Notes payable for acquired practices, interest at 6.5%, due May 2001 79,500
Notes payable for acquired practices, interest at 6.25%, due May 2002 235,184
Accrued interest payable 12,716
Total long-term debt ' 647,524
Less current installments (271,933)
Total long-term debt, less current installments $ 375,591

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

April 30

2001 $ 271,933
2002 132,689
2003 94,977
2004 20,961
2005 4,048
Thereafter 122,875
Total $ 647,483
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COMMON AND PREFERRED STOCK

JTH Tax, Inc. is authorized to issue 2,540,000 shares of capital stock, consisting of 2,120,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, 100,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, par value
$1.00 per share and 320,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share. At April 30, 2000,
there are 701,147 shares of Class A Common Stock, 90,000 shares of Class B Common Stock and
190,000 shares of Preferred Stock outstanding.

Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock entitle the holders thereof to the same rights and
privileges and are identical in all respects as to all matters except, the holders of Class A Common
Stock are entitled to elect one fewer director than the number of directors elected by holders of the
Class B Common Stock. Also, a holder of Class B Common Stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to
convert the Class B Common Stock into an equal number of fuily paid and non-assessable shares of
Class A Common Stock.

In May 1999, 190,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™) were sold in a
private placement to two private investors. The Company received net proceeds (after payment of
placement fees and expenses) of $2,375,000. The holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to a
dividend if a dividend is declared for Common Stock and shall receive a dividend as if each share of
preferred stock were a share of Class A Common Stock, and a liquidation preference upon the
liquidation, dissolution or consolidation of the Company. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or
consolidation, the holders of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Company, after payment or provision for payment of the debts or other liabilities of the Company, the
original issue price per share for each share of Preferred Stock then outstanding plus an amount equal to
the original issue price per share multiplied by 10% per annum from the original issue date,
compounded annually to the date of such distribution.

A holder of the Class A Preferred Stock may, at the holder’s option, elect to convert the Class A \
Preferred Stock into an equal number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A Common
Stock. !

From November 1999 to March 2000, the Company sold 34,156 additional shares of Class A Common
Stock at $25.00 per share totaling $853,900.

Treasury stock is accounted for using the cost method.
STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company maintains a Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) to reward its full-time employees. The
following table sets forth the activity under the plan for the year ended April 30, 2000.

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding, beginning of the year 42812 $ 10.12
Options granted during the year 17,300 o 12mn
Options exercised during the year 2,600 $ 1096
Options forfeited during the year 7,000 $ 1086
Options outstanding, end of the year 50,512 $ 10.86
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10.

11.

The Plan provides a maximum number of shares that may be issued of 100,000. The options issued
under the Plan are administered and granted by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
April 30, 2000:

Number Weighted
Outstanding at Range of Weighted Average Average Remaining
April 30, 2000 Exercise Prices Exercise Price Contractual Life
36,612 $10 - %11 $ 10.14 4 years
13,900 $12.50 - $13.75 $ 1276 S5 years

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its plan. Accordingly, no compensation
expense has been recognized for its stock-based compensation plan as the exercise price for all options
approximated fair value at the date of grant. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock incentive
plan been determined based upon the fair value at the grant date for awards under this plan consistent
with the methodology prescribed under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), the Company’s net loss and loss per share
would have increased to $2,524,838 and 3.34, respectively.

For purposes of the SFAS 123 computations, the weighted average fair value of each option granted
during the year ended April 30, 2000, was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following assumptions for 2000; fair value of options granted of $12.50; no
dividend yield; risk-free rate of 6.75%; and expected lives of 5 years.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of revenue and expenses for
tax and financial reporting purposes. For 2000, deferred taxes resulted primarily from differences in tax
and financial accounting for fixed assets, intangible assets, and certain reserves. The deferred tax assets
were fully reserved during 2000 due to the uncertainty of future operations and the possibility that the
deferred tax assets may not be realized.

As of April 30, 2000, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future
federal and state taxable income of $2,400,744. The federal net operating loss carryforwards of
$342,961 and $2,057,783 will expire in 2017 and 2018, respectively.

The Canadian subsidiary had a loss from its current operations in Canada and that loss is available for
Canadian income tax purposes as a loss carryforward until April 30, 2006.

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Capital Lease - Included in property and equipment are the following amounts applicable to the capital
lease:

Software $ 24,742
Less accumulated amortization (3,079)
$ 21,663
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12.

Total amortization expense charged under the capital lease was $3,079 for the year ended April 30,
2000. The present value of future minimum capital lease payments as of April 30, 2000 is as follows:

Capital
Lease
2001 § 9468
2002 9,468
2003 3,945
Total minimum lease payments 22,881
Amount representing interest 3,104
Present value of future minimum lease payments 19,777
Less current installments (7,498)
Obligations under capital leases, excluding
current installments $ 12279

Operating Leases - The Company leases various office space under separate agreements which are
classified as operating leases. These leases have initial periods, which expire at different times, with
expirations ranging from 2 to 68 months. These leases are renewable, at the Company’s option. Rent
expense under these agreements was $301,035 for the year ended April 30, 2000.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Years ending

2001 $ 340,586
2002 315,677
2003 284,399
2004 234,685
2005 234,526
Thereafter 13,637
Total $1,423,510

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and Contingencies - The Company has guaranteed operating leases of certain franchises.
These leases relate to office equipment and signs. The gross lease obligations under these leases are
$74,154 and have remaining terms up to 36 months.

Litigation - The Company is subject to various investigations, claims and legal proceedings covering a
wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. The Company is a
defendant in certain lawsuits and is aware of other threatened claims generally incidental to its business
as a franchisor. Management is of the opinion that the accompanying consolidated financial statements
will not be materially affected by the ultimate resolution of litigation pending or threatened at April 30,
2000.
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13.

14.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

401(k) Plan - The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The
plan allows employees to contribute up to 15% of applicable wages. The Company does not make
contributions to the Plan. The participants are able to invest their contributions in a variety of mutual
funds.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In May 2000, the Company granted 41,600 stock options at an exercise price of $21.25 per share, which
management believes approximated fair value, to certain members of management and employees. The
options vest after six months and may be exercised in whole or part over a five year period.
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Form of Subscription and Investor Representation Agreement
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Name of Subscriber

Amount of Subscription $

JTH TAX, INC.
SUBSCRIPTION AND INVESTMENT REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT

JTH Tax, inc.

4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

cfo Mr. Raymond A. Dunn, |l

Gentlemen:
Section 1
1.1 Subscription. The undersigned hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of
shares of Class A Common Stock ("Shares") set forth above, at a price of $40.00 per Share, of JTH Tax, Inc.
(the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, on the terms and conditions described herein and in the Offering
Circular dated , 2002 (together with all appendices and supplemenis (if any) thereto, the "Circular”)
relating to the offering ("Offering") of Shares of the Company.

1.2 Purchase.

The undersigned has tendered or agrees to tender upon demand by the Company, the
amount set forth above.

1.3 Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription.

(a) The undersigned understands and agrees that the Company reserves the right in its
sole discretion to reject this subscription for Shares in whole or in part and at any time prior to the applicable
Closing Date (as defined below), notwithstanding prior receipt by the undersigned of notice of acceptance of
the undersigned's subscription.

(b) In the event of rejection of this subscription, the subscription amount tendered by the
undersigned will be promptly refunded to the undersigned without interest or deduction and this Agreement
shall have no force or effect. In the event the undersigned's subscription is accepted, the funds specified
above shall be reieased to the Company on the applicable Closing Date and the subscribers whose
subscriptions were accepted shall be issued Shares in accordance with these subscriptions.

1.4 Closing Date; Minimum Offering; Escrow. This offering is a minimum/maximum offering, and
no Shares will be sold unless the Company receives subscriptions for at least 9,375 Shares with an aggregate
purchase price of $375,000 (the “Minimum Offering”). Until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for, all funds
received by the Company for Shares will be deposited with SouthTrust Bank, Chesapeake, Virginia, as escrow
agent (the “Escrow Agent”), which will hold these funds until it has received funds aggregating at least the
amount of the Minimum Offering. |f the Escrow Agent has not received funds equal to or exceeding the
Minimum Offering by March 31, 2003, the Escrow Agent will return all funds, without any deduction for
expenses, directly to the subscribers. Purchases by directors, officers and their affiliates will not be counted in
determining whether the Minimum Offering has been achieved. Funds received after the Minimum Offering is
reached will not be subject to an escrow requirement. Assuming the Minimum Offering is reached by the
above date, Shares shall continue to be sold until the earlier of (i) the date 125,000 Shares have been sold or
(i) a termination date as determined by the Company. At any time after the Minimum Offering is sold, the
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Company may conduct one or more closings for the purchase of Shares in such amounts as it shall determine
(each, a "Closing Date").

Section 2

THE COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE UNDERSIGNED, BY ACKNOWLEDGING AND MAKING
THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES IN THIS SECTION 2, HAS NOT WAIVED ANY RIGHT OF
ACTION THAT MAY EXIST UNDER THE APPLICABLE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS.

2.1 Investor Representations and Warranties. The undersigned hereby acknowledges and
makes the following representations and warranties.

(a) For those investors residing in any state other than California, Maryland, New York
and Virginia, the undersigned represents and warrants that the undersigned is acquiring the Shares for the
undersigned's own account, for investment purposes only, and not with a view to or for the resale, distribution
or fractionalization thereof, in whole or in part, and no other person has a direct or indirect beneficial interest in
the Shares herein subscribed for.

(b) The undersigned has the financial ability to bear the economic risk of his or her or its
investment in the Company (including its possible loss), and understanding that the investment in the
Company is not liquid, has adequate means of providing for the undersigned's current needs and personal
contingencies.

(c) The undersigned has been furnished the Circular and any other documents which
may have been made available upon request, and has been provided an opportunity to obtain any additional
information concerning the Offering and the Company.

(d) Except as provided in the Circular, no representations or warranties have been made
to the undersigned by the Company, or any officer, employee, agent or affiliate of the Company.

(e) If the undersigned is an individual, he or she is at least 21 years of age, and is a
citizen of the country and a resident of the state indicated on the signature page hereto under the heading
“Residence Street Address.”

(f) The undersigned acknowledges that the Shares are not registered for offer or sale
under the securities laws of any state other than California, Maryland, New York or Virginia (each such other
state a "Nonregistered State”).

(9) The undersigned acknowledges that the Company is relying on a statutory exemption
from each Nonregistered State’s securities laws in order to offer and sell the Shares in each such state, and
that the Company is therefore relying on the representations and warranties in this Section 2 for that purpose.

(h) The undersigned agrees not to sell the Shares without registration under the relevant
states’ securities laws or an exemption therefrom.

(i) If the undersigned resides in Pennsylvania, the undersigned represents, pursuant to
Section 207(m)(2) of the Pennsylvania Securities Act, that he or she is purchasing the Shares solely for
investment and does not intend to divide his or her participation with others or to resell or otherwise dispose of
all or any part of said Shares within twelve (12) months after the date of purchase, except in accordance with
Pennsylvania Securities Commission Regulation 204.011.

) If the undersigned resides in Missouri, the undersigned represents, pursuant to
clause (B), paragraph (10), subsection 409.402(b), Missouri Uniform Securities Act, that he or she is
purchasing the Shares solely for investment and does not intend to divide his or her participation with others or
to resell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of said Shares in Missouri. In making the foregoing
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representation, the undersigned understands that the statutory exemption of paragraph (10), subsection
409.402(b), Missouri Uniform Securities Act, would not be available if, notwithstanding the above
representation, the undersigned has in mind merely acquiring the Shares for resale or other disposition upon
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of some predetermined event.

2.2 Investor Awareness. The undersigned acknowledges, represents, agrees and is aware that:

(a) the Company has limited operating history;

(b) no federal or state agency has passed upon the Shares or made any findings or
determination as to the fairness of this investment;

(c) there are significant risks of loss of investment incidental to the purchase of Shares,
including those summarized under "Risk Factors” and in other portions of the Circular and that it is possible
that the undersigned could lose all or substantially all of the undersigned's investment in the Company;

(d) the investment in the Company is an illiquid investment and the undersigned may
bear the economic risk of the undersigned’s investment in Shares for an extended period; and

‘(e) legal counsel to the Company is not representing investors who are subscribing for
Shares.
Section 3
341 Restrictive Legend. Executed copies of this Subscription Agreement shall be filed in the

principal office of the Company. Any certificates evidencing all or part of the Shares issued in this offering in
any state other than California, Maryland, New York or Virginia, shall contain the following legend:

THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES WITHOUT (1) COMPLIANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, OR (2) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED.

3.2 Madification. Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof shall be modified, discharged
or terminated except by an instrument in writing ‘signed by the party against whom any waiver, change,
discharge or termination is sought.

3.3 Notices. Any notice, demand or other communication which any party hereto may be
required, or may elect to give hereunder shall be sufficiently given if (a) in the case of a communication to the
Company, such communication is made in writing and deposited, postage prepaid, in a United States mail
letter box, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to 4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040, Virginia
Beach, Virginia 23462, or is delivered personally at such addresses; and (b) in the case of a communication to
any other party, such communication is made in writing and deposited, postage prepaid, in a United States
mail letter box.

3.4 Binding Effect. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal
representatives and permitted assigns. If the undersigned is more than one person, the obligations of the
undersigned shall be joint and several and the agreements, representations, warranties and acknowledgments
herein contained shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon each such person and his, her or its
heirs, executors, administrators and successors.
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3.5 Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement of the parties, and, there
are no representations, covenants or other agreements except as stated or referred to herein.

3.6 Assignability. This Agreement is not transferable or assignable by the undersigned.

3.7 Applicable Law. Notwithstanding the place where this Agreement may be executed, ali of the
terms and provisions and validity of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the internal laws of the Commonweaith of Virginia.

3.8 Gender. All pronouns contained herein and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to
the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or piural, as the identity of the parties may require.

3.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed through the use of separate signature pages
or in any number of counterparts, and each of such counterparts shall, for all purposes, constitute one
agreement binding on all the parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same
counterpart.

3.10  Disclosure Required Under State Law. The offering and sale of the Shares are intended to be
exempt from registration under the securities laws of the Nonregistered States, and therefore will not be
registered in such states or subject to the requirements of state law that would be applicable to the offering
and sale of registered securities.

3.11  Trusts. Ifthe undersigned is a trust, the undersigned has provided to the Company a copy of
the trust agreement (or related portion thereof) showing the date of formation, authorization to make this
investment and evidence of the authority of the undersigned to execute this Agreement.

[SIGNATURE LINES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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NUMBER OF SHARES SUBSCRIBED
FOR:

TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE
($40.00 per Share)

RESIDENCE STREET ADDRESS:
(No P.O. Boxes)

MAILING ADDRESS:
(If Different from Residence)

SOCIAL SECURITY OR TAXPAYER
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER:

(Please Print or Type)

Make checks payable to:
SouthTrust Bank Escrow Account
f/b/o JTH Tax, Inc.

SHARES TO BE REGISTERED AS FOLLOWS:

(Check and Compilete)

Individual Ownership

Tenants in Common*

Trust

Individual Retirement Account

Joint Tenants*

Tenants by the Entirety”
Corporation

Partnership

Other

*By signing this Agreement, the undersigned represents and warrants that all persons having a beneficial
ownership interest in the Shares subscribed for pursuant to this Agreement satisfy all the terms and
conditions of and shall be bound by this Agreement.

EXECUTED by the undersigned as a subscriber of JTH Tax, Inc.

Date:

Date:

Date:

45187_11.DOC

Signature of Investor

Name:
(Please Print)

Signature of Investor

Name:
(Please Print)

ACCEPTED BY THE COMPANY:

JTH TAX, INC.

By:
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PART III — EXHIBITS

Index to Exhibits

2.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of

JTH Tax, Inc., as amended ............co.ooeiiiieeiiice e Previously Filed
2.2 Certificate of Designations of Class A

Convertible Preferred Stock, as amended ..........cccoooevivineciccciinienne, Previously Filed
2.3 Certificate of Designations of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock ......... Previously Filed
2.4 Certificate of Designations of Special Voting Preferred Stock.................. Previously Filed
2.5 BYLAWS (.ot e e b ettt ne e Previously Filed
3.1 Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of April 27, 1999

between JTH Tax, Inc. and Edison Venture Fund IV, L.P...........cc.ooc. Previously Filed
3.2 Class B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated as

of July 6, 2001 between JTH Tax, Inc. and Envest Ventures I, LLC ........ Previously Filed
3.3 Investor Rights Agreement dated as of July 30, 2001 between

JTH Tax, Inc., Envest Ventures I, Inc.

and certain stockholders of JTH Tax, INC. ..c.coooveveiveeeciiiiiicencees Previously Filed
3.4 Share Purchase Warrant dated July 30, 2001 issued by

JTH Tax, Inc. to Envest Ventures I, LLC  ....ooooviiiiiiiiiieeiiieeeeeeeeeee Previously Filed
3.5 Share Exchange Agreement dated as of October 16, 2001

between Datatax Business Services Limited, Liberty Tax

Holding Corporation, Liberty Tax Service, Inc. and JTH Tax, Inc. .......... Previously Filed
4. Form of Subscription and Investment Representation Agreement ............ 120*
6.1 Lease Financing and Guaranty Agreement dated as of

October 26, 2001 between JTH Tax, Inc. and TLC, LLC.........covvviviennns Previously Filed
6.2 Closed End Master Borrowing Loan Agreement dated as of

November 7, 2001 between SunTrust Bank

and JTH Tax, Inc., as amended ..........ccoovvveiieeiiieeciiiie et Previously Filed
* Attached hereto
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6.3 Revolving Master Borrowing Loan Agreement dated as
of June 26, 2001 between SunTrust Bank
and JTH Tax, Inc., as amended ...........cccoeeiiiieeeioeeeeeee et

6.4 Loan and Security Agreement dated as of July 30, 2001
between JTH Tax, Inc. and Envest Ventures I, LLC ..........ccccoviviinieennne.

6.5 Senior Subordinated Debenture dated as of July 30, 2001
issued by JTH Tax, Inc. to Envest Ventures I, LLC ..........cc.ococvviieiiinnene

6.6 Software License and Support Agreement dated as
of March 26, 2002 between OrrTax Software, Inc. and JTH Tax, Inc.......

6.7 JTH Tax, Inc. Option Plan........c.cccocnivininciiinieiieee e
6.8 Republic First Bank of Delaware Refund Funding Agreement .................
6.9 Universal Tax Systems 2001- 2003 Software License Agreements .........
9. ESCrOw AGIEEmMENt ...cceevruiiiiriiiiiiiieiiieeicre ettt
10.1Consent 0f KPMG LLP ......c..oocooeeresosesoseeoe e
10.2 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP ......c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniceeiece
11. Legal Opinion of Troutman Sanders LLP...........cccoeoviiviniiiiniieciiieees

15. 1 POWET Of ALEOITIEY . ..eeivieeniieiie ettt sttt

*Attached hereto
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Name of Subscriber

Amount of Subscription $

JTH TAX, INC.
SUBSCRIPTIQN AND INVESTMENT REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT

JTH Tax, Inc.

4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

c/o Mr. Raymond A. Dunn, !

Gentlemen:
Section 1

1.1 Subscription. The undersigned hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of
shares of Class A Common Stock ("Shares") set forth above, at a price of $40.00 per Share, of JTH Tax, Inc.
(the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, on the terms and conditions described herein and in the Offering
Circular dated , 2002 (together with all appendices and supplements (if any) thereto, the "Circular”)
relating to the offering ("Offering") of Shares of the Company.

1.2 Purchase.

The undersigned has tendered or agrees to tender upon demand by the Company, the
amount set forth above.

1.3 Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription.

(a) The undersigned understands and agrees that the Company reserves the right in its
sole discretion to reject this subscription for Shares in whole or in part and at any time prior to the applicable
Closing Date (as defined below), notwithstanding prior receipt by the undersigned of notice of acceptance of
the undersigned's subscription.

(b) in the event of rejection of this subscription, the subscription amount tendered by the
undersigned will be promptly refunded to the undersigned without interest or deduction and this Agreement
shall have no force or effect. In the event the undersigned's subscription is accepted, the funds specified
above shall be released to the Company on the applicable Closing Date and the subscribers whose
subscriptions were accepted shall be issued Shares in accordance with these subscriptions.

1.4 Closing Date; Minimum Offering; Escrow. This offering is @ minimum/maximum offering, and
no Shares will be sold unless the Company receives subscriptions for at least 9,375 Shares with an aggregate
purchase price of $375,000 (the “Minimum Offering”). Until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for, all funds
received by the Company for Shares will be deposited with SouthTrust Bank, Chesapeake, Virginia, as escrow
agent (the “Escrow Agent”), which will hold these funds until it has received funds aggregating at least the
amount of the Minimum Offering. If the Escrow Agent has not received funds equal to or exceeding the
Minimum Offering by March 31, 2003, the Escrow Agent will return alt funds, without any deduction for
expenses, directly to the subscribers. Purchases by directors, officers and their affiliates will not be counted in
determining whether the Minimum Offering has been achieved. Funds received after the Minimum Offering is
reached will not be subject to an escrow requirement. Assuming the Minimum Offering is reached by the
above date, Shares shall continue to be sold untit the earlier of (i) the date 125,000 Shares have been sold or
(i) a termination date as determined by the Company. At any time after the Minimum Offering is sold, the
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Company may conduct one or more closings for the purchase of Shares in such amounts as it shall determine
(each, a "Closing Date").

Section 2

THE COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE UNDERSIGNED, BY ACKNOWLEDGING AND MAKING
THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES IN THIS SECTION 2, HAS NOT WAIVED ANY RIGHT OF
ACTION THAT MAY EXIST UNDER THE APPLICABLE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS.

2.1 Investor Representations and Warranties. The undersigned hereby acknowledges and
makes the following representations and warranties.

(@) For those investors residing in any state other than California, Maryland, New York
and Virginia, the undersigned represents and warrants that the undersigned is acquiring the Shares for the
undersigned's own account, for investment purposes only, and not with a view to or for the resale, distribution
or fractionalization thereof, in whole or in part, and no other person has a direct or indirect beneficial interest in
the Shares herein subscribed for.

(b) The undersigned has the financial ability to bear the economic risk of his or her or its
investment in the Company (including its possible loss), and understanding that the investment in the
Company is not liquid, has adequate means of providing for the undersigned's current needs and personal
contingencies.

(c) The undersigned has been furnished the Circular and any other documents which
may have been made available upon request, and has been provided an opportunity to obtain any additional
information concerning the Offering and the Company.

(d) Except as provided in the Circular, no representations or warranties have been made
to the undersigned by the Company, or any officer, employee, agent or affiliate of the Company.

(e) If the undersigned is an individual, he or she is at least 21 years of age, and is a
citizen of the country and a resident of the state indicated on the signature page hereto under the heading
“Residence Street Address.”

{f) The undersigned acknowledges that the Shares are not registered for offer or sale
under the securities laws of any state other than California, Maryland, New York or Virginia (each such other
state a “Nonregistered State”).

(@) The undersigned acknowledges that the Company is relying on a statutory exemption
from each Nonregistered State's securities laws in order to offer and sell the Shares in each such state, and
that the Company is therefore relying on the representations and warranties in this Section 2 for that purpose.

(h) The undersigned agrees not to sell the Shares without registration under the relevant
states’ securities laws or an exemption therefrom.

0] if the undersigned resides in Pennsylvania, the undersigned represents, pursuant to
Section 207(m)(2) of the Pennsylvania Securities Act, that he or she is purchasing the Shares solely for
investment and does not intend to divide his or her participation with others or to resell or otherwise dispose of
all or any part of said Shares within twelve (12) months after the date of purchase, except in accordance with
Pennsylvania Securities Commission Regulation 204.011.

() If the undersigned resides in Missouri, the undersigned represents, pursuant to
clause (B), paragraph (10), subsection 409.402(b), Missouri Uniform Securities Act, that he or she is
purchasing the Shares solely for investment and does not intend to divide his or her participation with others or
to resell or otherwise dispose of all or any part of said Shares in Missouri. In making the foregoing
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representation, the undersigned understands that the statutory exemption of paragraph (10), subsection
409.402(b). Missouri Uniform Securities Act, would not be available if, notwithstanding the above
representation, the undersigned has in mind merely acquiring the Shares for resale or other disposition upon
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of some predetermined event.

22 Investor Awareness. The undersigned acknowledges, represents, agrees and is aware that:

(a) the Company has limited operating history;

(b) no federal or state agency has passed upon the Shares or made any findings or
determination as to the fairness of this investment;

(c) there are significant risks of loss of investment incidental to the purchase of Shares,
including those summarized under "Risk Factors" and in other portions of the Circular and that it is possible
that the undersigned could lose all or substantially all of the undersigned's investment in the Company;

(d) the investment in the Company is an illiquid investment and the undersigned may
bear the economic risk of the undersigned’s investment in Shares for an extended period; and

(e) legal counsel to the Company is not representing investors who are subscribing for
Shares.
Section 3
3.1 Restrictive Legend. Executed copies of this Subscription Agreement shall be filed in the

principal office of the Company. Any certificates evidencing all or part of the Shares issued in this offering in
any state other than California, Maryland, New York or Virginia, shall contain the following legend:

THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES WITHOUT (1) COMPLIANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, OR (2) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED.

3.2 Mcdification. Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof shall be modified, discharged
or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom any waiver, change,
discharge or termination is sought.

3.3 Notices. Any notice, demand or other communication which any party hereto may be
required, or may elect to give hereunder shall be sufficiently given if (a) in the case of a communication to the
Company, such communication is made in writing and deposited, postage prepaid, in a United States mail
letter box, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to 4575 Bonney Road, Suite 1040, Virginia
Beach, Virginia 23462, or is delivered personally at such addresses; and (b} in the case of a communication to
any other party, such communication is made in writing and deposited, postage prepaid, in a United States
mail letter box.

34 Binding Effect. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal
representatives and permitted assigns. [f the undersigned is more than one person, the obligations of the
undersigned shall be joint and several and the agreements, representations, warranties and acknowledgments
herein contained shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon each such person and his, her or its
heirs, executors, administrators and successors.
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3.5 Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement of the parties, and, there
are no representations, covenants or other agreements except as stated or referred to herein.

3.6 Assignability. This Agreement is not transferable or assignable by the undersigned.

3.7 Applicable Law. Notwithstanding the place where this Agreement may be executed, all of the
terms and provisions and validity of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the internal laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

3.8 Gender. All pronouns contained herein and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to
the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the parties may require.

3.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed through the use of separate signature pages
or in any number of counterparts, and each of such counterparts shall, for all purposes, constitute one
agreement binding on all the parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same
counterpart.

3.10  Disclosure Required Under State Law. The offering and sale of the Shares are intended to be
exempt from registration under the securities laws of the Nonregistered States, and therefore will not be
registered in such states or subject to the requirements of state law that would be applicable to the offering
and sale of registered securities.

3.11  Trusts. if the undersigned is a trust, the undersigned has provided to the Company a copy of
the trust agreement (or related portion thereof) showing the date of formation, authorization to make this
investment and evidence of the authority of the undersigned to execute this Agreement.

[SIGNATURE LINES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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NUMBER OF SHARES SUBSCRIBED TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE
FOR: ($40.00 per Share)

RESIDENCE STREET ADDRESS:
(No P.O. Boxes)

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER:

(Please Print or Type)

MAILING ADDRESS:
(If Different from Residence)

Make checks payable to:
SouthTrust Bank Escrow Account
f/b/fo JTH Tax, Inc.

SOCIAL SECURITY OR TAXPAYER
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

SHARES TO BE REGISTERED AS FOLLOWS:
(Check and Complete)

Individual Ownership Joint Tenants™

Tenants in Common*

Tenants by the Entirety*

——  Trust ~_ Corporation
- Individual Retirement Account - Partnership
___ Other

*By signing this Agreement, the undersigned represents and warrants that all persons having a beneficial
ownership interest in the Shares subscribed for pursuant to this Agreement satisfy all the terms and
conditions of and shall be bound by this Agreement.
EXECUTED by the undersigned as a subscriber of JTH Tax, inc.
Signature of Investor

Date: Name:
(Please Print)

Signature of Investor

Date: Name:
(Please Print)

ACCEPTED BY THE COMPANY:

JTH TAX, INC.

Date: By:
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Tuly 27, 2001"

Lenny Holt, COO

Liberty: Tax Service
4575 BOnney Road

’ Vlrgrma Beach, VA 23464

Dear Lenny,

,’ S

"'5"5 . We look forward to doing business with Liberty Tax Semce (“Liberty”) again this year,“_

'I'lﬁs letter is intended to’ 1deﬁtﬂy the terms and conditions of the agreement between Universal.

Tax Systems Inc. (‘ UTS”) and beeny Please rcvmw and, provided that it is satisfactory, s1gn

. this lctter

- The terms and conditions set forth in this letter apply to the tax season endmg April 30
2002 and the tax season ending April 30, 2003. UTS’ standard license agreement for each of the .

2001 and 2002 tax years (2001 tax year version enclosed) must be signed and returned to UTS

prior to the shipment of software described herein for such year. To the extent of any conflict
between this letter and the provisions of the UTS standard license agreement (2001 version or
2002 version), this letter shall control. Notwithstanding Paragraph 10.1 of the standard UTS .
license agreement, this letter amends such license agreement in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth herein. UTS” normal pricing policies and structure shall apply unless
otherwise set forth in this letter agreement.

Liberty agrees that it will pay UTS a total of $350,000.for 2001 tax year software (with
features and options as set forth on the enclosed quote) for all Liberty tax preparation offices to. - -
be opcrated during tax season. eriding April 30, 2002 (the “2001 Tax Year Software Fees”).
Liberty’s current good faith estimate is that it will request software for approximately 400 such
offices for the tax season ending Apnl 30, 2002. Liberty’s and all of its offices’ usage of this .
2001 tax year software is goverhed by’ thc enclosed 2001 license agrccment as modified by tlns
letter agreement. Liberty agrees to cxccute and return this letter agreement and the enclosed -
license agreemert (signed) to UTS. The 2001 Tax Year Software Fees shall be paid in the -
following manner: $175,000.00 duc and paid in full to UTS immediately upon the execution of

~ this létter agreement and $175,000.00 due and paid in full to UTS no later than F ebruary 15

2002.

Liberty agrees that it will pay UTS a total of $550,000 for 2002 tax year software (with features
and options as set forth on the enclosed quote) for al] Liberty tax preparation offices tobe
operated during tax season ending Apnl 30, 2003 (thc “2002 Tax Year Software Fees”). : 2'7 4‘
Liberty’s current good faith estimate is that it will request software for approxtmately 740 such 1 i‘
offices for the tax season ending April 30, 2003. Liberty’s and all of its offices’ usage of this

2002 tax year software shall be governed by UTS’ standard 2002 license agreement as modified

Softwara For The Tax Professional

TaxWisE
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by this letter agreement, which Liberty agrees to execute and return to UTS. The 2002 Tax Year
Software Fecs shall be paid in the following manner: $275,000.00 due and paid in full to UTS
no later than July 1, 2002 and $275,000.00 due and paid in full to UTS no later than February 15,
2003.

Each of Liberty’s offices under this lctter agreement shall make an initial request for
specific avallable state software (included on the attached quotc) necded by such location. If
software for additional available states (included on the attached quote) is later needed by an
office under this letter agreement then such location shall contact UTS and UTS shall download
the software for such state to that location. Each of Liberty’s offices shall make initial request
for state corporate and business software needed by each location. If state software for such
corporate and business software is later needed by an office then such location shall contact UTS
and UTS shall download the software for such state to that location. Individual, state, corporate
and business software is included in the 2001 Tax Year and 2002 Tax Year Software Fees (as

reflected on the attached quote).

UTS will electronically file tax retumns sent to UTS from Liberty Tax Service offices with
the Internal Revenue Service and the states, as applicable. Liberty agrees to use UTS Electronic
Filing program for the duration of this agreement. Upon receipt of an IRS acknowledgement or
reject, UTS will make available to Liberty for download/access the electronic acknowledgement
or reject for a tax return. UTS will not charge Liberty a separate transaction fee for
electronically filing these tax returns.

Liberty shall offer bank products only direct through First Republic Bank (RALs, ERCs)
and indirect through Bank One (RALs, Bonu$), or such other bank(s) as mutually agreed
between UTS and Liberty. Each tax season Liberty shall file under the UTS Bank Product
Program 2 minimum of 18,000 bank products indirect (through UTS) with Bank One, or such
other bank(s) as mutually agreed upon which is currently supported by UTS, for which UTS
receives a fee for each product from Bank One. To the extent Liberty does not meet this
minimum with Bank One by April 15 of each tax season, then Liberty shall pay UTS an amount
for such season for the shortfall calculated as follows: $9.00 times (18,000 less number of actual
paid indircct Bank One bank products through UTS). UTS will not charge Liberty any
additional fees for the bank products processed under the UTS Bank Product Program. The
amount for such shortfall shall be due and paid in full to UTS no later than April 30 of such tax
season. UTS Electronic Filing and Bank Product programs are supported during the electronic
filing season dates as determined by the IRS, subject also to availability dates determined by

participating banks.

In the event Liberty desires to request a reasonable change/update to the First Republic
Bank electronic bank application (a “Modification”) that is included in UTS' TaxWise software,
then Liberty agrees to submit a written request to UTS including reasonable specifications for
such Modification no later than September 1 preccding the applicable tax season. UTS shall
detormine in its discretion whether to accept such request and make such Modification, with all
such specifications subject to UTS’ advance approval. All such approved Modification(s) to
TaxWise shall be completed by UTS and delivered to Liberty by a date as mutually agreed
between the parities. Liberty also recognizes that any such programming efforts by UTS and
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implementation of the same require the cooperation of First Republic Bank. In the event UTS
devotes more than 10 hours of programming time to such Modification(s) for any particular tax
season (the “Excess Timc”), Liberty agrees to pay UTS the reasonable, market hourly rate for
each hour (and pro rated portion thereof)of such Excess Time. Payment for the Excess Time
shall be due and paid in full to UTS no later than December 31 preceding the tax season for
which the Modification(s) were requested. All Modifications and their use are also governed by
the terms and conditions of the standard UTS license agreement.

Failure to meet any of the above payment terms or deadlines as well as the failure to pay
UTS any other balances when due will result in termination of UTS services at such time.
However, all outstanding account balances remain due and payable. Payments due UTS by
Liberty are not subject to any set-offs or counter claims. Notwithstanding anything in this
agrecement to the contrary, Liberty additionally agrees to pay all UTS costs of collection of all
sums collected under this agreement, including a reasonable attorney’s fee if the same is
collected by or through an attomey at law. Liberty shall pay UTS 1 % (one and one-half) percent
interest or the maximum lawful amount under Georgia law, whichever is less, per month on any
outstanding and overdue balances due under this agreement.

Furthermore, Liberty acknowledges and agrees that UTS shall have incurred significant
expenses and shall have devoted significant time, effort and resources in planning for and in
anticipation of UTS’ performance under this agreement. Liberty also acknowledges and agrees
that UTS has agreed to the pricing set forth in this agreement in anticipation of servicing Liberty
for two tax seasons as set forth herein. Accordingly, in the event Liberty does not pay UTS the
$275,000.00 2002 Tax Year Software Fees by July 1, 2002 in accordance with the above terms
or this agreement has been terminated carlier, unless Liberty has terminated this agrecment as
specifically permitted herein.or UTS has terminated this agreement for any reason other than as
specifically permitted hercin or UTS has terminated this agreement as a result of the sale of its
assets or stock under the next to last paragraph of this agreement, then Liberty shall pay UTS
$200,000 as liquidated damages as compensation for UTS’ efforts as sct forth above which
amount shall be due and paid in full to UTS no later than the earlier of : (i) 10 days after
termination of this agreement, or (ii) July 1, 2002. At such time neither party shall have any
further obligation under this agreement except that any other outstanding and unpaid amounts
then due UTS shall remain duc and payable in full to UTS.

All manuals, CDs, literature, supplies, etc. will be shipped to Liberty’s central location or
separately to cach Liberty office as requested by Liberty (and using available shipping methods
as requested by Liberty). Liberty will be invoiced for all shipping charges at whatever cost
incurred by UTS and such amounts shall be paid by Liberty within 30 days of the invoice date.
Supplies (other than software) for each office must be arranged and ordered by Liberty well in
advance of tax season. These supplies will be sent out at UTS regular pricing, except that the
enclosed quote includes one sct of UTS’ usual and customary documentation (as de‘termined by
UTS and as provided in general to software customers of UTS) for each office of beerty for
which software is licensed under this agreement. Additional copies of such documentation are
available from UTS at its regular pricing. For software orders placed by Liberty after December
15 of any applicable year under this lctter agreement, UTS shall require 3 business days after its
actual receipt of such electronic order to ship such software. All software orders shall be
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submitted by Liberty in such electronic form as reasonably requested by UTS. Prior to shipment
of software for use at any office other than Liberty’s central location, UTS must be provided (in
such electronic form as requested by UTS) with EFIN numbers and street and mailing address
for each officc and such other information about each office as reasonably requested by UTS.

UTS agrees to make available to Liberty a copy of the release candidate version of the
initial Tax Wise Office Suite software and the initial TaxWise tax form and proforma softwarc
for a particular tax season when such release candidate version becomes available for
duplication. UTS’ TaxWise software will otherwise be released as it becomes available to the
entire customer base of UTS. However, in the event both the initial TaxWise Office Suite release
(which includes bank application and organizer) and the initial TaxWisc tax form and proforma
release software for a particular tax filing season under this agreement are not available for
delivery by December 25 imraediately preceding such tax filing season then this agreement shall
be terminated upon written notice by Liberty to UTS (provided that such notice is delivered by
no later than the immediately following January 15) and all Software Fees paid or owing
pursuant to this agreement for UTS Software for such tax filing season shall be forgiven or
refunded to Liberty (as applicable). However, in the event less than fifty (50) Liberty offices
continue to use any software licensed under this Agreement after such notice of termination by
Liberty, then UTS shall retain (or Liberty shall pay UTS, as applicable) $1000 per Liberty office
using such software. In the event fifty (50) or more Liberty offices continue to use any software
licensed under this Agreement after such notice of termination by Liberty, then such notice of
~ termination shall be rendered ineffective and this agreement shall remain in full force and effect
(except the previous sentence shall be rendered null and void and no longer considercd a part of
this agreement) and Liberty shall not be entitled to a refund or forgiveness of amounts owed and
all amounts shall remain duc and owing to UTS under the terms of this agreement.

This proposal includes access to UTS toll free National Accounts Support Line, which
gives Liberty’s central office extended support hours with access to a pager of a UTS support
representative around the clock, seven days a weck, from January 8% through April 16™.
However, acccss to this pager and UTS toll free National Accounts Support line is restricted to
three designated representatives from Liberty’s central office. Liberty shall provide UTS the
names of these designated representatives. While UTS will provide customer service directly to
Liberty’s central office, Liberty shall provide customer service to all other Liberty offices.
However, UTS regular toll customer service telephone number will be available for other Liberty
offices as a secondary source of support. UTS may determine in its sole discretion to provide the
Liberty central office with tools for use in providing customer service to other Liberty offices.

UTS agrees to make available to Liberty reasonable information maintained in the
ordinary course of business in UTS’ database that is derived from tax retumns transmitted by
Liberty via UTS Electronic Filing Program and information derived from UTS Bank Product
Program. UTS agrees to electronically make available for download/access such information to
Liberty during the period extending from January 8" through April 30™. Disclosure of such
information shall be subject to all applicable rules, regulations, proccdures, contractual
obligations and restrictions and privacy policies of UTS.
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The termination provisions contained in the license agreement are bi-lateral, cither
Liberty or UTS may terminate this agreement in the event of default by the other party. This
agreement shall terminate immediately upon general refusal or inability by the JRS or relevant
banks to accept tax returns from either party for filing electronically.

If these terms are acceptable to you please sign this letter and mail back to my attention.
By signing this letter agreement you agree that its terms are incorporated by reference into, and
in the event of conflict shall supercede the applicable terms of, the license agreement. If you
have any questions please feel free to call me. We look forward to a prosperous tax season.

Sincerely,

AGREED TO:

Liberty Tax Service

foest 1for [o1

Lenny Holt, CO/(f Date
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Universal Tax Systems, Inc, ~ 2002 Software License Agreement Terms and Conditions

By slgning this agreement (the “License Agreement" or "Agresment") or opening the sealed Licensed Program{s) package er by using the Licensed Programs),
whichever occurs firsy, Licensee acknowledges that Licensee has read, understands and agrees to tho tarms et forth balow. Universal Tax Systsms, Inc. (the
"ngensor") I3 wllling to licanse the Licensed Program(s) to Licenses only upon the condition that Licensec accapts alf of tha terms conkained In this Agresment.
If Licensee hag not previcusly signed 2 copy of thig Agreement and does not agres to its tarms, immediately return the Licensed Program(s) to Licensor for a full

rafund.

{. DefinlUons

1.1 "Licensee’ shall mean the person or enfity thet acquires the Licensad
Program(s) pursuant to Involes of Llcensor and this License Agreement, 1.2
“Licensed Program(s)” shall mean (i) any softwars pregram(s) daveloped or
liconsed by Licanser which may be used by Licenses; (i) related malerials such
38 rolerancs manuals and operating instructions provided for use in connection
wilh the soflware program(s): and (i) any updated program portion relating lo
the same lax year, 1.3 *Dnilverablns” means the Licensed Program(s) and
relaled benefls, such as electronic Miing, avallable fer use In connaction with te
Licensed Progrem(s). 1.4 “RAL Guidelines” shall mean Licansor's Ganeral
Refund Anticipation Logn ("RAL") Partizipalion Guidelines as revised from lime
10 ime,

2, Liconse

21 Granl. Llcensor hereby granis Llconsee a personal, nonexclusive,
nentransferable contractual Aght and license to use, end to copy for back-up
purposes only, each Licensed Pregram al the single location designated in the
Licensor's databasa of Licensec's name and adcress informatisn. All proprictary
fights tn tha Licansed Programs shaft remaln In Licensor and lls suppliers and
licensers, as applicable. Licsnsee shall nat use any of Licensor's Licensed
Programs excep! those covered by Ihis Agresmenl. Licensas shall not madify
any Licansed Program in any way. Any modificalions to any Licensed Program
by or on behalf of Licansee, wilhout (he oxpress writien consent of Licenser,
shall resull in cancellation of this Licanse Agreement as well as posaible civil
damages and criming| penalties, i being undaratond that Licanser is retaining
the conlractual rghts specified In (his Agreement and cother lagal rights wih
respact 16 the Licansed Programs as an essential part of Licensor's agreement
lo provide them fo Liconsee. Withaul limiting the foregoing. Licanset and is
suppllers and licensors, as applicable. resarve all patent. copyrigh!, trade secre!,
trade name, imdemark, end other propriotary rights relalad to the Licensed
Programs, which sre protected under United States Copynghl Laws and
Intemational Trealy Previsions. and Licensee will riot infringe or violale such
rights. Unauthorized use of the Licensed Programs shsll result in cancallation of
License Agreement as well as possible civil damages and ariminal penalties,

2.2 V.S, GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS. The LICENSED PROGRAMS
and documentation are provided with RESTRICTED RIGKTS, Use, duplication,
or disclogure by the Unlled States Govemmant Iz subjedt {o resliictions sa sat
forth tn subparagraph (c)(1)(ii) of the Rights In Tecanicel Dats and Compuler
Solwam clause at DFARS 252.227-7013 or subpamgraphs (c)(1) and (2) of the
Commercial] Computer Software-Restricled Rights at 48 CFR 52.227-18, es
applicgble. Manufactursr Is Universal Tax Syslams, Inc,, 6 Mathis Drive, NW,
Rame, Georgia 30165,

3. Warranties

31 lmited Wemanty. THE LICENSED PROGRAM(S} AND OTHER
DELIVERABLES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS* WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY
KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES QF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE QUALITY AND
PERFORMANCE OF THE LICENSED PROGRAMS AND OTHER
DELIVERABLES S WITH LICENSEE. LICENSOR DOES NOT WARRANT
THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL PROPERLY OPEFATE ON ANY SPECIFIC
OFERATING SYSTEM OR COMPUTER HARDWARE OR CONFIGURATIONS
OR BEFORE OR AFTER ANY SPECIFIC DATE OR TIME PERIOD. LICENSOR
SHALL IN NO EVENT BE LIABLE TO LICENSEE OR ANY OTHER PERSON
FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL OR TORT DAMAGES
OR FOR ANY LOST PROFITS ARISING QUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY
TO USE THE LICENSED PROGRAM(S) ANO/ ORANY OTHER
DELIVERABLES, EVEN If LICENSOR HAS HRIZEN ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR FOR ANY OTHER CLAIM BY
LICENSEE OR ANY OTHER PERSON,

3.2 Umitation of Ligbilty and Remedy. Uronsce agrees that regardiass of Ihe
form of any daim, Licensor's entire liability end Licensee's exclusive remedy for
damages arising out of or connected with this Agreement (including but not fim-
lted to damages due io performance or non-performance of the Licensed
Progrems andfor any other Daliverables) shall ba limlted lo the ralura of lhe
iconse fecs paid Lo Liconsor by Licensas for the current lax yaar,

3.3 Licensor Is not an Insurer with reqard to performance of the Licensad
Programs ar other Deliverables, The lerms of this Agreement, including but not
limited to ke licanse foe, the limited warranties and the fimilation of Iiabilily and
ramedy are a reflaction of tha risks assumed by the partias in order lo oblain the
Licansed Programs af he spocified liconse foe, Licansee agrees 1o assume tha
rigk for; {) all llebilles disclaimed by Licensor contained herein; and (i) all
alleged damages in excass of the amount of the limited remedy provided
hereundsr. The essential purpose of the limited remady provided Licensee
hereunder is lo ellocale the fisks as provided above.

4, Terminatien

4.1 This Agreement may be termineted by Licensor ss lo all or any of the
Licensed Programs immediately upon notice lo Ucensee if Licansee breachos
this Agreemant or any other agreemant balween Licensor or anv sfillate of
Licansor and Licansea or lalis 1o comply with sny of I3 lerms or conditions.
Licensor may leminale this Agresment at any lime i Licensee does nol pay
llcense fees or cther amounts (for exampla, fecs for ofectronic fiing
Defiverables) when due. Upon lermination of the llcense, Licensee shall
immediately destroy the Licensed Programs and all coples (herso! and cartify 15
Licensor that the Licensad Programs and all coples have been destroyed or st
Licensor's request. ralum tho Licensed Programs to Licensor by US mall or
common carrier, Termination of this Agreemant shall not affec! the sums due or
peld hersunder or any addional remedies provided by law or equily and shall
not requlre any refund. Subsequent use of tha Licensed Programs by Licensee
shall require a new agreement and paymont of the then current licanse fee.

5. Refund Policy

5.1 Signed License Agreement. Upon the writien requast of Liconsee receivad
by Llcensor within 30 days of the date of placing the order for Licensed
Program(s} with Licensor, Licensor shall refund all llcanse fees paid by Lisensce
under this Agreemen!, less a 15% processing fee. Subsequent In refund
approval by Ucensar (but prior ta Llcensor's issuing of rofund cradit), il
Licensed Program(s) must be refumed o Licensor In thelr onginst package
slong wilh a writlen stalement that Licensee has ratsinad no copies of eny
Licensod Program(s) and has not made avallable any Licensed Pragram(s) to
any party other than Llcenses. Licenses understands and agrees thal the
Licansor shall have planned and incumed expanses In anlicipation of its
performance under this Agrasment and thal no refund shall be madse lor any
raason more than 30 days afier the dale of placing the order for Licansed
Program(s) with Licensor.

5.2 All other refunds shall be granted In the sole discrstion of the Licensor.

8, Updates

8.1 Licansor may, If practical and appropriala, updale lhe Licensad Programs
from Ume lo time and offer such updated Licansed Programa loLican see,
However, updaling shall be &l Licensor's discrefion and Licensor shall have no
obllgation, express or implied, to update lhe Licensed Programs. Liccnsee
agrees fo spply all of such updates to the Licensed ngrar_ns and
acknowledges thal Licensae’s fallure to do 50 I3 at Licansee's sols risk, The
Licansod Programs rel3te o a single tax year, Pragrams relating 10 subsequanl
tax years shall raquire a separate liconse agreemont anc payment of tha fhen
current licanse foe, .

(Continued on next psge)

s
Licensee Initia/;ﬁé,&--.. :
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7. Protection and Security of Licensad Programs

7.1 Withou! Licensor's prlor written pemmission, Licensee will not provide o
otherwise make available any Licensed Programs in any form io any party offer
than Licansee and Its employees and only in accardance with the lerms of (his
Agraament.

7.2 All copies of Llcensed Programs made by Licensee, including, without
fimitation. transiations, compilations and partial ceples are govemed by the
tamms of this Agreement as Licansed Programs, Licensae will reproduce and
include Licensar's copyrigit nolice an ol such copies in sccordance with
instructions from Licensor. Licensoe shall nol altempt lo view, read. reverse
compile, reverse sssemble or prinf the Licenced Program sourea code or ablect
eads. Licansee agrees thal Licensor's retentflon of these contraclua! and ather
Isgal ighls Is an essenlial pad of this Agreament,

8. Professional Responsibility

8.4 Ucensee understands ant agress that all decisions regerding the tax
trestment of {tems: refleclsd on tax retums propared by Licenses using 8
Licensed Pragram(s) ere mede solely by Llcansee and thal use of a Licenzed
Program{s) does not relieve Licansee of responsibility for the preparation,
conlenl, accuracy, and review of sueh relums. Litsnsse acknowledges that
Licansee does not rely upon Licensor for advice regarding the appropriats (ax
troatmant of items reflactad on retums processed using Licensed Program(s),
Both parues acknowledge that Licensse will review any computations made by a
Llcensed Program(s) and satlsfy himself or hersalf (hal those compulations are
correct,

8.2 Licensee accepts full respansitility for: i) selection of adequate and
appropriale Licensed Programs to salisly Licensee's businsss needs end
achlevs Licensaa's inlendsd rasulls: (il) use of the Licensed Programs, (iii) alf
resulls oblained from the Licensed Programs: and {lv) sclection, use of. and
results ablained from any other programs, compuler equipment or services used
wilh the Licansed Progrema. Licenses acknowledges it must reldsve in a imely
mannor eleclronic communicalions made avallable to Licensoe by Licensor (for
axample, electronlc Rllng transaclion dats such as acknowledgements and emall
messages In {he Licensee’s mailbox). Such cominunicetions mey become
unavailable if not refrieved wathin 5 buginass days of being mada available by
Licensor.

8. Licensee agrees ko take full msponsibilily for any and all iability arising {rom
preparation of the relums procsssed using o Liconsed Program(s) provided
under this Agraement and Licensee agreas lo Indemmnify Licensor and hold it
hamisss against any and all Nlabillty lo the Unlled Stales govemmant or olher
parfies arising out of the use by Licensea of a Licansad Program(s) under this
Agreemen!, including damages. recoverias, deflciencies, Interest, penallies and
reasonable stomey's feas. Licenseo Is responsible for complying wilh ail
applicabls rulas, regulations and procedures of the Unied Slales governmant
and all applicable state authorities, ‘

9. Product Suppon

9.1 Licensor may offer, In lts discreton, product support for the Llcensed
Programs from Il Georgla offices. Such product supporl will be evailable to
Licensee untl Decomber 31 following the end of e single tax year ta which the
Licensed Programs relate. Product suppont will be provided only for use of the
Liconssd Programs op lhe hardware and operling aystems spacified In the
dacumentation fer the Licensed Programs, and will be provided only in the event
Llcensee hes sppllad all updates lo the Licenssd Pragrams made avallable by
Licensor.

10. Miscallaneoug

10.1 This Agrenmen! copslitutes the entro and exclisive agreamont,
undarstanding and representstion, express or Implled, betvwasn Licensee and
Licensor with respect 1o (he Licensed Programs and olher Defiverables (o be
fumichad horeunder; il is the final cxpresslon of Giat agreement end
underslandipg, end it supersedes i pricr communicalions between the paries

{including il oral and writtsn proposale). Oral sletements made by Licaneer's
sales rapresentatives about the Llcensed Programs do nol consliiute warranties,
shall not be reliad on by Licenses and am not part of the License Agreoment,
The RAL Guidefines delivered fo Licensee by Licensor are guidelines only and
net @ conlract batween Liconser and Licenasa, No slalements in lhe RAL
Guidefines consfilute representations or waranliss of Licenscr, and the RAL
Guldailnos do not bind Licensor in any way, Licensor may change the RAL
Guidelines al apy Ume and from time lo tme without nolico to Ligensee.
Lieenses agrees that Licensee will nol use or altamp! o use any Llcensed
Program(s) in eonjunclion with offering lax refund related bank producis of ary
financial Inslitution nel authorized by Licensar. Sectiona 3, 8 and 10 shalf sunvive
terminatian of this Agreament.

10.2 Nelther the licenses granied hereunder nor any of the Licensed Programs
may bs sublicensad, sssignad, sold, hypothecaled, or iransferred by Licansee
wilhout ihe prior wrillsn consenl of Licensar. Any attempt to sublicense, assign
or lransfer any of the rights, dutles or ohligations under this Agraemeni without
the prior written consent of Licensor shall fammingte the license aulomalically
and shail bo vold and of no effcet Licensas agrees (hal Licensor's relention of
these conlractual and other lagal rights is an ossantial part of this Agraomont.

10.3 Licansea acknowladges tha! the Licensed Programs and other proprialary
Information of Licensar are unique and that, In the event of any bmach of this
Agreement by Licensee, Licensor may not have an adequsle remedy al law,
and shall be anbted 15 anjores its righla hereunder by an action for damages
andfor spacic performance and/or Injunctive or other equitable rolief without the
necessity of proving aclual damages,

10.4 The parties herslo, and each of them, acknowledge thal they have had the
opportunity 1o be reprasentad by independent counsel of thair cheics prior o
entordng thls Agreemenl, Licensee agrens that this Agreement shall be
interpreted and enforced according fa the laws of the Stale of Georgia, without
any regard lo conflicts of law rules, and shall ba Yrealsd 35 if executed and
porfermog in Fioyd Counly, Georgia, All dispules sumounding the performanca
of this Agreemen! sndfor Deliverables shall be instituled and proseculed
exclusivaly la Floyd County, Geergia, wilh Licensoc specifieally consenling to
exlralamitorial sorvice of process for thal pumose, Licensea shall pay all of the
Licansor's atiomey's fees and cosis incumred in the enforcement of any of the
provitions of this Agreement; and Licensas additionally ageacs 1a pay all costs
of collection of all suma collacled under this Agrament, Including 8 reasenable
atomay's fas of not loss than fileen (15%) percent of the amounl placad for
collection If the same Is collected by or ihrough an attomey allaw.

10.5 All notices, demands, consants. of requests which may be cr ere raguirst
to be given by any party o another party shall be in writing {which may Include
emall), No supplement, modification or amandment of this Agreement shafl ba
blnding unless executad in writing by all the parties hereto. In te avent that any
of lhe provisions. or ponions thereol, of this Agresment are held to be
unantorceable or Invalid by sny court of compelent jurtsciction, tha validily and
enforosabillty of the remaining provisions and pariions Iheraof of this Agreement
shall not be affected theraby.

10.8 Delivery of the Licensed Pragram(s) o Licensee shall take place ata future
date, when the products become available Lo the enlire cflent bass of Licensor.
Licanses acknowledges that the Licansed Progrems and all updales thermol are
pra-written software of ganoral applicalion, Al Dativerables will be deliversd lo
Licensea ramolely via Interslale means, it being undersiood thet Licansor has
no businesa presence cutside of the Stals of Georgla &nd Licansor's aciivitles
are performad exchusively from Liconsor's Georgia officas.

10.7 Nelther party hereto shall be held liabis for the fallure to perform any
obligation, or for lhe delay in performing any obligation, arising out of ar
conneclad wilh this Agreement If such failure or delay resulle from or Is
contdbuled to by smy ceuse beyond the reasonable control of sugh ‘aaﬂy
including, bul nol timlited 1o, fallures or delays caused by Vg acl or omission ?f
any govemmenlal authority, fire, flaod, o other eveni boyond such pary's

reasonable conlra),

plsase print): 7 THT=x _Z«)c , Jéa C-lé’e,-é 7“,1 <Y%‘%F1NZM

Company Name (

Licensee Name (pisase print}: g(a 7LZ]_‘_/§—@¢“-) CC//M

Title: l—//o _ LQ?’A/

! [
0//é)'2"Company Phone: \///L// /M L"JC—-

—-
Licensec Signature:/c/('/_"[,/v ALY Dals

" Mailto : Universs! Tax S;stems. Inc., 6 Mathis Drive NW, Rome, GA 30165
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Univeral Tux Systama, |nc, - 2004 Software Liesnse Agreemernt
Tarma and Conaitiona

By signing this sgreement (the “Licenss Agresmam” or *AQresment™) or opening the sasajsd Licensaq
Program(u} paclage or py uging thw Licenssa Program{s), whi¢haver occury first, Licensee
Scknowledges that Licenses has: read, understands and agress to the tenme et fonh below. Universal
Tax wystems, Inc. (the "Licenss™) Ia willing 16 licanss the Licansed Programi(s) t3 Licenses only upon
the conafuon thet Licansea gccapte all of the tamms contained in this Agreemant. If Licanses has nat
previously signed a copy of this Agreemant and dees not agree to ita tarma; immadiately return the
Licenset Program(s) to Litensar for a full retuny.

1. Definidona
1.1 "Licanses® ahell MaAn the parson or artty that acquires the Licansad Program(a) purauant 1o involce ot
Licansor and this Licanme Agmsment,

1.2 'Licansed Program(s)” anait maan () any mofwam program(s) daveloped by Licensor. for use by
Lcnnses; (1) reinisd materiain such as rsfarancs manuals and operating Inttruciisng provided fr uss (n
conneciion with the sofwe e program(s); and (Il)) any updalad progrm porion rlaling 1o the xams lax
your,

13 "RAL Quidsiines™ shall mean Licansor's Gansm! Rafund Anficipation Lomn [RALD) Pariclpstion
Guidelineg 5z evined from {ims o time.

2. Llcense '

21 Grant. Ucansor herady grims Licanesa & parsonal. noneciLisive, Nortransimbie nort and licanss to
Use, #nd 10 copy for bACK-Up purpoasn only, mach Licansed Program si the aingis Iocatian designwtsd In
the Licansor's calabasa ot Licansen’'s nama snd adarana Information. Exch Licsnsed Progmm licansed
for use throUgh tha Pay-pur-Aeturn Ordering Symam musl be suthorized on & per reium basis, Al
proprietary rights In the Licansed Programs and legal title thareto shall emain In Uicanaar and hs
supgilers and licansors, a8 mpplicabia, Licansea shall nol ume any of Licansor's Licsnsad Progmms
axcept (hosa covamd by this Agrsament. Licantss snall nat moedity amy Licanasd Program In any way,
Any modifications to any Licansa Program by or on behal! of Licansas, without the sxprese writien
conment of Licansor, nhall rasuR In cancallatan of this LIcenss Agreament &3 we'i &% DOSamIe civi)
camagas ano cnminal penanies.

Without imKing the faregoing, Licansar and ita suppliars and fiodneors, as spplicable, resarve af patant,
COPYNQM, trade secrel, Lrade name, (mdemark, and other prapristary rights reslad to tha Licansaa
Progmms, whioh are prxtactad under United Glates Copyright Laws and intemalional Tresty Provisions,
And Licansae wiil nat Infringa 8¢ viclata auch Hgtts. Uhauthad2ed Uss of the Licanseg Programs snall
result In cancsiintion of Licanss Agresmant as weli as possible &l damages and cimina; penaities.

22 U8, GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Tha LICENSED PROGRAMSI snd dosumentalion are
pravidsd with REBTRICTED RIGHTS. Ure, duplicatian, or dizciosurs by the Unitsd Eintas Govamment
(s subjsct io rastrictions a6 est forth In subpamgmph (6)(1)AN of the Righta 1 Tachnical Dais and
Computer Softwarm clause At DFARS 252.227-7813 or subparagraphs (¢)(1) and (2) of the Commertial
Computer Goftwsre-Raxricind Rightx at 48 CER 52.227-10, as appileabis, Marfacturer la Unlversai
Tax Systame, Inc., 6 Mamis Drive, NW, Rome, Gsorpis 30185,

3. Warrantiss
3.1 Limited Warmanty, THE LICENSED PROGRAM(S) AND SERVICES OF LIEENSOR ARE PROWVIDED
*AS 18" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES DF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE OF THE
LICENSED PROGRAME AND BERVICES /8 WITH LICENSEE. LICENSOR DOES NOT WARRANT
THAT THE 90FTWARE WILL PROPERLY OPERATE GN ANY BPECIFIC OPERATING 8YBTEM OR
COMPUTER HARDWARE OR CONFIQURATIONS OR BERORE OR AFTER ANY SPECIRIC DATE
OR TIME PERIOD. LICENSOR SHALL IN NO EVENT BE LIABLE T® LICENSEE OR ANY OTHER
PERSON FOR CONSEQUIENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL OR TORT DAMAGES OR FOR ANY
LOBT PROFITS ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE LICENSED
PROGRAM(S) AND/OR SERVICES OF LICENSOR, EVEN IF LICENSOR HAS BEEN ADVISED CF
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Univorau! Tax Systems, Ing. - 2084 Software Licanse Agreement
Terme and Conditlane

THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR FOR ANY OTHER CLAIM BY LICENSEE SR ANY
OTHER PERSON,

3.2 LimMation ¢f Liablllly and Femady. Licansse agree ihat regardisas of the form of any ciaim, Licensora
antire 13ty and Licansye's axCIUBV® mmady for damagss araing out of of conracted with this
Agreamart (jncluding BLt not IMNAd to damagss dus to performance or non-parformance of ths

Licaned Programs and/or servicas of Licansor) shall be limiisd to the relurn of the llcense fess pajd to
Licansor by Licanses for i curran tax yaar,

3.3 Licansor is nat an insurer vAlth mgard ta parformarcs of the Licensed Programa ot tacvicas of Licaneor,
Thw tarma of {his Agresmant, including bt not limiisd to (ke Ncensa fee, the [IMAsE wrrmartiss anc tha
liitation of (labiilty and reniscy ars a raflsction of the riska Assumaed by the pariisa In 6dsr 18 obialn the
Licansag Programs st 1he 1pacifisd licensa fea, Licenses agreas 16 assume the rsk for: (1) o) Hapdlitias
disciaimed by Licensar corainsd harsin: anc () all a¥sged damagss in sxcass af the amount of 1hs
Hmiled ramady provided narsunder. The ssesntial pumpose of the jimind remedy provided Licanme
hamundar (s 10 allocata the risks s providsd sbove,

4, Taminstion

4.1 This Arwamsmt may be tmTninated by LIoansor as o All o1 any of the Licanssd Pragrams immaediataly
upan Aolica to Licanses If Licansas brunchan this Agresmart of any othasr sgrasment betwaen Licensor
Or any AfMillats of Licanacr and Licansas or falls to comply with may of 1ts tarms or coNOMcns. LICeraor
may lerminata this Agresmaont ang sarvicsa 5! Licsnsar st any time If Lioansms 8688 not pay Heenes fear
or othar amouma (fof axampin, faas for siscironic fimg servicas) when dup. Upon tarmination of tha
licanas, Liconsas shall immsdiataly rotrh the Licanssd Programa o Litdnao? OF At Licansors mguaR,
dastroy the Licansed Programs ang sii copins tharsof and cartty 1o Licansor that (he Licsnaad Programs
and all coples have baan dastroysd. Termination of this Agraamant ahall not alfact the sums dus or peld
harsunder of ANy Addiiondl remadias provided Dy iaw or mquity and shali not requim sny refunc.
Subsaquan Usa of the Licensed Programs by Licensaa shail requies & naw ggrsamant and paymant of
ma tnsn current iicense fea.

&. Refund Policy

5.1 8igned Liconss Agresment. Upon the wiitten mqua of Licansse racalyed by Licanaor within 30 days of
the dais af pisaing the order br Licensed Program(s) with Licansor, Lice naor shell refund ait becanse fees
purd by Licersan under this Agreamant, Wz = 15% processing fee. Subsequent ko refund approval by
Lioensor (but prior to Liconnor's lasuing of rufund credh), afl Lisenssd Preoram(s) must be retumad to
Ligansor in thelr oeigiml paciage long with @ writtan statement thet Licensee hae retined no coplas of
any Lkansed Program(s) and has not mMmda avallable any Liconsed Program(s) to any party osther than
Licensez.. Lizensee understands and egroes that tha Liconsor shall have pianned ond Imoumed
expanvos In enicipation of its performence undsr this Agresment and that no rafund shirl be made for
uny res3on mofe (han 30 days afer the dete of piacing (N9 order for Liconsad Program(s) with Licansor,

5.2 All other refunds shall ba gramed In the sols discretion of the Licengor,

& Updatan
8.4 Licansor may, If practical sn0 appropriats, upciala Ind Licensed Programs from time to time and offar
such updeted Licanasd Programs o Licansae. Howsver, upaating shajl be al Liesnior's giscretion and
Licansor stmll have no obligetion, axpresn or |mpiind, lo UPSAtA the Licansed Programs. Licansas
ngrees (o apdly &)l OF AUCK UPCELAS (¢ tha Licansad Frograme. Ths Licansed Prograrms raista (o a singfs
tax yart. Prograrma Taisting 1o subsaquam iax yssrs shall mquim & meparxts licenss agresment and
paymert of tha than currem license fowm.

7. Pmlsction and Becurity of Liconsed Programs
7.1 Without Licansor's prior writlen permixeion, Licsnses wil] hot provide or otharwiss maka avallabis sny
Licansed Progmma tn any form to any paty cthar Inn Licansss and its amploysss &nd only In

Accomance with the terms of this Agresmoent,

7.2 Al copiss of Licansad Programe made by Licsnsas, inciudlng, without [imtation. tranalations.
compllationy and partia! coEies ars the proparty of Licsnaor. Licanmes will reproduce and Include
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Licanzor's copyright nofica on all ruch copies in socordancs with Instructions fram Licansor. Licensea
ahall nat attampt to view, road, reverss complls, raverse sessmbis or print (he Licwnssd Progmm source
coda ar ahjact codw,

Profsasional Responsibility

5.1

8.2

83

Licanses uncersiands And 1gress tNAt Al dacisions regarding 1he 1ax treatmant of 1sma refiactss on tax
retluns prapursd Dy Licensas Lsing & Licansad Pragram(s) Am mada somiy by LiCansam and 1hst use of
e Licansad Program(s) €088 ot miiays Licansse of rasponaibiity for the prapsaation, comem, Aceuraty,
and rmviaw af auch mtume, Licanses acknowindges that LIcsnsss 4oss ot raly Upen LICAnaOr 1 Advics
dgarding the appropriats 1ax treetment of Usms reflactad on mtums procasasd using Licsnesc
Program(s). Bolh pariss szknowisdgs that Licansas wiil mvisw any compumations mads by a Licansag
Progmm(s) and aatisfy hrmymif or herseif (hat those computations g s tomect,

Licansese rceapts Uil respansiblily for: () salaction of adaquata and appropriata Licansad Programs 1o
aatisty Licansae's busines: naeds and Achieve Licansee's niended resula; Q" uss of the Licenmsad
Progrmma; (1) all mauns stteinas trom tha Licensad Programs. and (Iv) ssisclion, Las cof, ANA msults
obiained fmm any other programs, compuiar agquipmeant or sarvicas ussd wih the Licanssd Progams.
Lican2nd aCinow/sdgas it must retrieva In 8 tiMaly mannat alsctronic COMITIUNICATIGNA MAGS BvaliADI 15
Lizohmmen by Licansor (far mxampie, aiscironic filing transaction dsta SUCh AR moKNOwIBGgAMBNts And 8-
mall masaagas (n lhe Liconmss's mailbox). Buch communications may bAcoma Lneveiiadia f not
retrisvad within § Buginess days of being Mads avaishis by Licanser,

Licansse agreas to taks fuil responsibiity tor any and ail [lablINy RAAING from praparation of tha relums
processed using a Licsnssg Progmm(s) provided undsr this Agrssment and Ljcanssn agrass to
Indemnity LIC8RSOr ano NDIA K harmisak AgAInE ary and ail Sabiiity to ihe Uinttad Sistas govemmsnt of
sther partss arsing out of tha uas by Licanass of a Licanand Program(a) under 1his AgQreamant,
Incluaing aamages, recovaties, dsficiancley, Intsrest, pAnAnias and resacnable gttornay’s fesa. Licanaee
(s reaponsibie for camplyling wih ail applicabls ruias, rsgulationa and procsdures of the UnRed Giates
governmeni and ail applicalvs state sUihortias,

Product Bupport
8.1 Licensor may offer, in Its dlaarstion, product suppon for the Licensad Programs. Such product auppont

will be aveliable to Licensze untll Deosmber 31 following the and of the ainglo (ax year to which the
Licanaed Programs reiate. Product suppon wiil be provided only for use of tha Licznsed Programa on
the hardware and qpereting systerns specified in the documentation for the Licensed Progrms, and will
b8 provided only in the eveirt Licanaae has pplied all updates to the Liconsod Progmma mede availbie

by Licansor.

Miscsliansaus
10.1 This Agreamarnt constititns ths priie And 8xtiuAlve agredmsnt, undertinding and redressniation,

Bxpraas OF impliad, betweah Licansas and Licensor with raspsact 1o \Re Licanaed Progrms ang sarvica s
to bs furnished Perauncar; R I8 the Nnal sxpression of that agrmemant ana undarstanding, and I
supsrasdas mfl prior communicatlions Dtwesn tha partime (INCILEIRG oY) aral And written Proposain). Oral
gatsrments maada by Licansor's saiax rapressntatives ADCUT the Licenssd Programs do not constiute
whrmrties, spall not be miled on by Licenses and am not pan of tns Licsnss Agreamant, Ths RAL
Quidednan dallvered 10 Llcsnsas by Licensor ars guidelines only and ncl a commct betwasn Licanssr
and Licansas. NO stataments (n tha RAL Guidalinea conguiuts repressntaiions of wammantiaa of Licensor,
and the RAL Guidslines do not bind Licaneor in any way. Licenasr may changs the RAL Guldalines &t
any time and from Ums 10 time without natice to Licansan, Sactions 3, 8 und 10 ahall survive tsrminntion
of this Agresmoent.

10.2 Naither tha licanses grantad Pamundsr nar ary of Ins Licenasd Progmms may bs mubficensad,

aszigned, 31, hypothecaud, or ianalarred by Licansss wifnout 1he prior writtsn canmant of Licansor.
Any attempt 10 sudllcensa, nssign Of trANAfSr any of the TGt duties of oBligations unger thia Agresmert
wRNout the prior writtsn cansant of LicArsor ahalf tarminats the licanae automstically and ahall ba vold

anacf no afMact.
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ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 30" day of July, 2002, by and
among JTH TAX, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and SOUTHTRUST BANK
(“Escrow Agent”). (The Company and the Escrow Agent are sometimes hereinafter referred to
collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party.”)

RECITALS:

A. The Company proposes to sell up to 125,000 shares (the “Shares”) of Class A
Common Stock at a price of $40.00 per Share (“Offering”).

B. The closing of the sale of any of the Shares is contingent upon the sale of 9,375
Shares at a price of $40.00 per Share in the Offering (“Minimum Offering”).

C. The Escrow Agent is willing to hold the proceeds of the Offering in escrow
pursuant to this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual
covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Establishment of the Escrow Account. Contemporaneously herewith, the parties
have established a non-interest-bearing account with the Escrow Agent, which escrow account is
entitled “JTH Tax 2002 Offering Escrow Account” (the “Escrow Account”). The Company will
instruct subscribers to make checks payable to “SouthTrust Bank - Escrow Account f/b/o JTH
Tax, Inc.” Any checks received by the Escrow Agent that are made payable to a party other than
the Escrow Agent shall be returned to the party that submitted the check.

2. Escrow Period. The escrow period (the “Escrow Period”) shall begin with the
commencement of the Offering and shall terminate upon the earlier of the Closing Date (as
defined in Section 8 of this Agreement), March 31, 2003, or the date on which the Company
notifies the Escrow Agent that the Offering has been terminated. During the Escrow Period, the
Company is aware and understands that it is not entitled to any funds received into escrow and no
amounts deposited by the Escrow Agent shall become the property of the Company or any other
entity, or be subject to the debts of the Company or any other entity.

3. Deposits into the Escrow Account. The Company agrees that it shall deliver by
noon of the next business day after receipt all monies received from subscribers for the payment
of the Shares to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Escrow Account together with a written
account of each sale, which account shall set forth, among other things, (i) the subscriber’s name
and address, (i1) the number of Shares purchased by the subscriber, (ii1) the amount paid therefor
by the subscriber, (iv) whether the consideration received from the subscriber was in the form of
a check, draft or money order, and (v) the subscriber’s social security or tax identification
number.
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All monies so deposited in the Escrow Account are hereinafter referred to as the
“Escrow Amount.” ‘

4. Disbursements from the Escrow Account. In the event the Escrow Agent does not
receive deposits from the Offering that meet the terms of the Minimum Offering prior to the
termination of the Escrow Period, or if the Company notifies the Escrow Agent that the Offering
has been terminated, the Escrow Agent shall refund to each subscriber the amount received from
the subscriber, without deduction, penalty, or expense to the subscriber, and the Escrow Agent
shall notify the Company of its distribution of the funds. The purchase money returned to each
subscriber shall be free and clear of any and all claims of the Company or any of their creditors.

In the event the terms of the Minimum Offering are met prior to termination of the
Escrow Period, in no event will the Escrow Amount be released to the Company until such
amount is received by the Escrow Agent in collected funds. For purposes of this Agreement, the
term “collected funds” shall mean all funds received by the Escrow Agent which have cleared
normal banking channels are in the form of cash.

5. Collection Procedure.

(a) The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to deposit each check in the
Escrow Account.

(b) In the event any check paid by a subscriber and deposited in the Escrow
Account shall be returned, the Escrow Agent shall notify the Company by telephone of such
occurrence and advise it of the name of the purchaser, the amount of the check retumed, and any
other pertinent information. The Escrow Agent shall then transmit the returned check directly to
the subscriber.

(c) If the Company rejects any subscription for which the Escrow Agent has
already collected funds, the Escrow Agent shall promptly issue a refund check to the rejected
subscriber. If the Company rejects any subscription for which the Escrow Agent has not yet
collected funds but has submitted the subscriber’s check for collection, the Escrow Agent shall
promptly issue a check in the amount of the subscriber’s check to the rejected subscriber after the
Escrow Agent has cleared such funds. If the Escrow Agent has not yet submitted a rejected
subscriber’s check for collection, the Escrow Agent shall promptly remit the subscriber’s check
directly to the subscriber.

6. Delivery of Escrow Account.

(a) Prior to the Closing (as defined in Section 8 of this Agreement), the
Company shall provide the Escrow Agent with a statement containing the following information:
the total number of Shares sold and a list of each subscriber, and the number of Shares purchased
by such subscriber.

The Escrow Agent shall hold the Escrow Account and distribute it to the Company on the
date of Closing or such later date that it receives the above-described statement.
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(b) Upon termination of the Offering by the Company for any reason, the
Escrow Agent shall return to the subscribers who contributed to the Escrow Account the exact
amount contributed by them.

7. Investment of Escrow Account. The Escrow Agent shall deposit subscription
funds in the Escrow Account, which shall be a non-interest-bearing bank account at SouthTrust
Bank.

8. Closing Date. The “Closing” shall be the date of closing of the Offering, and the
“Closing Date” shall be the date on or subsequent to the date on which the Escrow Agent has
received the Minimum Offering in collected funds that is designated to the Escrow Agent by the
Company as the Closing Date.

9. The Escrow Agent’s Responsibilities. The following is understood and agreed by
all Parties as the responsibilities of the Escrow Agent:

(a) The Escrow Agent is not a trustee and is merely acting in a ministerial
capacity hereunder with the limited duties herein prescribed. This Escrow Agreement sets forth
conclusively the duties of the Escrow Agent with respect to any and all matters pertinent hereto,
and no implied duties or obligations of the Escrow Agent shall be read into this Escrow
Agreement against the Escrow Agent.

(b) The Escrow Agent shall have no liability for acts in connection herewith
except for such acts which are a result of its own gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad
faith, or as otherwise required under applicable banking laws or rules of professional
responsibility. Except as otherwise required under banking laws or applicable rules of
professional responsibility, the Escrow Agent has no responsibility in respect of any instruction,
certificate or notice delivered to it other than faithfully to carry out the obligations undertaken in
this Escrow Agreement and to follow the directions in such instructions or notices as provided in
accordance with the terms of this Escrow Agreement.

(c) The Escrow Agent may conclusively rely upon and act in accordance with
any certificate, instruction, notice, letter or other written instrument believed to be genuine and to
have been signed by an authorized representative of the Company, as applicable.

(d) The Company hereby waives any suit, claim, demand or cause of action of
any kind which they may have or may assert against the Escrow Agent arising out of or relating
to the execution or performance by the Escrow Agent of this Escrow Agreement, unless such
suit, claim, demand or cause of action is based upon the gross negligence, willful misconduct, or
bad faith of the Escrow Agent.

(e) The Escrow Agent may consult with legal counsel in the event of any
dispute or question as to the construction of any of the provisions of this Escrow Agreement or
its duties hereunder and the Escrow Agent shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with
the opinion and instructions of their counsel.
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® The Escrow Agent, having disbursed all of the funds in the Escrow
Account pursuant to the terms of this Escrow Agreement, shall be discharged from any further
obligation hereunder.

10. Notices. Unless otherwise specified herein, all notices, requests and other
communications to any Party hereunder shall be in writing (including telexes, telecopies,
facsimile transmissions, and similar writings) and shall be given to such Party at its address or
telecopier number set forth below or such other address or telecopier number as such Party may
hereafter specify for that purpose by notice to the other Party.

If to The Company:

JTH Tax, Inc.

4575 Bonney Road

Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462
Attention: Raymond A. Dunn
Facsimile: (757) 493-0169

With a Copy to:

James J. Wheaton, Esquire
Troutman Sanders LLP

4425 Corporation Lane, Suite 420
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462
Telecopier: (757) 687-7510

If to Escrow Agent:

SouthTrust Bank

1304 Greenbrier Parkway
Chesapeake, Virginia 23320
Telecopier: (757) 549-0644
Attention: Chuck Russell

Each such notice, request or other communication shall be effective (a) if given by
telecopier, when such telecommunication is transmitted and confirmation of receipt obtained, (b)
if given by mail, upon receipt, or (c) if given by any other means, when delivered at the address
specified in this Section.

11. General.

(a) This Escrow Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
hereunder, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia applicable to contracts made and to be performed therein.

142

162320_2.DOC
10/22/02




(b)  The Parties acknowledge and agree that nothing in this Escrow Agreement
shall preclude any Party from pursuing any other remedies to which such Party may be entitled
under the Agreement or any other document executed in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Agreement, including, without limitation, injunctive relief or specific
performance relating to any covenant therein.

(c) This Escrow Agreement and any amendment hereof may be executed in
any number of counterparts and by each Party on a separate counterpart, each of which, when so
executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. In producing this Escrow Agreement, it shall not be
necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart signed by the Party against
whom enforcement is sought.

(d) This Escrow Agreement, together with the Agreement and the exhibits and
schedules thereto, embodies the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings, written or oral,
between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof and thereof. If there is a conflict
between the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Escrow Agreement and any other
document, then the provisions of this Escrow Agreement shall control.

(e) No amendment, modification, termination or waiver of any provision of
this Escrow Agreement shall be effective unless the same shall be signed by all of the Parties,
and then only to the extent specifically set forth therein.

(f) Except as set forth herein, all rights, powers and remedies herein given to
the Parties are cumulative and not alternative and are in addition to all statutes or rules of law;
any forbearance or delay by any Party in exercising the same shall not be deemed a waiver
thereof, no course of dealing on the part of any Party (or its respective officers, directors,
employees, consultants and agents) nor any failure or delay by any Party with respect to
exercising the same shall operate as a waiver thereof; and the exercise of any right or any partial
exercise thereof shall not preclude the further exercise thereof, and the same shall continue in full
force and effect until specifically waived by an instrument in writing executed by the applicable
Party.

(2) This Escrow Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank — signature page(s) follow]
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heir h [: W [T“\‘;ESS WI‘_{EREOF. the Parties. intendiny to be legaily bound herebv, have set
their hands hereumo as of the day and vear above first written. )

to23n | v

JTH TANX. INC.
a Delaware corporation

By: j;‘£527:7 QQEZ

(SEAL)
Name:N fowprs B 4L Jp T
Title:___ /A"
SOUTHTRUST BANK
By: (SEAL)
Name: B
Title:

O
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties. intending to be lezally bound hereby, have set
their hands hereumo as of the day and year above first written.

JTH TAX, INC.
a Delaware corporation

By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:

SOUTHTRUST BANK

%MMSEAL)
Narne oules M. "2 s5e L _

Tide:_\Jrce  <idend
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Independent Accountants’ Consent

The Board of Directors
JTH Tax, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We consent to the inclusion of our report dated June 21, 2002, except as to note 12, which is as of
September 9, 2002, in the JTH Tax, Inc. Preliminary Offering Circular dated October 23, 2002.

Our report covering the consolidated financial statements contains an explanatory paragraph that states the
consolidated financial statements have been restated.

Our report covering the consolidated financial statements also refers to a change in accounting for business
combinations and goodwill and other intangibles effective for business combinations consummated after
June 30, 2001.

KPMe P

KPMGLLP
Norfolk, Virginia
October 23, 2002
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
707 East Main Street
Suite 500

Eighth & Main Building
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Tel:(804) 697-1500

Fax: (804) 697-1825 H

v»/av)s(/w.deloittelcom DE'O'tte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We consent to the use in Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 24-10020 of JTH Tax,
Inc. on Form 1-A of our report dated June 19, 2001, August 28, 2002 as to the effects of the
restatement discussed in Note 13 (which expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an
explanatory paragraph relating to the restatement described in Note 13) appearing in the Offering
Circular, which is part of this Registration Statement.

We also consent to the reference to us under the heading “Independent Auditors” in such Offering
Circular.

DMM LLP

October 23, 2002
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SIGNATURES

The Issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Virginia Beach, Commonwealth of Virginia, on
October 2732002,

JTH TA@%
By:

John T. Hewitt [
President

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.
~ By: QM

John T. Hewitt
Chief Executive Officer and Director
Date: 10/23/9=—01 .

=
By: ,/é Z/“\ Mﬁ )
Tintothy J. nlzo))'f{so ;

Chief Financial Officer

Date: \01/23!/01

By: (\;"C-!'*-“(o) &A‘;Or\.
George Robsbn, by Raymond A. Dunn, II, as attorney-in-fact
Director

Date: Lo(/ 23//02.

By: MZ&QAD«A‘.

Steven Lepkowskil by Raymond A. Dunn, II, as attorney-in-fact

Director
Date: | 0'/ 2,3'/ 62

By: {06514/\«‘«/\0// Ap

Ross Lo‘ngﬁeld, by Qéymond A. Dunn, I, as attorney-in-fact
Director
Date: ! 0/23/0’2_
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